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I. INTRODUCTION 

In the mid-1990s, Quellos Group LLC ("Quellos"), a then-small 

Seattle-based investment firm, became involved in the execution of tax 

shelters designed by major accounting firms for their high net worth 

clients. In 1999, Quellos decided to design its own proprietary tax shelter 

product, which became known as POINT. Jeffrey Greenstein, one of 

Quellos's founders and its CEO, and Charles Wilk, a tax lawyer who 

became a principal at Quellos, among others at Quellos, were intimately 

involved in POINT's creation, promotion, and implementation. In 

September 2010, Greenstein and Wilk both pled guilty to a conspiracy to 

defraud the IRS out of $240 million in taxes dating back to POINT's 

inception. This appeal presents the question whether those criminal 

admissions and the insureds' contemporaneous, pre-inception knowledge 

of the facts that gave rise to claims against Quellos by clients and 

governmental authorities bar Quellos's attempt to recover amounts 

expended to defend and resolve those claims from its insurers. 

The trial court correctly entered judgment for the insurers on the 

ground that the primary policy had not been exhausted under the excess 

policies' plain language. The trial court also correctly concluded that four 

separate exclusions contained in the insurance contract at issue clearly 

applied to the POINT -related claims. However, the court erred in not 



according the policy provisions their full preclusive effect to negate 

coverage for all of the sums sought by Quellos. Contrary to well-settled 

Washington law governing the application of similar insurance contract 

provisions, the trial court failed to apply broadly policy exclusions barring 

coverage for all claims "arising out of' or "arising from" the criminal 

conduct or pre-inception knowledge of "any Insured" or "any" of 

Quellos's "partners, directors, officers, [or] employees." The trial court 

ruled that a non-imputation clause in the policy potentially preserved 

coverage for "innocent" insureds even though the non-imputation clause 

by its plain terms does not apply to two of the four exclusions and the 

amounts specifically identified by Quellos as incurred on behalf of such 

individuals total less than Quellos's $2.5 million self-insured retention. 

Accordingly, Federal Insurance Company ("Federal") joins with 

Indian Harbor Insurance Company ("Indian Harbor," and with Federal 

collectively, the "Insurers") in urging affirmance of the judgment in their 

favor on the basis of Quellos's failure to exhaust the underlying 

insurance.! In addition, as demonstrated below, POINT's fraudulent 

Pursuant to RAP 10.1 (g), Federal adopts by reference in its entirety the brief of 
Respondent/Cross-Appellee Indian Harbor Insurance Company, which addresses the 
exhaustion-related issues raised by Quellos's appeal. 
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nature and the obvious potential for claims growing out of the fraud 

independently mandate judgment in the Insurers' favor. 

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

(l) While acknowledging that an insurance policy exclusion broadly 

barring coverage for "any claim arising out of, based upon or 

attributable to the committing in fact of any criminal or deliberate 

fraudulent act by any Insured, or any knowing or willful violation 

of any statute by any Insured" clearly applied to Quellos's claims 

for coverage in light of the admitted conspiracy to defraud the IRS 

through a fraudulent tax shelter by its former CEO and principal, 

the trial court erred in ruling that factual issues regarding the 

amount of loss incurred on behalf of other, un-indicted Quellos 

officers or employees (as opposed to Quellos entities) precluded 

enforcement of the exclusion with respect to all sums sought by 

Quellos. RP 96:4-97:12.2 

(2) While acknowledging that an exclusion rendering the Insurers' 

policies inapplicable "to any actual or alleged Wrongful Act 

committed with knowledge that it was a Wrongful Act" clearly 

The transcript of proceedings before the trial court is included as Exhibit A in 
the Appendix to Quellos's Brief. The relevant insurance policies are also appended as 
exhibits to Quellos's Brief. 
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excluded costs incurred in connection with claims resulting from 

the knowing design and implementation of a fraudulent tax shelter, 

the trial court erred in ruling that unspecified issues of material fact 

precluded entry of summary judgment in the Insurers' favor 

notwithstanding that the specific amounts Quellos incurred on 

behalf of officers and employees not criminally charged total less 

than the $2.5 million retention applicable under the primary policy. 

RP 97:13-24. 

(3) While acknowledging that a self-executing exclusion contained in 

Quellos's application for insurance incorporated into the policy 

barring coverage for "any claim arising from" "any fact or 

circumstance which might give rise to a claim" known to "any 

insured" as of September 2000 applied to the POINT claims, the 

trial court erred in not enforcing that exclusion to preclude 

coverage for all POINT-related claims in their entirety where 

Quellos's CEO and tax-planning principal admitted their 

knowledge in 1999 of POINT's intrinsically fraudulent nature and 

expressly contemplated the risk of claims resulting from IRS 

disallowance of claimed tax benefits in the spring of 2000. RP 

97:25-98:3. 
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(4) Notwithstanding the admissions by Quellos's CEO and tax

planning principal and established Washington law imputing the 

wrongful conduct of "any Insured" to all insureds in the absence of 

contrary policy provisions, the trial court erred in failing to apply 

an exclusion barring coverage for "any actual or alleged Wrongful 

Act occurring prior to" a specified "Continuity Date" "[i]f on or 

before such Continuity Date any Insured knew of such Wrongful 

Act or could have reasonably foreseen that such Wrongful Act 

could lead to a claim" and not ruling that the exclusion precluded 

coverage for all POINT claims. RP 97:25-98:3 

III. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

(1) Whether insurance policy exclusions applicable to all claims 

"arising out of' certain proscribed conduct or "arising from" an 

insured's pre-policy inception knowledge bar coverage for all 

claims growing out of such conduct or knowledge regardless of the 

legal theories upon which such claims might be asserted? 

(Assignments of Error 1 and 3) 

(2) Whether, in the absence of an applicable severability or non-

imputation clause in the insurance contract, exclusions triggered by 

the wrongful conduct or knowledge of "any" insured preclude 
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coverage for all insureds under the policy? (Assignments of Error 

3 and 4) 

(3) Whether an insurance contract provision expressly precluding the 

imputation of one individual insured's wrongful act to another 

individual insured precludes the imputation of an individual 

insured's wrongful act to insured Quellos entities in light of settled 

Washington law applying exclusions triggered by the conduct or 

knowledge of "any" insured? (Assignments of Error 1 and 2) 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. THE INSURANCE CONTRACTS 

Federal issued Excess Policy No. 7023-2408 to Quellos Group, 

LLC for the Policy Period from September 21, 2004 to September 21 , 

2005 (the "Federal Policy"). See CP 97, Items 1 & 5. Subject to all of its 

terms, limitations, and conditions, the Federal Policy affords $10 million 

in coverage in excess of a $10 million primary Investment Management 

Insurance Policy issued by American International Specialty Lines 

Insurance Company ("AISLIC") to Quellos for the same period (the 

"Primary Policy") and a retention of $2.5 million per Wrongful Act or 

related Wrongful Acts. CP 47, Items 1-4. Under the Federal Policy, 

"[c]overage ... shall attach only after the insurers of the Underlying 

Insurance shall have paid in legal currency the full amount of the 
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Underlying Limit for such Policy Period" and "shall then apply in 

conformance with the terms and conditions of the Primary Policy as 

amended by any more restrictive terms and conditions of any other policy 

designated in Item 4(B) of the Declarations, except as otherwise provided" 

by the Federal Policy. CP 99, Section 1. Accordingly, upon exhaustion of 

the Primary Policy's limit of liability by actual payment by AISLIC, the 

Federal Policy "follows form" to the Primary Policy. 

Subject to its terms and conditions, the Primary Policy provides 

coverage to Quellos and other specified Insureds, including Quellos's past, 

present or future officers, directors, and employees, for damages resulting 

from claims first made against them during the Policy Period for Wrongful 

Acts in rendering, inter alia, services as an investment adviser and other 

defined professional services, including amounts that Quellos is permitted 

or required to pay as indemnification to individual Insureds. CP 50-51, 

Section 1.1. (Insuring Agreements); CP 53, Section 2.(e) (defining 

"Insured"); and CP 94 (Extended Professional Services Endorsement). 

"Wrongful Acts" consist of "any breach of duty, neglect, error, 

misstatement, misleading statement, omission or other act wrongfully 

done or attempted by the Insured." CP 53, Section 2.(i). 

AISLIC has no duty to defend; rather, the Primary Policy provides 

for the advancement of Defense Costs, which are defined in relevant part 
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as "reasonable and necessary fees, costs and expenses ... incurred by the 

[Insurer] or by the Insured with the written consent ofthe [Insurer], and 

resulting solely from the investigation, adjustment, defense and appeal of 

any claim against the Insured." CP 51-52, Section 1.11; CP 52, Section 

2.(a). Defense Costs are subject to and part ofthe limit of liability. CP 57, 

Section 5. 

Coverage is subject to four pertinent exclusions. First, the Primary 

Policy "does not apply ... to any claim arising out of, based upon or 

attributable to the committing in fact of any criminal or deliberate 

fraudulent act by any Insured, or any knowing or willful violation of any 

statute by any Insured." CP 69, ~ 1 (the "Fraud Exclusion"). Second, the 

"policy does not apply ... to any actual or alleged Wrongful Act 

committed with knowledge that it was a Wrongful Act." CP 54, Section 

4.I.3 (the "Knowing Wrongful Act Exclusion"). Third, the "policy does 

not apply ... to any actual or alleged Wrongful Act occurring prior to the 

Continuity Date specified in Item 6 ofthe Declarations, if on or before 

such Continuity Date any Insured knew of such Wrongful Act or could 

have reasonably foreseen that such Wrongful Act could lead to a claim." 

CP 54-55, Section 4.11.4 (the "Continuity Date Exclusion"). The 

Continuity Date specified in the Declarations is September 20, 2000, (CP 
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47, Item 6), although by endorsement the Continuity Date applicable to 

Quellos Group, LLC is August 25, 2000. CP 78. 

Fourth, the Primary Policy provides that the application submitted 

to AISLIC "form[s] a part hereof." CP 50. The Investment Management 

Insurance Renewal Application submitted by Quellos attached to the 

2004-2005 Primary Policy in turn specifies that "this Renewal Application 

is a supplement to the Application(s) which are part ofthe expiring policy, 

and that those Application(s) together with this Renewal Application 

constitute the complete Application that shall be the basis of the contract 

and shall form part of the Policy should a Policy be issued" and that "it 

will be attached to and become part of the policy." CP 1133 (Ex. E).3 

The Investment Management Insurance Application executed by Quellos's 

General Counsel and dated September 30, 2000 submitted in connection 

with the "expiring policy" issued by AISLIC for the 2000-2004 Policy 

Period contains the following question and exclusion: 

VI. THE FOLLOWING APPLIES TO 
ALL INSURING CLAUSES AND 
MUST BE COMPLETED. 

Does the applicant or any of its partners, 
directors, officers, employees or trustees 
have any knowledge of any fact or 

"Ex. _" refers to the exhibits contained in the Appendix to this Brief. 
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circumstance which might give rise to a 
claim under the proposed policy? 

o Yes oNo 

It is agreed that if such knowledge exists any 
claim arising from such fact or 
circumstances will not be covered by the 
policy. 

CP 1122 (Ex. E) (the "Prior Knowledge Exclusion"). Quellos answered 

"No." ld. 

The Primary Policy also contains the following non-imputation 

clause applicable to the Fraud Exclusion and Knowing Wrongful Act 

Exclusion-but not the Prior Knowledge or Continuity Date Exclusions: 

NOTE: The Wrongful Act of any partner, 
officer, director, trustee, managing member 
or employee who is an Insured under this 
policy shall not be imputed to any other 
partner, officer, director, trustee, managing 
member or employee who is an Insured 
under this policy for the purpose of 
exclusions 1.1) through 5). 

CP 91 ("NOTE" following Section 4.1.). 

B. QUELLOS DESIGNS, PROMOTES, AND IMPLEMENTS 
THE POINT TAX SHELTER. 

"Design of the POINT transaction occurred during the summer of 

1999," and "[i]n 2000 and 2001," Quellos entities "assisted five clients in 

performing a total of six POINT transactions, with the first of such 

transactions occurring on April 28, 2000." CP 1178, ~ 3 (Ex. F); CP 1179, 
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~ 6 (Ex. F); CP 835, ~ 13 (Ex. B); CP 857-58, ~ 65.r (Ex. B). As described 

by Quellos, "[t]he POINT transaction was designed to allow clients to 

defer tax liabilities by offsetting their capital gains with losses that could 

be realized from a portfolio of assets that had declined in value, while 

providing an opportunity for profit ifthose assets appreciated." CP 1179, 

~ 5 (Ex. F). Quellos's then-CEO, Jeffrey Greenstein, and Charles Wilk, a 

principal with tax expertise, conceived and designed POINT. CP 946 (Ex. 

C); CP 958 (Ex. D). 

As described in the indictment charging a conspiracy to defraud 

the IRS to which Greenstein and Wilk ultimately pled guilty as charged, 

POINT began when "an ' offshore investment fund' purportedly purchased 

shares of stock in well known, publicly-traded technology companies" and 

"contributed portions of its portfolio of stock" to various offshore 

partnership entities referred to as "Special Purpose Vehicles" or "SPVs." 

CP 836, ~ 15.a (Ex. B). The offshore investment fund "then purportedly 

caused each SPY to issue 'Covered Warrants' against the respective 

basket of stocks." CP 836, ~ 15.b (Ex. B). The warrants permitted "an 

outside investor to purchase the Warrant for a premium in return for the 

right in five years to purchase the stocks in the SPY at a set price." CP 

836-37, ~ 15.b (Ex. B). Following issuance of the warrants, Quellos's 

client, a U.S. taxpayer, acquired the offshore fund's interest in the SPY, 
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and in doing so effectively also acquired the unrealized, built-in capital 

losses generated by the declining value of the technology stocks 

purportedly held by the SPY. CP 837, ~ IS.c. (Ex. B) 

The SPY then served as a kind of "mixing bowl" to which the 

taxpayer contributed his assets with built-in, unrealized capital gains that 

were offset by the built-in losses of the tech stocks. CP 837, ~ IS.d (Ex. 

B). Within a matter of months, the client would sell all of the combined 

partnership assets and cancel the warrant "under terms that ultimately 

resulted in no economic impact on the partnership or the client." CP 837, 

~ IS.e. (Ex. B). As the net effect, "the client was able to draw out of the 

partnership, tax free, the proceeds up to the client's basis in the 

partnership, or continue to maintain the proceeds within the partnership 

tax free, and invest it further." CP 837, ~ IS.f(Ex. B). 

The challenge in creating POINT was identifying assets with 

unrealized losses that could be transferred to the "mixing bowl" to permit 

Quellos's clients to offset their gains. After failing to identify actual 

assets that could be used for this purpose, Quellos's CEO created a 

hypothetical paper portfolio oftechnology company stocks that eventually 

grew to over $9 billion with roughly $1.3 billion in unrealized capital 

losses. CP 67S; CP 687-88; CP 946 (Ex. C); CP 9S8 (Ex. D). Between 

December 1999 and June 2000, this "synthetic" portfolio was the subject 
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of an exchange of a series of contracts between two Isle of Man shell 

corporations, Bamville and Jackstones. CP 744-46. Through these 

transactions, Jackstones purported to "sell" stock it did not own to 

Bamville, and Bamville would "loan" the stock back to Jackstones in 

exchange for "cash collateral" that Bamville did not actually have or pay. 

CP 744. Quellos worked with representatives of an entity called European 

American Investment Group ("Euram") in London, who were charged 

with identifying the Isle of Man companies and papering the Jackstones

Bamville transactions. CP 946 (Ex. C); CP 958 (Ex. D). As admitted by 

Greenstein and Wilk, "[i]n truth, there was no actual stock; no purchase 

and sale of actual stock, no payment for actual stock, and no basis in 

stock." CP 946 (Ex. C), CP 958 (Ex. D). 

Quellos described POINT not only to prospective clients, but also 

to law firms who were then asked to opine as to the tax consequences of 

the transactions. As to both, Quellos failed to disclose the "synthetic" 

nature of the Bamville portfolio of stock that formed the foundation for 

the strategy, and in some cases affirmatively represented that the stock 

was being acquired from European investors with Euram' s assistance. CP 

947 (Ex. C); CP 959 (Ex. D); CP 743-44. 

While in the midst of developing POINT in late 1999 through mid-

2000, Greenstein, Wilk, and the bankers at Euram specifically discussed 
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the risk of claims resulting from a lack oftransparency with respect to the 

true nature ofthe loss assets. In a February 7, 2000 teleconference, 

Greenstein, Wilk, and Euram's John Staddon and Chris Donegan (who 

secretly recorded the call), discussed the fact that the lawyer at Cravath, 

Swaine & Moore authoring the initial legal opinions on POINT "would 

not sign off on this if you told him what was going on," leading Donegan 

to admonish Wilk that "whoever it is that's talking to the client just needs 

to make sure that that risk is boxed," "[o]therwise, the guy is going to get 

audited and lose ... and come back and try to sue our asses." CP 607-08. 

Wilk responded, "you're right." CP 608; see also generally CP 585-613. 

As the planning continued, though, Euram again sought assurances 

that Quellos was accurately disclosing the phantom nature of the Barnville 

portfolio, voicing concern in an April 4, 2000 e-mail to Wilk about the 

"commercial risk that both you and I know only too well . .. that the client 

turns around under a certain scenario and claims to have been misled as to 

the nature of the share trading between the two [Isle of Man] companies." 

CP 815; see also CP 818 (April 28, 2000 e-mail from Staddon seeking 

"confirmation from [Greenstein and Wilk] that [client] and/or his advisers 

is aware of the book entry features of the structure"). Prior to executing 

the first POINT, a Quellos in-house tax professional joked in an e-mail 
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exchange with Wilk that "I just hope [the client] doesn't get cold feet or 

have the IRS select his return for audit!" CP 830. 

C. THE POINT CLAIMS 

The risks envisioned by POINT's creators ultimately materialized. 

"The IRS subsequently denied the tax benefits generated by each of the 

POINT transactions," CP 11 08, ~ 13 (Ex. E), and in 2005 and 2006 two 

different Quellos clients who used the POINT strategy advised Quellos 

that they were considering legal action "against Quellos." CP 11 09, ~~ 19-

20 (Ex. E); see also CP 1279-81 (Ex. A). Quellos settled both claims prior 

to litigation. CP 1110, ~ 22 (Ex. E); CP 1280-81 (Ex. A) (the "Client 

Claims"). 

POINT also attracted scrutiny from government authorities. The 

IRS sought documents from Quellos beginning in February 2005, and the 

U.S. Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations ofthe Committee 

on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs subpoenaed Quellos in 

September 2005 in connection with an investigation of the use of offshore 

entities in the creation of tax shelters. CP 1281-82 (Ex. A); CP 382, ~ 53. 

The California Franchise Tax Board ("CFTB") determined in May 2008 

that Quellos had promoted a fraudulent tax shelter in connection with the 

POINT transaction for client Haim Saban and imposed a penalty on 

Quellos. CP 1283 (Ex. A); see also CP 923-40. 
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The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington 

also launched a criminal probe, resulting in the issuance of grand jury 

subpoenas to Quellos in 2007 and 2008 "for documents and information 

related to the POINT transaction." CP 1282 (Ex. A); see also CP 1109, 

~ 16 (Ex. E). The grand jury subsequently indicted Greenstein and Wilk 

in July 2009 and presented an eighteen-count second superseding 

indictment on December 30, 2009. See CP 831-73 (Ex. B) (The Client 

Claims, IRS information request, Senate investigation, CFTB audit and 

penalty, and U.S. Attorney's Office investigation and prosecution are 

referred to herein collectively as the "POINT Claims.") The government 

charged Greenstein and Wilk with conspiracy to defraud the IRS, tax 

evasion, counseling false tax returns, wire fraud, and conspiracy to launder 

monetary instruments. 

On September 10, 2010, both Greenstein and Wilk entered into 

materially similar plea agreements and pled guilty to Count 1 (conspiracy 

to defraud the United States in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371) and Count 13 

(aiding and assisting the filing of a false tax return in connection with the 

Saban POINT in violation of26 U.S.c. § 7206(2)). CP 941-52 (Ex. C); 

CP 953-64 (Ex. D); CP 965-66 (Greenstein Acceptance of Plea); CP 967-

68 (Wilk Acceptance of Plea); CP 969-75 (Greenstein Judgment); CP 96-

82 (Wilk Judgment). Quellos spent more than $24 million in connection 
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with the federal criminal investigation, although it has identified less than 

$1.3 million specifically incurred on behalf of employees other than 

Greenstein and Wilko CP 1282 (Ex. A). 

As part of their plea agreements, both Greenstein and Wilk 

adopted identical statements of facts "in their entirety." CP 1000. The 

statements included the following admissions: 

• "Beginning in 1999 and continuing through 2005," Greenstein and 

Wilk, among others, "conspired and agreed to defraud the Internal 

Revenue Service by designing, promoting, and implementing a 

fraudulent tax shelter, which they referred to by the acronym, 

POINT, and by directly and indirectly deceiving and lying to the 

IRS during examinations of returns that taxpayers filed in reliance 

upon POINT." CP 946 (Ex. C); CP 958 (Ex. D). 

• Greenstein and Wilk worked with Euram "to create fictitious 

losses through the purported purchase and sale of' synthetic' stock 

with paper value exceeding $9.6 Billion between two Special 

Purpose Vehicles (SPV's), Isle of Man businesses, Jackstones, 

Ltd., and Barnville, Ltd[.], which had no assets. In truth there was 

no actual stock; no purchase and sale of actual stock; no payment 

for actual stock, and no basis in stock. These fictitious losses were 

used in POINT to offset approximately equal dollar amounts of 
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real capital gains, thereby deferring substantial capital gains taxes." 

CP 946-47 (Ex. C); CP 958 (Ex. D). 

• Defendants "provided and caused to be provided to these willing 

taxpayers, information and documentation for POINT that they 

knew were false . They also provided these taxpayers with legal 

opinions, based upon the same false information and 

documentation, that attested to the probable legitimacy of POINT. 

Defendants knew these opinions relied on false information and 

documentation." CP 947 (Ex. C); CP 959 (Ex. D). 

• "When these returns came under audit, the defendants gave the 

taxpayers and their advisors the same false information and 

documentation and the defendants knew that the taxpayers and 

their advisors would use the false information and documentation 

in responding to the IRS." CP 947 (Ex. C); CP 959 (Ex. D). 

• In connection with the Saban POINT, the partnership entity filed a 

false return for tax year 200 1 claiming $614 million in capital 

losses. Greenstein and Wilk "knowingly and willfully caused to be 

provided the false loss figure thus aiding and assisting in the filing 

of the materially false return." CP 947 (Ex. C); CP 959 (Ex. D). 

Quellos acknowledges that the two previously settled "individual investor 

claims [i.e. , the Client Claims] arose out of the same factual circumstances 
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and POINT transactions that later served, in part, as the basis for the 

criminal indictments and ultimate guilty pleas of Messrs. Greenstein and 

Wilk." CP 1109, ~ 21 (Ex. E). 

Greenstein and Wilk were each sentenced to 50 months' 

incarceration. CP 971 ; CP 978. Each is currently serving his sentence at a 

facility outside of Washington. CP 1243-49. 

D. THE INSTANT LITIGATION AND PROCEEDINGS 
BELOW. 

Quellos commenced this action on December 1, 2010, asserting 

claims for breach of contract and declaratory relief regarding the 

availability of coverage under its 2004-2005 insurance program for the 

POINT Claims, as well as coverage for claims arising from other tax 

shelters under other policy periods. Under the First Amended Complaint, 

the claims directed to Federal and Indian Harbor solely concern the 

POINT strategy. Quellos's fifth cause of action seeks coverage for 

defense costs incurred by Quellos to defend itself and its directors and 

officers for the POINT Claims, and its sixth cause of action seeks 

coverage for "other covered losses" incurred in connection with the 

POINT Claims. CP 388-89, ~~ 89-94. All told, the amounts for defense 

expenses and settlements for which QueUos seeks coverage exceed $62.5 

million. CP 1280-84 (Ex. A). 
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Prior to bringing this action, AISLIC had paid Quellos less than 

half of the $10 million limit under the Primary Policy. CP 1285. After 

filing suit, Quellos entered into a settlement with AISLIC under which 

Quellos released AISLIC with respect to its claims for coverage under the 

Primary Policy for the POINT Claims without payment by AISLIC of any 

additional amounts in connection with the POINT Claims. CP 22-37. 

Quellos and the excess carriers cross-moved for summary 

judgment with respect to whether coverage under the Federal and Indian 

Harbor excess policies attached in light of AISLIC's failure to pay its full 

limit of liability. Following oral argument, by order dated February 10, 

2012, the trial court granted the Insurers' motion, denied Quellos's 

motion, and dismissed Quellos's claims against Federal and Indian Harbor 

with prejudice. CP 1293, 1353-55. 

In addition to the motion regarding exhaustion, Federal, joined by 

Indian Harbor, also moved for summary judgment on the ground that 

Greenstein's and Wilk's criminal guilty pleas and other admissions, as 

well as their pre-policy inception knowledge of the admitted conspiracy to 

defraud, triggered application of several policy exclusions barring 

coverage for all of the POINT Claims. Following oral argument, the trial 

court overruled objections by Quellos to the admissibility of several of the 
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exhibits submitted by Federal in support of its motion, and found that 

Greenstein's and Wilk's guilty pleas "are clearly admissible." RP 95:22. 

The trial court concluded that it would "enter[] a partial summary 

judgment order establishing the viability and the applicability of the 

[F]raud [E]xclusion insofar as it clearly relates to certain costs incurred by 

those individuals who were actually indicted." RP 96: 19-23. However, 

the court determined that "there is a potential conflict ... between the 

severability clause and the arising out of language" contained in the Fraud 

Exclusion, citing the potential for "claims against other nonindicted 

[insureds], which arguably arise out of a fraud, but perhaps not, which 

may more sound in negligence and maybe not." RP 96:5-14. As such, in 

the trial court's view, "there is a genuine issue of material fact as to what 

exactly arising out of means, and so therefore I will grant in part and deny 

in part summary judgment on the part of the [F]raud [E]xclusion." RP 

97:3-6. However, the court specifically rejected Quellos's contention that 

the Fraud Exclusion barred coverage only for defense expenses incurred 

after Greenstein's and Wilk's guilty pleas, explaining that "if they were 

excluded by the fraud, then they were excluded all the way back." RP 

98:3-10. 

Similarly, the trial court decided that the Knowing Wrongful Act 

Exclusion "is clearly viable" and "clearly excludes certain costs that were 
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incurred by plaintiff' but found "a genuine issue of material fact as to 

which costs are covered, which costs are not." RP 97: 15-19. The trial 

court further granted only partial summary judgment on the basis ofthe 

Continuity Date Exclusion and the Prior Knowledge Exclusion "for 

similar reasons." RP 98:1-3 . 

The trial court accordingly entered an order granting Federal and 

Indian Harbor partial summary judgment on the basis of the policy 

exclusions nunc pro tunc to February 10,2012. The trial court entered 

final judgment in favor of the insurers February 13,2012 pursuant to CR 

54(b). Quellos timely appealed the judgment and orders regarding the 

exhaustion issue, and the Insurers timely sought cross-review of the trial 

court's order regarding the application of the policy exclusions. 

v. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

In September 2010, a federal criminal investigation resulted in the 

entry of guilty pleas by both Quellos's former CEO, Jeff Greenstein, and 

another Quellos principal, Charles Wilk, to a conspiracy to defraud the 

IRS out of $240 million in taxes dating back to POINT's inception in 

1999. The detailed admissions that accompanied those guilty pleas and 

the entirely foreseeable-indeed, foreseen-consequences of engineering 

a fraudulent tax shelter built upon a "synthetic" portfolio of stock and 

selling the tax avoidance strategy to clients without full disclosure of such 
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fact plainly implicate a number of exclusions barring insurance coverage 

for criminal conduct and knowledge of conduct that could give rise to 

claims. The trial court had little trouble concluding that each ofthe 

exclusions relied upon by the Insurers applied to Quellos' s efforts to 

recoup losses resulting from its calculated foray into the tax shelter 

business. 

However, the trial court erred in failing to accord the exclusions 

the full preclusive effect dictated by their plain language. The trial court 

concluded that genuine issues of material fact precluded summary 

judgment in the Insurers' favor because it could not determine which 

amounts for which Quellos seeks coverage are subject to the exclusions 

and which are not. The trial court's analysis, however, did not pinpoint 

any such issues. To the contrary, the substance of the POINT Claims, the 

illegal conduct that led to them, and the basis for the sums incurred by 

Quellos as a result are not seriously in dispute. The trial court therefore 

should have granted the Insurers full summary judgment based on the 

unambiguous terms of the Primary Policy to which they follow form. 

First, the policy does not apply "to any claim arising out of, based 

upon or attributable to the committing in fact of any criminal or deliberate 

fraudulent act by any Insured, or any knowing or willful violation of any 

statute by any Insured." Greenstein's and Wilk's guilty pleas by 
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themselves establish that POINT's genesis and execution and all of the 

claims flowing from its implementation arise from "criminal" and 

"deliberate fraudulent" acts, as well as both "knowing" and "willful 

violation[s] of any statute." Citing a perceived "conflict" between the 

broad "arising out of' language used in the exclusion on the one hand, and 

a limited non-imputation clause excepting certain individuals from the 

exclusion's reach on the other, the trial court decided it could not 

determine the extent to which the Fraud Exclusion applied. That 

"conflict" is illusory, though, as the non-imputation clause does not apply 

to the sums incurred by Greenstein, Wilk, or the QueUos entities-which 

far and away comprise the vast majority of the sums at issue. 

Second, the policy does not apply to the POINT Claims because 

they arise from misconduct that the Insureds knew was wrongful when 

they did it and the Insureds should have foreseen-and actually did 

foresee-prior to the policy period the potential for claims resulting from 

such misconduct. Again, the trial court determined that these provisions 

excluded coverage for some, but not all, of Quellos's POINT-related 

losses. And again, it did not identify what factual issues compelled that 

result. Quellos, through Greenstein and Wilk, knew that the lack of 

disclosures to its clients and their outside counsel, the synthetic nature of 

the loss assets, and POINT's lack ofreal economic substance were 
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wrongful and might lead to claims-precisely the claims at issue. Nor did 

the trial court address how the non-imputation clause could conflict with 

the broad "arising from" and "any" insured language employed in the 

Prior Knowledge Exclusion since the non-imputation clause does not 

apply to that exclusion or the Continuity Date Exclusion. Accordingly, 

even assuming that Quellos can overcome the exhaustion issue-which it 

cannot-the uncontroverted criminal conduct of Jeff Greenstein and 

Charles Wilk arising out of the tax scheme at issue in the POINT Claims 

triggers four separate exclusions that bar coverage for Quellos's claim. 

VI. ARGUMENT 

This Court "review[ s] a summary judgment order de novo, 

performing the same inquiry as does the trial court." Sauter v. Houston 

Cas. Co., 276 P.3d 358,361 (Wash. Ct. App. 2012) (citations omitted). 

"Similarly, the interpretation of an insurance contract is a question of law 

reviewed de novo." Id. 

A. UNDER WASHINGTON LAW, THE PLAIN LANGUAGE 
OF THE POLICIES MUST BE ENFORCED AS WRITTEN. 

"The criteria for interpreting insurance contracts in Washington are 

well settled. We construe insurance policies as contracts." Quadrant 

Corp. v. American States Ins. Co., 154 Wn. 2d 165, 171 (2005). 

"Interpretation of insurance policies is a question of law, in which the 

policy is construed as a whole and each clause is given force and effect." 
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Overton v. Consolidated Ins. Co., 145 Wn. 2d 417, 424 (2002). 

"Language in an insurance contract is to be given its ordinary meaning, 

and courts should read the policy as the average person purchasing 

insurance would." Campbell v. Ticor Title Ins. Co., 166 Wn. 2d 466, 472 

(2009). "In doing so, we do not engage in a strained or forced 

construction that would lead to absurd results." Christal v. Farmers Ins. 

Co., 133 Wn. App. 186, 191 (2006) (internal quotation marks and citation 

omitted). "Most importantly, if the policy language is clear and 

unambiguous, we must enforce it as written; we may not modify it or 

create ambiguity where none exists." Quadrant, 154 Wn. 2d at 171. 

"[W]hile exclusions should be strictly construed against the drafter, a strict 

application should not trump the plain, clear language of an exclusion such 

that a strained or forced construction results." ld. at 172. 

B. THE GUILTY PLEAS ENTERED BY QUELLOS'S CEO 
AND PRINCIPAL CLEARLY ESTABLISH THAT THE 
POINT CLAIMS ARISE FROM CRIMINAL AND 
FRAUDULENT ACTS BARRED FROM COVERAGE. 

The Fraud Exclusion contained in the Primary Policy bars 

coverage for "any claim arising out of, based upon or attributable to the 

committing in fact of any criminal or deliberate fraudulent act by any 

Insured, or any knowing or willful violation of any statute by any 

Insured." CP 69, ~ 1. The admissions contained in Greenstein's and 
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Wilk's guilty pleas, by themselves, clearly establish that Greenstein, Wilk, 

and Quellos committed criminal and deliberately fraudulent acts in 

designing, promoting, and implementing POINT. As such, the Federal 

Policy does not apply to the POINT Claims. 

1. The Trial Court Correctly Held that the Guilty Pleas 
Triggered Application of the Fraud Exclusion. 

Beyond a doubt, the criminal pleas demonstrate that Greenstein 

and Wilk "in fact" committed fraudulent and criminal acts. As used in the 

Fraud Exclusion, "in fact" "refers to 'something which is put forward as 

"objectively real" or which can be "objectively verified."'" Virginia 

Mason Med Ctr. v. Executive Risk Indem. Inc., No. C07-0636, 2007 WL 

3473683, at *5 (W.D. Wash. Nov. 14,2007) (quoting PMI Mortg. Ins. Co. 

v. American Int'l Specialty Lines Ins. Co., No. C02-1774, 2006 WL 

825266, at *5 (N.D. Cal. Mar. 29, 2006». Such objective verification can 

take the form of a final adjudication in the relevant underlying proceeding, 

an admission by the insured, or a finding by the court in a separate action 

based on evidence of the insureds' conduct. Id. Of course, where, as here, 

insureds have been convicted of criminal offenses, such conviction 

"constitutes far more than some pertinent factual finding of fraudulent 

conduct and fully supports the conclusion that" the Fraud Exclusion 

applies. Farkas v. National Union Fire Ins. Co., No. 11cv529, 2011 WL 
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2838167, at *2 (E.D. Va. July 14,2011) (holding that similarly-worded 

fraud exclusion barred coverage for criminal proceedings where "jury's 

guilty verdict clearly triggered" the exclusion). 

In construing a similar exclusion, the Court of Appeals affirmed 

the entry of summary judgment in favor of an insurer for the insured law 

firm's liability for losses resulting from an employee's embezzlement 

scheme. Stouffer & Knight v. Continental Cas. Co., 96 Wn. App. 741, 745 

(1999) (applying exclusion for "any claim arising out of ... any dishonest, 

fraudulent, criminal or malicious act or omission by you or any of your 

partners, officers, stockholders or employees"). In Stouffer & Knight, the 

Court concluded that "[n]o ambiguity exists in Knight's CNA insurance 

contract because the language on its face is not fairly susceptible to two 

different but reasonable interpretations[.]" !d. at 749-50 (internal 

quotation marks and citation omitted). The Court held that regardless 

whether the attorney's negligent supervision contributed to the losses, they 

unquestionably arose directly out of the employee's dishonest acts of 

embezzlement and therefore fell within the scope ofthe exclusion. Id. at 

750-51. 

The uncontroverted facts require the same result here. The 

offenses to which Greenstein and Wilk pled guilty relate entirely to their 

conception and implementation of POINT. Greenstein and Wilk each pled 
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guilty to a conspiracy to defraud the IRS beginning in 1999. As set forth 

in their plea agreements, the conspiracy offense consists of (1) "the 

existence of an agreement by two or more persons to defraud" the IRS; (2) 

each one's "knowing and voluntary participation in the conspiracy"; and 

(3) "an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy." CP 943 (Ex. C); CP 

955 (Ex. D); see also 18 U.S .C. § 371. Second, Greenstein and Wilk each 

pled guilty to the offense of aiding and assisting the filing of a false tax 

return, which requires (1) that "the defendant aided or assisted in, 

procured, counseled, or advised the preparation or presentation of' a 

partnership income tax return; (2) "the document was false as to a material 

matter"; and (3) "the act of the defendant was willful." CP 943 (Ex. C); 

CP 955 (Ex. D); see also 26 U.S.C. § 7206(2). 

The elements of these offenses admitted by Quellos' s CEO and tax 

strategy principal clearly satisfy each of the Fraud Exclusion's 

requirements of a "criminal" act, "deliberate fraudulent act," or "any 

knowing or willful violation of any statute by any Insured." CP 69, ~ 1. 

The statement of facts each adopted by Greenstein and Wilk as part of 

their plea agreements underscores the deliberately fraudulent nature of 

their misconduct that infected all of the POINT transactions. Each admits 

that they "conspired and agreed to defraud the Internal Revenue Service 

by designing, promoting, and implementing afraudulent tax shelter . .. 
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and by directly and indirectly deceiving and lying to the IRS during 

examinations of returns that taxpayers filed in reliance upon POINT." CP 

946 (Ex. C) (emphasis added); see also CP 958 (Ex. D). They each admit 

to "creat[ing] fictitious losses" and that the Bamville-lackstones trades 

involved "no actual stock; no purchase and sale of actual stock; no 

payment for actual stock, and no basis in stock." Id. And they provided 

documents to their clients describing POINT "that they knew were false," 

as well as legal opinions regarding POINT's legitimacy that they "knew 

... relied on false information and documentation." CP 946-47 (Ex. C); 

CP 958-59 (Ex. D). The record could not be clearer. A such, the trial 

court correctly held that the Fraud Exclusion applies to the POINT Claims. 

2. The Trial Court Erred in Failing to Apply the Fraud 
Exclusion to the Full Extent of its Unambiguous 
Breadth as Mandated by Washington Law. 

However, the trial court erred in limiting application of the Fraud 

Exclusion to "certain costs incurred by those individuals who were 

actually indicted." RP 96:22-23. To the contrary, the Fraud Exclusion 

bars coverage not only for the criminal investigation and prosecution, but 

all of the POINT Claims. The Fraud Exclusion provides that the Primary 

Policy does not apply "to any claim arising out of, based upon or 

attributable to" the fraudulent conduct. CP 69, ,-r 1. As used in insurance 

policy exclusions, "[t]he phrase 'arising out of is unambiguous and has a 

-30-



broader meaning than 'caused by' or 'resulted from.' It ordinarily means 

'originating from,' 'having its origin in,' 'growing out of,' or 'flowing 

from.'" Munn v. Mutual a/Enumclaw Ins. Co., 73 Wn. App. 321, 325 

(1994).4 

All of the claims at issue grow directly out of the admittedly 

fraudulent conception and implementation of POINT. The Client Claims 

sought to recover amounts allegedly incurred as a result of the IRS's 

disallowance of capital losses claimed by virtue of POINT. Quellos 

explicitly concedes that the two Client Claims "arose out ofthe same 

factual circumstances and POINT transactions that later served, in part, as 

the basis for the criminal indictments and ultimate guilty pleas of Messrs. 

Greenstein and Wilk." CP 1109-10, ~ 21 (Ex. E). The governmental 

investigations directly concern POINT's creation and promotion. CP 

4 See also Stouffer & Knight, 96 Wn. App. 741, 750 n.ll (1999) (applying 
dishonesty exclusion in lawyer's professional liability policy broadly to preclude 
coverage for amounts expended by attorney to satisfy embezzlement losses despite his 
contention that his liability was predicated on alleged negligent supervision rather than 
any alleged dishonest acts on his part); City of Everett v. American Empire Surplus Lines 
Ins. Co., 64 Wn. App. 83, 88-89 (1991) (affirming summary judgment for insurer and 
holding that exclusion contained in municipal errors and omissions policy broadly 
applied to preclude coverage for city's alleged negligent supervision and rejecting 
application of an efficient proximate cause standard); Mutual of Enumclaw Ins. Co. v. St. 
Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co., No. C05-0312, 2006 WL 16634, at *4 (W.D. Wash . Jan. 4, 
2006) (observing that "ample Washington case law interpreting arising-out-of clauses" 
have "found the ph[r]ase to be unambiguous, and have interpreted such clauses as calling 
for a more liberal causation standard than demanded by language such as 'caused by' or 
'resulted from'''). 
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1279-84 (Ex. A). Given Greenstein's and Wilk's admissions that POINT 

was built upon a phony stock portfolio, that such fact was not fully 

explained to their clients, and that they misled their clients, counsel, and 

the IRS when questioned during the audit process, all of the POINT 

Claims clearly have their origins in, grow out of, and flow from precisely 

the same fraudulent conduct and statutory violations underlying the 

government's criminal case. 

Moreover, the Fraud Exclusion expressly provides that the Primary 

Policy does not respond to "any claim" arising from the proscribed 

conduct "by any Insured." Under Washington law, policy exclusions 

applicable to the acts of "any Insured" bar coverage for all insureds when 

any insured's proscribed conduct gives rise to the claim. "Here, the 

exclusion is not restricted to intentional acts of the particular insured 

sought to be held liable, but broadly excludes coverage for all intentionally 

caused injury or damage by an insured, which includes anyone insured 

under the policy." Farmers Ins. Co. v. Hembree, 54 Wn. App. 195,200 

(1989). 5 The Insureds under the Primary Policy include Quellos as the 

Both before and after Hembree, the Washington state and federal courts have 
consistently adhered to this principle, repeatedly affirming the applicability of exclusions 
triggered by misconduct of "an insured" or "any insured" to even asserted "innocent" 
insureds, notwithstanding "separability" clauses requiring the policy to be treated as 
separate insurance contracts for each insured. See Leanderson v. Farmers Ins. Co., III 
Wn. App. 230, 237 (2002) ("[T]he Leandersons' policy uses the term 'an insured' rather 
than 'the insured.' Therefore, the exclusion is not restricted to Crystal's acts, but broadly 
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Named Insured and the other Quellos entities involved in the 

implementation of POINT. CP 53, Section 2.(e); CP 78. As such, the 

Fraud Exclusion broadly precludes coverage for all POINT Claims 

because (1) they are premised on criminal and fraudulent conduct 

regardless of the legal theory under which they are asserted; and (2) except 

as the Primary Policy might otherwise provide, Greenstein's and Wilk's 

admitted illegal conduct is imputed as a matter of law to all insureds under 

the policy. 

Notwithstanding the well-recognized breadth of the Fraud 

Exclusion, the trial court declined to enter summary judgment in favor of 

the Insurers because of a perceived "potential conflict ... between the 

excludes coverage for all injury or damage caused by an insured under the policy."); 
Mutual a/Enumclaw Ins. Co. v. Cross, 103 Wn. App. 52, 61-62 (2000) (same and 
rejecting application of severability clause); Caroffv. Farmers Ins. Co., 155 Wn. App. 
724, 730 (1999) ("The average insurance purchaser would know from the explicit 
language of the child molestation exclusions that, despite the severability clauses, 
Farmers will not cover any suits or claims arising out of child molestation by any 
insured."); Allstate Ins. Co. v. Raynor, 93 Wn. App. 484, 498 (1999) ("Washington courts 
have interpreted an exclusionary clause based upon the acts of 'an insured' as precluding 
coverage for an innocent insured where coverage for the acts of another culpable insured 
is excluded under the policy."); Farmers Ins. Co. v. Edie, 52 Wn. App. 411,412 (1988) 
(holding that intentional acts exclusion applicable to acts of "an insured" barred coverage 
for both culpable husband and non-culpable wife); u.s.F. & G. Ins. Co. v. Brannan, 22 
Wn. App. 341, 348 (1979) ("The policy provides no coverage if the business pursuits of 
Any [sic] of the separate insureds gave rise to the damage."); Allstate Indem. Co. v. 
Eisenhut, No. C09-0835, 2010 WL 1330003, at *3 n.5 (W.O. Wash. Mar. 30, 20lO) 
("Under Washington law, exclusion clauses apply to all insureds even when only one 
insured acts."); Allstate Ins. Co. v. Goldman, No. C07-0478, 2007 WL 2900398, at *2 
(W.O. Wash. Oct. 3,2007) ("[U]nder the language of the policy, the intentional acts of 
'any insured' preclude coverage for all insureds for claims arising from those intentional 
acts."). 
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severability clause and the arising out of language here." RP 96:6-8. No 

such conflict-potential or actual--exists. The "severability clause" or 

non-imputation clause to which the trial court referred provides that "[t]he 

Wrongful Act of any partner, officer, director, trustee, managing member 

or employee who is an Insured under this policy shall not be imputed to 

any other partner, officer, director, trustee, managing member or employee 

who is an Insured under this policy for the purpose of' certain exclusions, 

including the Fraud Exclusion. CP 91 ("NOTE" following Section 4.1.). 

By its express terms, the non-imputation clause renders the Fraud 

Exclusion severable only as to Individual Insureds. The clause does not 

preclude imputation of Greenstein's and Wilk's admitted misconduct to 

Quellos entities. This limitation on the non-imputation clause is 

dispositive because of the well-settled default rule under Washington law 

that the excluded conduct of one Insured precludes coverage for all 

Insureds where the relevant exclusion is triggered by the conduct of "any 

Insured." 

Against this backdrop of established Washington law, the broad 

scope of the Fraud Exclusion dictated by its "arising out of' language is 

easily harmonized with the limited exception to the general rule of 

imputation of the conduct by "any Insured" reflected in the Primary 

Policy's non-imputation clause. Whether asserted under theories or 
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negligence or intentional conduct, the "arising out of' language brings 

within the Fraud Exclusion's sweep all claims growing out of and flowing 

from the admittedly criminal acts of POINT's design and implementation. 

Because the exclusion applies to all Insureds based on the conduct of "any 

Insured," the exclusion bars all coverage for the POINT Claims except to 

the extent they were asserted against and resulted in sums that Individual 

Insureds other than Greenstein and Wilk were legally obligated to pay. 

The non-imputation clause does not affect coverage for amounts incurred 

by or on behalf of Greenstein, Wilk, or the Quellos entities themselves-

which clearly lie within the Fraud Exclusion's reach. 

3. The Undisputed Record Evidence Establishes that, at 
Best, the Amounts Potentially Not Subject to the Fraud 
Exclusion are Less than the Primary Policy's Retention. 

Here, the record demonstrates that the only amounts claimed by 

Quellos to have been incurred by or on behalf of assertedly non-culpable 

individuals do not even exceed the Primary Policy's $2.5 million 

retention, let alone the retention and AISLIC' s $10 million limit of 

liability. In response to interrogatories concerning the specifics of the 

various POINT Claims, with the exception of the federal criminal 

investigation, Quellos identified itself or one of its subsidiaries-not any 

Individual Insured-as the party against whom the claim was asserted. CP 

1280-84. With respect to the U.S. Attorney's Office investigation that 
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culminated in Greenstein's and Wilk's guilty pleas, Quellos has identified 

approximately $1.27 million in defense expenses incurred on behalf of 

nine individuals other than Greenstein and Wilko CP 1282 (Ex. A). Thus, 

according to Quellos' s own statement of its damages, the sums it has 

incurred on behalf of Individual Insureds versus those incurred on behalf 

of itself, Greenstein, or Wilk do not even penetrate the Primary Policy. 

Quellos also argued below that the two settlements it entered into 

to resolve the Client Claims "released all claims that could have been 

asserted against any Quellos entity or person representing Quellos, 

including all of its directors, officers, employees, and insurers." CP 1110, 

~ 24 (Ex. E). Quellos suggested, and the trial court appears to have 

accepted, that because some Individual Insureds received the benefit of the 

releases given to resolve the Client Claims, some amount of the settlement 

consideration should be allocated as damages incurred by Quellos on 

behalf of individuals for claims for negligence and breach of fiduciary 

duty beyond the scope of the Fraud Exclusion. But regardless of who 

might have enjoyed the benefit of the releases-which includes Quellos 

employees who had no involvement whatsoever with POINT as well as 

Quellos's insurers-Quellos has not identified any Individual Insured 

against whom a claim has been asserted. Indeed, Quellos has not 

suggested that any individuals were even parties to these settlements. 
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Rather, Quellos quite clearly states that the Client Claims were asserted 

"against Quellos"-not any individuals-and Quellos does not identify 

any specific individual accused of misconduct in connection with those 

claims. CP 1109, ,-r 19 (Ex. E) (declaration of Quellos' s former General 

Counsel stating that "two POINT clients asserted claims ... against 

Quellos"); CP 1280-81 (Ex. A) (responding to interrogatory requesting 

identification, with respect to each POINT Claim, of"[t]he entity, 

individual and/or other person to whom the matter was asserted" by 

stating that both Saban and Schein investor claims involved potential 

"legal action against Quellos" without referencing any individuals). The 

record before the trial court thus established that with the exception of less 

than $1.3 million in criminal investigatory defense expenses, Quellos has 

not incurred any amounts on behalf of "innocent" insureds against whom 

claims were made. Accordingly, the Insurers are entitled to summary 

judgment on the basis of the Fraud Exclusion. 

C. QUELLOS'S PRIOR KNOWLEDGE OF ITS WRONGFUL 
CONDUCT IN DEVELOPING POINT AND MANIFEST 
POTENTIAL FOR RESULTING CLAIMS 
INDEPENDENTLY PRECLUDES COVERAGE. 

The admitted criminal conspiracy concerning the development and 

implementation of POINT rises well above the level necessary to 

implicate the Fraud Exclusion. However, even if that were not the case, 

-37-



the Primary Policy bars coverage for the POINT Claims based upon 

Quellos's knowledge of its wrongful acts and clear potential for claims 

based on those wrongful acts. By its express terms, the Primary Policy 

does not apply where any Insured knows that he or it committed Wrongful 

Acts or where any Insured has knowledge of facts or circumstances that 

might give rise to a claim under the Policy. As such, the Prior Knowledge 

Exclusion, Continuity Date Exclusion, and Knowing Wrongful Act 

Exclusion each render the Primary Policy inapplicable to the POINT 

Claims. 

1. Greenstein's and Wilk's Knowledge of Their 
Misconduct Completely Bars Coverage under the Prior 
Knowledge Exclusion. 

First, the application submitted by Quellos in connection with the 

2000-2004 Policy Period, which the 2004-2005 Primary Policy 

incorporates by reference, provides that if Quellos or "any of its partners, 

directors, officers, employees or trustees ha[ s] any knowledge of any fact 

or circumstance which might give rise to a claim," then coverage is 

excluded for "any claim arising from such fact or circumstances." CP 

1122, Section VI (Ex. E). "This type of exclusionary language is known 

as a prior knowledge limitation, and similar prior knowledge limitations 

have been construed by Washington courts to require the insured to 

disclose any acts or omissions that the insured could have reasonably 
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foreseen might be a basis for a claim against him or her." Carolina Cas. 

Ins. Co. v. Ott, No. C09-5540, 2010 WL 1849230, at *10 (W.D. Wash. 

May 7, 2010) (granting summary judgment to insurer under similar prior 

knowledge limitation contained in lawyers professional liability insurance 

policy). 

In applying such clauses, the Washington Supreme Court has 

mandated the use of an objective standard, "looking at the facts from a 

neutral, 'reasonable' perspective." Allstate Ins. Co. v. Peasley, 131 Wn. 

2d 420,430 (1997) (affirming summary judgment for insurer on basis of 

exclusion for injuries "which may reasonably be expected to result from 

the intentional or criminal acts of an insured person"). Such prior 

knowledge limitations "do[] not require the prediction of claims with 

absolute certainty or exactitude. Rather, the focus of the clause is on the 

underlying 'acts and omissions' that are the subject of a dispute which 

might give rise to a claim. The insurer is inquiring about any such acts or 

omissions in order to allow it to realistically assess its risk and establish an 

appropriate premium for coverage." Tewell, Thorpe & Findlay, Inc. , P.s. 

v. Continental Cas. Co., 64 Wn. App. 571, 576-77 (1992) (affirming entry 

of summary judgment for insurer under lawyers professional liability 

policy based on exclusion barring coverage "if any insured on the 

effective date knew or could have reasonably foreseen that such acts or 
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omissions might be the basis for a claim"); see also Westport Ins. Corp. v. 

Markham Grp. Inc. PS, 403 F. App'x 264, 265 (9th Cir. 2010) (applying 

Washington law) (same). Indeed, such contract language "also does not 

imply that the potential claims of which the insurance company must be 

informed necessarily have merit." Tewell, 64 Wn. App. at 577. 

Here, Greenstein and Wilk-and by extension Quellos-clearly 

had knowledge of facts or circumstances that "might give rise to a claim" 

as of the September 2000 date applicable to the Prior Knowledge 

Exclusion. The record leaves no room for doubt: 

• "Beginning in 1999," Greenstein and Wilk "conspired and agreed 

to defraud" the IRS "by designing, promoting, and implementing a 

fraudulent tax shelter" based upon the generation of "fictitious 

losses" through the Bamville-lackstones paper portfolio-a 

portfolio that had been fully created by mid-2000. CP 946 (Ex. C); 

CP 958 (Ex. D); CP 744-46; CP 842, ~ 30 (Ex. B). 

• By mid-2000, Quellos had completed half of the six POINT 

transactions it implemented, with three of the six legal opinions for 

such transactions issued as well. CP 857-58, ~~ 65.r.-s. (Ex. B). 

Greenstein and Wilk have admitted that in connection with all of 

the POINT transactions, the documentation provided to the 
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taxpayers and legal counsel was false. CP 947 (Ex. C); CP 959 

(Ex. D). 

• In February 2000, Greenstein and Wilk acknowledged in a 

conference call with Euram that legal counsel had not been 

apprised ofthe synthetic nature of the critical stock portfolio. CP 

895 ("All [counsel] said is don't synthetically create the basis. 

[Laughter] That was six months ago and all we're doing here is 

we're synthetically creating a long position."); CP 895-96 (Wilk 

acknowledging that "[counsel] would not sign off on this if you 

told him what was going on"). On that call, the participants 

explicitly foresaw the potential for claims following an IRS audit 

by clients claiming that they had not been adequately informed, CP 

896, and the Euram representatives raised this possibility again in 

April 2000, seeking assurances that such disclosures had been 

made. CP 815; CP 822. 

The Individual Insureds subjectively knew that the POINT tax 

shelter had been built upon an artificial stock portfolio manufactured by 

Quellos and that such critical fact not only had not been disclosed to the 

Quellos clients and legal counsel, but that counsel would not have opined 

favorably as to POINT's legality had the true facts been revealed to them. 

Moreover, Quellos and Euram principals had explicitly discussed the risk 
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of claims based on the lack of disclosure. Even in the absence of such 

explicit discussions, the potential for claims arising from the disallowance 

of claimed tax benefits was manifest. An objective observer armed with 

the same knowledge should have foreseen the potential for such claims, 

and the Insureds here actually did foresee such claims. See Carolina Cas., 

2010 WL 1849230, at * 11 (holding coverage excluded because "[a] 

reasonable attorney with [insured]'s knowledge of these facts would have 

understood that a claim might arise" where client's lawsuit had been 

dismissed for lack of prosecution, client had filed bar grievance, and 

insured fabricated letters attached as exhibits to response to bar 

investigator).6 As the Prior Knowledge Exclusion applies to "any claim" 

arising from such facts and circumstances and applies if Quellos or "any 

Other recent cases from outside Washington have similarly resulted in summary 
judgments for insurers under substantially similar prior knowledge clauses and analogous 
factual circumstances. See Schwartz Manes Ruby & Slovin, L.P.A. v. Monitor Liab. 
Managers., LLC, No. 09cv790, 2011 WL 3627287, at *5 (S.D. Ohio Aug. 17,2011) 
(holding that insured law firm "either knew or could have reasonably foreseen that [its] 
handling of the Kissel matter might be the basis of a malpractice claim" where firm failed 
to appear for trial, judgment was entered against client, and new counsel advised that 
insured was responsible); Capitol Specialty Ins. Corp. v. Sanford Willels & Heisler, LLP, 
793 F. Supp. 2d 399, 411 (D.D.C. 20 II) (applying objective standard and holding that 
insured law firm had a basis to believe that an act or omission might reasonably be 
expected to be the basis of a claim where dismissal of clients' lawsuit "would clearly put 
a lawyer on notice of the possibility of a malpractice claim"); Cuthill & Eddy, LLC v. 
Continental Cas. Co., 784 F. Supp. 2d 1331, 1341-42 (M.D. Fla. 20 II) (granting 
summary judgment to insurer where insured accounting firm had reason to believe that 
client would file claim arising from tax preparation work where counsel for clients 
suggested that accounting firm had committed professional malpractice and firm 
internally discussed potential settlement before suit was brought) . 
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of its ... officers [or] employees" have such knowledge, the Prior 

Knowledge Exclusion therefore bars coverage for all of the POINT 

Claims. See supra at 30-33. 

The trial court did not specifically address the Prior Knowledge 

Exclusion other than to find summary judgment unavailable for "similar 

reasons" it discussed in connection with the Fraud Exclusion and Knowing 

Wrongful Act Exclusion. Again, as to those contract provisions, the trial 

court merely pointed to "a potential conflict . .. between the severability 

clause and the arising out of language." RP 96:6-8. But the Prior 

Knowledge Exclusion is not subject to any severability or non-imputation 

clause. The non-imputation clause contained in the Primary Policy by its 

terms applies solely to specifically enumerated exclusions-"exclusions 

1.1) through 5)." CP 91. The Prior Knowledge Exclusion does not appear 

among exclusions 1.1) through 5); it appears instead in the 2000-2004 

Application. Thus, as officers and/or employees of Quellos, Greenstein's 

and Wilk's knowledge "of any fact or circumstances which might give rise 

to a claim" bars coverage to all Insureds with respect to "any claim arising 

from such fact or circumstances." CP 1122, Section VI (Ex. E). The trial 

court did not offer any rationale as to why all of the POINT Claims do not 

grow out of the pre-inception knowledge of Greenstein and Wilk of 

POINT's fraudulent underpinnings, and indeed, there is none. 
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Accordingly, the Insurers are entitled to summary judgment on the basis of 

the Prior Knowledge Exclusion. 

2. The Knowing Wrongful Act Exclusion Similarly Erects 
a Complete Bar to Coverage for the POINT Claims. 

The Knowing Wrongful Act Exclusion likewise sweeps all of the 

POINT Claims into its ambit. That provision bars coverage for "any 

actual or alleged Wrongful Act committed with knowledge that it was a 

Wrongful Act." CP 54, Section 4.1.3. The exclusion's broad scope 

extends beyond the Prior Knowledge Exclusion, encompassing knowingly 

committed Wrongful Acts whenever they occur. The Wrongful Acts 

committed by the Insureds with knowledge of their wrongfulness here 

include all of those pre-dating the 2000-2004 policy plus Greenstein's and 

Wilk's continuation of their admitted conspiracy to defraud the IRS up 

through 2005. Following completion of all ofthe POINT transactions in 

2001 and filing of the relevant tax returns by 2002, "[w]hen these returns 

came under audit, the defendants gave the taxpayers and their advisors the 

same false information and documentation and the defendants knew that 

the taxpayers and their advisors would use the false information and 

documentation in responding to the IRS." CP 947 (Ex. C) (emphasis 

added); CP 959 (Ex. D). 
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As the POINT matters all involve the same Wrongful Acts 

constituting the conspiracy to defraud, the Knowing Wrongful Act 

Exclusion precludes coverage under the Federal Policy. Although the 

Primary Policy's non-imputation clause applies to the Knowing Wrongful 

Act Exclusion, that clause does not materially affect the availability of 

coverage for the same reasons it does not do so with respect to the Fraud 

Exclusion: at best, it preserves coverage only for non-culpable Individual 

Insureds, and the sums incurred by such individuals do not even remotely 

approach the Federal Policy's attachment point. See supra at 34-37. 

3. Quellos Also Cannot Evade the Preclusive Effect of the 
Continuity Date Exclusion. 

Finally, the Continuity Date Exclusion applies on a similar basis as 

both the Prior Knowledge and Knowing Wrongful Act Exclusions. The 

Continuity Date Exclusion provides that the Primary Policy "does not 

apply ... to any actual or alleged Wrongful Act occurring prior to the 

Continuity Date specified in Item 6 of the Declarations, if on or before 

such Continuity Date, any Insured [1] knew of such Wrongful Act or [2] 

could have reasonably foreseen that such Wrongful Act could lead to a 

claim." CP 54-55, Section 4.11.4. Although Quellos argued below that the 

Continuity Dates for some of the Quellos entities responsible for POINT 

pre-date POINT's development and implementation, see CP 78, Quellos 
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seeks sums incurred on behalf of "Quellos Group LLC," which is the only 

plaintiff in this litigation. The August 25, 2000 Continuity Date 

applicable to Quellos Group, LLC post-dates POINT's creation and the 

implementation of half of the relevant transactions. CP 78. 

Moreover, the non-imputation clause does not apply to the 

Continuity Date Exclusion. To the extent that the Continuity Date 

Exclusion requires knowledge of Wrongful Acts committed prior to 

August 25, 2000, the same factual predicate applicable to the Prior 

Knowledge Exclusion applies. See supra at 40-42. To the extent that the 

Continuity Date Exclusion bars coverage based on an objective evaluation 

of the potential for claims based on the facts known to any Insured, the 

same analysis as that applicable to the Prior Knowledge Exclusion and the 

same factual predicate for the Knowing Wrongful Act Exclusion applies. 

See supra at 44-45. 

In any event, whichever variation on the "prior knowledge" theme 

one chooses, the conclusion remains the same: Quellos's CEO and 

principal knew before the first POINT transaction had been completed that 

the strategy rested on a "synthetic" foundation that could not bear its 

weight, that the economic substance justifying the strategy was illusory, 

and that the clients to whom Quellos marketed the strategy could not have 

appreciated those facts because they were not disclosed to them. In such 
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circumstances, IRS scrutiny and corresponding claims were a virtual 

certainty. Accordingly, the Federal Policy affords no coverage for them. 

VII. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, Federal respectfully requests, to the 

extent that the Court concludes that the limits of the AISLIC primary 

policy have been fully exhausted and the Federal Policy potentially applies 

to the POINT Claims, that the Court reverse the trial court's order granting 

partial summary judgment in favor of the Insurers and instead enter 

judgment in favor of the Insurers dismissing all of Quellos's claims. 

Dated: August 3, 2012 
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REDACTED 

THE HONORABLE DEAN S. LUM 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR KING COUNTY 

. QUELLOS GROUP LtC, 

Plaintiff, '. 

v. 

FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY;' 
INDIAN HARBOR INSURANCE 
COMPANY; STEADFAST INSURANCE 
COMPANY; AND NUTMEG INSURANCE 
COMPANY, 

Defendants. 

No.: 10-2-41637-4 SEA 

PLAINTIFF QUELLOS .GROUP 
LLC'S RESPONSES AND 
OnJECTIONS TO DEFENDANT 
INDIAN HARBOR INSURANCE 
COMPANY'S FIRST SET OF 
INTERROGATORIES TO 
PLAINTIFF 

Pursuant to Washington Superior Court Civil Rules ("Washington Civil Rules'') 26 

and 33, PlaintiffQuellos Group LLC. e'QueIIos" or "Plaintiff'), by and through·their 

undersigne~ CO\U1sel, Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP, hereby respond and object to 

Defendant Ind.ian Harbor Insurance Company's ("Indian Harbor").First SetofInterrogatories 

to Plaintiff, dated August 31, 2011, as follows: 

GENERAL OBJECTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 

1. QueUos obj ects to Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent they seek to 

impose obligations upon Plaintiffs beyond those required by the Washington Civil Rules, the 

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO FIRST SET OF 
IN1ERROGA TORIES - '1 
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L RESPONSES SUBJECT TQCONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT AS THEY 
LATEDTO 

nEOAcr:c. 
Local Rules, or any other Order of thi,s Court. Plaintiffs. will interpret each defiliition, and 

interpret and respond to each Interrogatory, in a manner consistent :with its obligations under 

the Washington Civil Rules or any applicable Order of this Court. 

2. Quellos objects to Indi.an Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent they seek 

information or documents prote<:ted by a confidentiality agreement, the attomey-client 

privilege, the work-product doctrine, the joint-defense privilege, or any other applicable 

privilege or immunity from discovery. None of Quellos' responses is intended, Or should be 

construed, as a waiver or relinquishment of any part of the protection afforded by a 

confidentiality agreement, the attomey-client privilege, the work-product doctrine, the joint 

-def~nSe privilege, or any other applicable privilege or immunity from discovery. 

. 3. Queilos objects to Indian Harbor's Interroga~ories to the extent they seek 

infonnation or materials already in Indian Harbor's possession, custody or control, or that are 

publicly available to Indian Harbor. 

4. Quellos objects to Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent they requite 

queUos to formulate legal conclusions-or conclusions of fact in order to determine what 

infonnation or documents are sought 

5. No agreement by QueUos to providy information or documents in response to 

. an Interrogatory if it exists shall in any way be construed as an admission that in fact any 

responsive information or documents exists. By responding to an Interrogatory, QueUos does 

not accept, admit, or concede any assertions, characterizations, or implications contained 

therein. A response to an Interrogatory is orUy a representation thatnon-privileged and 

of!1erwise unprotected information will be made available, subject to objections, if it exists. 

6. No agreement by QueUos to provide information or documents in response ~o 

an Interrogatory shall be construed as a waiver of QueUos' right to object to the use of those 

information or documents in trial or any other proceeding in this or any other action. 
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7. QueUos objects to Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent that they are 

premature. Plaintiffs reserve the right.to amend or supplement il;s Responses and Objections. 

8. Quellos objects ~o Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent·that they are 
vague and ambiguous and do not des~ribe with reasonable specificity the information 

r~uested. 

9. Quellos objects to Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent they seek 

confidential or proprietary business information. 

10. QueUos objects to Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent they are 

overbroad, unduly burdensome, duplicative; or redundant. 

11. Quellos objects to Indian Harbor's Interrogatories to the extent they .seek 

information that is irrelevant to the subject l1).atter of the lawsuit and(or is not reasonably 

calculated to lead to discovery. of relevant evidence. 

12. These Generol Objections and Limitations apply to each Interrogatory as 

though restated in full in the specific responses that follow. The failure to mention any of the 

foregoing General Objections and Limitations in the specific responses set forth below shall 

not be deemed a waiver of such objections or limitations. 

OBJECTIONS TO INSTRUCTIONS AND DEFINITIONS 

13. . QueUos objects to Indian Harbor's Instructions, including but not limited to, 

Instruction No.6, to the extent they seek infonnationor materials already in Indian Harbor's 

possession, custody or control,.. or that are publicly avanab~e to bidian Harbor. 

14. Quellos objects to Instruction No.7 to the extent it purports to require QueUos 

to seek any documents or infonnation not within QueUo.s' possession, custody, or ~ntrol. 
. . 

"15. Quellos objects to the definition of "you" or "your" or "Quell os" on the 

grounds that it is 'overbroad, unduly burdensome, and purports to require Plaintiffs to produce 

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO FIRST SET OF 
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docUments protected by the attorney-client privilege, attorney work-product doctrine and any 

other applicable privileges, protecti(>ns and immunities from discovery, or to produce 

documents not within its possession, custody or control. 

16. Quellos objects to the definition of "ell" to the extent it purports to require the 

production of cumulative or duplicative information or otherwise imposes a burden on 

Plaintiffs that outweighs the benefit of the documents sought, 

17. Quellos objects to the definition of "documents" on the grounds that it is 

overbroad and unduly burd~some, 

18. Quellos objects to the definitiO'n of "identifY:'· "identity" or "identification" on 

the grounds that it is overbroad and unduly burdensome, and to the extent that it purports to 

require Quellos to seek any documents or infonnation not within its possession, custody. or 

control, or to the extent that it seeks information or documents that may be derived or 

ascer1:aihed from some other source that is more convenient, leSs burdensome, or less 

ex.pensive than the imposition of this defInition on QueUos. 

19. Quellos objects to the'definition of "describe" on the grounds that it is 

overbroad and unduly burdensome, and to the extent that it purports to require Quellos to seek 

any documents ~r infonnation not within its POSs~slon, custody, or control, or to the extent 

that it seeks infonnation that may be derived or ascertained from some other source that is 

more convenient, less burdensome, or less expensive than the imposition of this definition on . 

QueUos. 
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20. Quellos objects to the definition of "representative" on the grounds that it is 

overbroad and unduly burdensome, and to the extent that it pttrports to require Quello:l to seek . 

any documents or information not within its possession, custody, or control. 

OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES TO INTERROGATORIES 

. Subject to the objections set forth 'above, Quellos objects .and responds to Indian . 

Harbor's Interrogatories as follows: 

fnterrogatory No.1: 

Identify all members of Quellos Group, LLC at the time of the filing of the Complaint 

Response: 

Quellos hereby incorporates each of the foregoing General Objections and Objections 

to Instructions and Definitions, including but not limited. to, Objection Nos. 15 and 16. 

Quellos further objects to Interrogatory No. 1 on the grounds that the definition of "identify" 

is overbroad and unduly burdensome, and to the extent this Interrogatory purports to require 

QueUos to seek infonnation that may be derived or ascertained from some other source that is 

more convenient, less burdensome, or less e~ive than the imposition of this Interrogatory 

on QueUos. Quellos also objects to this Interrogatory on the grounds that it seeks infonnation 

that is irrelevant to the subject matter of the lawsuit andlor is not reasonably calculated to lead 

to discovery of relevant evidence. 

, Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, QueUos responds as follows: 

To the best of Quellos' knowledge, the following individuals, who resided in the ~ame states 

as do various of the defendants in this action, were members of Quellos at the time Quellos 

filed its Complaint: 
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Poswl 
Name Street Address CIty State Code 

RICHARD E. HALPERIN 15 STRAlFORD ROAD HARRISON NY IOS28 

ANDREW I. ROBBINS 9 WOODBURY FARMS DRlVE WOODBURY NY 1I797 

cnmIIA O. BBBRBOWER 825 EfOHTH AVENUE. ·SUITE 4050 NEW YORK NY 98105 

BRUCE M. DRESNER 10 PHEASANT RIDGE ROAD NEWTOWN CT 98115 

MIHtR. BRATrACHARYA ·22 CHURCH LANE SOUTH SCARSDALB NY 98118 

DAVID MULLANE 9 FlEtDSTONE ROAD RYE NY 90274 

MlcaAEL J. LINN 900 PARK AVENUE. JA 'NEWYORK NY 98027 
RICHARD SACHS 88 CENTIlAL PARK WEST APARTMENT 45 NEW YORK NY 98102 
OARY A. BUDLOW 37 FOREST DRIVE SHORT HILLS . NJ lOSal 
STHVB M. BeROlDA 10 RAYMOND LANE BELLEMEAO NJ 98071 

JOHNT. R.YAN .( BRIDLE PATH . . LAWRBNCBVlLLB N1 98040 

PETER. J. KRZYST5K. 2419 ORCHARD CREST MANASQUAN NJ 98074 

NICHOLAS SIDER,ATOS 208 ALDI!RSHOT LANE MANHASSET NY 10028 

MARK SCHWAR.TZ 453 HARRIS ROAD BEDFORD HlLI.S NY 08648 

InterrogatOIT No.2: 

Identify and d~scribe each of the POINT Claims referenced in your Complaint. In r esponding 
to this interrogatory. please identify for. each such claim: 

(i) TIle claimant, agency and/or. other person initiating the claim. 

(ii) The entity, individual and/or other person to whom the matter was asse rted. 

(iii) The date and manner by which Quellos learned of the claim. 

(iv) The date and manner by which QueUos contends it notified Indian Rarbo 
the claim (e.g., identify the pertinent communication to Indian Harbor). 

r of 

. . 

(v) How much QueUos expended indemnifying itself or indemnifying its offi 
and directors for their defense costs incurred in connection with the claim 

cers 
as 

(vi) 

(vii) 

Response: 

alleged in the Complaint ~ 17. 

How much in "other covered losses" QueUos incuned in connection with the 
sses. claim as alleged in the Complaint 1 80, and describe the nature of such 10 

All facts supporting your contention that the claim is.covered by the p~n cies. . 

tions QueUos hereby incorporates each of the foregoing General Objections and Objec 

to Instructions and Definitions, including but DOt limited to, Objection Nos. 15 and 16. I n 

~ddition, QueUos objects to Interrogatory No. 2 on the grounds that it, and the definition sor 

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO FIRST SET OF KILPA 1RICK TOWNSEND. AND STOC)("]1 ONLL.P 

INTERROGATORIES - 6 1420 fJFfH A VENUE, SUITE 4400 
SEATTLE, WA 9810\-2125 
{206} <Hi7-9600 

U5lOO8 'PJ&S19. t 

Page 1279 



21626464 

1 

2 

3 

4 

S 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

· 22 

23 

24 

2S 

~~ 
26 

L RESPONSES SIm.IECT TO CONFID~N'l1ALIlY,AGREEMENT AS THEY 
L,A.TED TO' Q;::-f)1.~t"'-;-;:::-l~ ft \. ~-{ ...... 5_ • ... . ..1 1_ f 

"identifY' and "describe," are overbroad and imduly burdensome and seeks information o~ 

documents that may be within Indian Harbor's custody or control, or derived or ascertained 

from some other source that is more convenient or less burdensome than the imposition of this 

Interrogat9ry on QueUos. QueUos further objects to this Interrogatory to the extent it requests 

information that is irrelevant to the subject matter of the lawsuit andlor is not reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of adIDissible evidence. QueUos alSo objects to this 

Interrogatory as premature because discovery has just conunenced and is ongoing. QueUos 

further objects to this Interrogatory to the extent it seeks information or documents protected 

by the attorney-client privilege, the work-product doctrine, the joint-<iefense priVilege, <;Ir any 

other applicable pri~ege or immunity from discovery. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objectio'ns, Quellos responds as 

,follows: Quellos provides responses below identifying certain information,requested in 

Interrogatory No.2 for each of the POINT Claims referenced in Quellos' Complaint. The 

costs listed in response to part (v) arc the total defense costs iricurred and submitted to , 

Indian Harbor as oftoday:s date and Quellos reserves its right to supplement the response 

below. The matter names provided below correspond to the descriptions provided in POINT 

invoices previously submitted to Indian Harbor. 

Saban Claim 

(i) 

(li) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Haim Saban, Cheryl Saban, and related trusts and entities ("Saban Parties"). 

Quellos Financial Advisors. LLC and Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC. 

In June 2005, the Saban Parties advised Quellos that they would consider 
legal action agRinst Quellos. 

,Quellos has given Indian Harbor notice of this claim and will produce 
documents from which responsive information may be obtained. 
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(v) 

(vi) 

Defense costs: $238,311.86. . . 
'.. REDf'/~TED 

Other covered lossesi .. 

Schein Clabn 

(i) Marvin Schein, Platinum Trading Parties. LLC, Cobalt Ttading Partners 
LLC, and Lawrence Gaslow,oet al. ("Schein Parties'~). 

\ 

(ii) Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC, and Quellos Group LLC. 

(iii) In March 2006, the Schein Parties advised Quetlos that they would consider 
legal action against Quellos. 

(iv) Quellos has given India,n Harbor notice of this claim and will produce 
. documents from which responsive information may be obtained. 

(v) Defense Costs: $19,450.58. 

(vi) Other covered losses~ 

IRS Investi°gation 

(i) Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"). 

(ii) Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC. 

(iii) On February 8, 2005, Quellos Group LLC received a summons from the 
[RS seeking doouments related to the POINT transaction. 

(iv) QueHos has given Indian Harbor notice ofthls claim and will pro~uce 
documents fi-om which respQDsive information may be obtained. 

(v) IRSIPOlNT defense costs: $536,861.12. 

(vi) Other covered losses: $0. 

United States Senate Investigation 

(i) United States Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations. 

(li) Quellos Group, LLC. 

(ui) On September 21,2005, QueUos received a subpoena from the 
United States Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations, seeking 
infOImation related to the POINT transaction strategy and interviews with 
certain Quellos employees. 
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(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

Quel10s has given Indian Harbor notice ofthis claim and wiil produce 
docwnents from which responsive infonnation may be ob~ained. 

U.S. Senate Investigation·defense costs: $1,072,519,46. 

Other covered losses: $0. 

United Sta tcs Attorney's Office 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

United States ~ttomey's office for the Western I?istrict of Washington. 

QueUos Holdings, Inc. and QueUos Group, LLC. 

In late January, ~OO7. QueUos was contacted by the United States Attorney's 
. office for the. W.estern District ofWasbington concerning the POINT 

. transaction .. On July 3, 2007 and June 19,2008, ·QueUos received a grand 
jury subpoena for documents and infonnation related to the POINT 
transaction. . 

QueUos has given Indian Harbor notice of this claim and will produc~ 
documents from which responsive infonnation may be obtained. 

Defense costs: 

MaHer Description Defense Cost 
Total 

GreensteinIWilk (on behalf of GreensteinIWilk)(pre- $17,443,623.57 
guilty plea) 

Hirata $220,137.62 

Hanson $84,836.Q7 
- . 

Robbins $279;583.71 

Feinglass $77,473.47 

Dennis $525.00 

Bonge $324,870.83 

Scheinfeld $197,328.90 

McNamara $5,137.50 . 

White $79,760.33 

POINT Investigation $5,286,481.31 

POINT GreensteinlWilk (on behalf of Quellos) . . . $50,227.21 

USAG Seattle $52,596.05 
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(vi) 

California 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(Iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

Additional 

USAO Investigation $29,175.40 

TOTAL: $24.131,756.97 

Other Covered Losses: $0. 
.. 

Franchise Tax Board Matters 

California Franchise Tax Board ("CFTBtJ). 

Quellos Financial Advisors, LLC. 

On May 15,2008, Quellos received a letter from the CFTB indicating the 
board's intention to take action against Quellos with regard to the POINT 
transaction. The eFTB also sent notices related to eFTS matters on July 
17, 2008, September 2, 2008, and October 2 I, 2009. 

Quellos has given fudian Harbor notice of this claim and will produce 
documents from which responsive infonnation may be obtained. 

Defense costs: 

Matter Description Defense Cost Total 

California Franchise Tax Board . $44,543·90 

Promoter Audit $362,579.35 

CaliforD;ia State Promoter Penalty $952,155.17 

TOTAL: $1,359,277.52 

Other Covered Losses: $0. 

POINT Related Defense Costs 

Que Hos has incurred additional costs for legal work that benefited the defense ~f its 

officers and directors or Quellos in multiple noticed matters listed above, including but not 

e Saban and Schein matters. These additional costs are as follows: limited to. th 

Matter Description Defense Cost Total 

POINT Civil Litigation .. $259,192.59 
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POINT General $223,049.81 

TOTAL: $482,242.40 

In response to part (vii) of Int~rrogatory No.2, QueUos responds that the Indian 

Harbor 2004-2005 Ex~ss Policy sold to QueUos provides coverage for the investigations 

andJawsuits threatened or commenced against Quellos' and certain of its current or former 

directors and officers (the ''POINT Claims''). The POINT Claims involve losses incurred by 

QueJlos in connection with lawsuits and other claims, including criminal and regulatory 

investigations, alleging wrongful acts committed by Quellos while per~Olming professional 

s~ces related to the POINT transaction. The POlNT Claims required Quellos andlor its 

directors and officers to incur costs defending and settling these claims. Quellos reserves its. 

right to amend or supplement its response to Interrogatory No.2. 

14 . Interr~gatory No.3: 

15 

16 

17 

Identify all payments made by any insurers to you or on your behalf in connection with !he 
POlNT Claims, including but not limited to the insurer making each payment, the recipient 
of each payment, the amount of each payment, the date of each payment. and the specific 
action or matter to which each payment pertains. 

18 . Response: 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

·25 

26 

Quellos hereby incorporates each of the foregoing General Objections and Objections 

to Instructions and befinitions, including but not limited to, Objection Nos. 14 and 15. . 

Quellos further objects to Interrogatory No.3 on the grounds that !he definition of "identify" 

is overbroad and unduly burdensome, and to the extent this Interrogatory purports to require 

Quellos to seek infonnation that may be derived or ascertained from some other source that is 

more convenient, less burdensome. or less expensive than that requested by this Interrogatory. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objectioIl:'l. Quellos responds as 
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fo[Iows: American International Specially Lines Insurance Company ("AISLIC") 'is the 

only insurer to pay QueUos in connection with the POINT claims and did so under its 2004-

~OP5 primary policy. Policy No. 885-37-42 ("AISLIC Primary Policy"). By letter dated 

July 13,2009, AISLIC infonned QueUos tha1it was recognizing $6,357,973.58 of submitted 

defense costs and: ',: E0j\CTcD : '"rAfter deducting the AISLIC Prirriary 
,,: " ' " , ' 

Policy's $2,500,000 retention, AISLIC paid to QueUos $4,982,973.58 (the "AlSLIe 

Payment"). Quellos received the AISLIC Payment on August 28, 2009. The following is a 

more detailed breakout of the AISLIC Payment: 

Matter Description Defense Cost Total I 
r. ~" , ~ " ,\ , -,-.- -r-.... ----------------I~ r~EOA~jTED 
i\ i" d::: LJ i-\ '..... n: ,./ 

12 GreensteinlWilk Defense Costs $2,476,632.15 ' -

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Other Director and Officer Defense Costs $566,232.81 

Additional Matters Listed inResponse to Interrogatory No: 2 '$3,315,108.62 

Retention ($2,500,000) 
" 

TOTAL: $4,982.973.58 · 

.. !nterrogfltory No.4: 

Itemize and describe all damages that you are claiming against Indian Harbor in connection 
, With the Fifth Cause of Action in your Complaint. 

Response: 

QueUos hereby incorporates each of the foregoing General Objections and Objecti~ns 

to Instructions and Definitions, including but not limited to, Objection Nos. 14 and 15. 

QueUos further objects to Interrogatory No.4 to the extent it is duplicative of Interrogatory 

No.2. In addition, QueUos objects to Interrogatory No.4 on the grounds that the definition of 

"describe" is overbroad' and unduly bmdensome, and to the extent this Interrogatory purports 

to require Quellos to seek information that may be derived or ascertained from some other 
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LATEDTo. 

source that is more convenient, less burdensome, or less expensive than that requested by this 

Interrogatory. . . 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, QueUos responds as 

follows; The damages cLaimed against Indian Harbor in connectiQn with the Fifth Cause of 

Action in QueUos' Complaint are those exceeding the· limits of the underlying 2004-2005 

policies, which"are listed in response to pint (v) ofInterrogatory No.2, as well as defense 

costs and other covered losses that it mar incur in the future in connection with the matters 

listed in response to Interrogatory No.2. In additioll, QueUos is seeking interest at the 

legally prescribed rate, and attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred in bringing this 

action to obtain the benefits of the 2004-2005 Indian Harbor Excess Policy. 

Interrogatory No.5: 

Itemize and describe all damages that you are claiming against Indian Harbor in connection ' 
with the Sixth Caus~ of Action in your Complaint . 

Response: 

QueUos hereby incorporates each of the foregoing General ObJections and Objections 

to Instructions and Definitions, including but not limited to, Objection Nos. 14 and 15. 

Quellos further objects to Interrogatory No.5 to the extent it is duplicative of Interrogatory 

No.2. In addition, QueUos further objects to Interrogatory N<1. 4 on the grounds that the 

definition of "describe" is overbroad and unduly burdensome, and to the extent this 

Interrogatory purports to require Quellos to seek infonnation that may be derived or 

ascertained from some other source that is more convenient, less burdensome, or less 

expensive than that requested by this Interrogatory. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, QueUos responds as 
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follows: The damages claimed against Indian Harbor in connection with the Sixth Cause of 

Action in QueUos' Complaint are those. exceeding the liniits of the underlying 2004-2005 

policies, which are listed in response to part (vi) of Interrogatory No.2, as well as and other 

covered losses that it may incur in the future in connection with the matters listed in 

response to Interrogatory No.2. In addition, QueUos is seeking, interest at the legally 

prescribed rate, and attorneys' fees and other expenses incUrred in bringing this action to 

obtain the benefits of2004-2005 Indian Harbor Ex~ess Policy. 

Intet'rogatory No.6 

If you contend that any provision of the Primary Policy is ambiguous, please identify each 
such provision and describe in detail the basis for your contention, including but not limited to 
references to all relevant documents and communications. persons with knowledge relating to 
your contention. expert opinion(s), and any other materials or facts you believe support this 
contention. 

Response: 

QueUos hereby incorporates each· of the foregoing General Objections and Objections 

to Instructions and Definitions, including but not limited (0. Objection Nos. 14, 15, 16 • .17, 

and 18. In addition. Quellos objects to Interrogatory No. 6 on 1;I1e grounds that it is premature 

because Indian Harbor has yet to take a definitive coverage position. QueUos further objects 

to this ~terrogatory to the extent it seeks information or documents protected by the attomey

client privilege, the work-product.doctrine, the joint-ciefense privilege, or any other applicable 

privilege or immunity from discovery. QueUos also objects to this Interrogatory to the extent 
. . 

it requires QueUos to formulate a legal conclusion. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Quellos responds as follows: 

Indian Harbor has yet to defmitively state its basis for denying coverage for each of the 

POINT Claims identified in response to Interrogatory No.2, including its position regarding 
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the terms and conditions of the AISLlC Primary Policy tO,which the Indian Harbor Policy 

follows fonn. ' Until suph time as Indian Harbor definitively takes a position on key policy 

tenns~ QueUos is not able t9 assess whether it has specific disagreements with Indian Harbor's 

interpretations of the AISLIC Primary Policy and, based on such stated coverage position, 

whether Quellos believes that any specific provision of the policy is ambiguous., 

Interrogatory No: 7: 

If you contend that any prpVl.sion of the Indian HarborPollcy is ambiguous, please identify 
each such 'provision and describe in detail the basis for your contention, including bUt not . 
limited to references to all relevant documents and communications. persons with knowledge 
relating to your contention, expert opinion(s), and any o~er materials or fucts you believe 
support this contention. 

Response: 

QueUos hereby incorporates each of the foregoing Geneml Objections and ObjectioIlS 

to Instruc~ons and Definitions, including but not limited to, Objection Nos. 14, IS, 16, 17, 

and 18 .. 'Quellos further objectS to hrterrogatory No.7 on the grounds that it is premature 

because Indian Harbor has yet to take a "efinitive coverage position in this action. QueUos 

further objectS to this Interrogatory to the extent it seeks information or documents protected 

by the a11omey .. client privilege. the work-product doctrine, the joint-defense privilege, or any 

other applicable privilege or immunity from discovery. QueUos also objects to this 

Interrogatory to the extent it requires QueUos .to formulate a legal conclusion. 

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, queUos responds as fonows: 

Indian Harbor has yet to definitively state its basis for denying coverage for each of the 

POINT Claims identified in response to Interrogatory No.2, including i~ coverage position 
, , 

regarding the terms and cQnditions of the 2004-2005 Indian Harbor Excess PoHcy. Until such 

time as Indian Harbor definitively takes a position on key policy terms, QueUos is not able to 
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assess whether it has specific disagreements with Indian Harbor's interpretations of the 2004-

2005 Indian Harbor Excess Policy and, based on such stated coverage position, whether 

QueUos believes that any specific provision of the policy is ambiguous. 

Interrogatory No.8: 

If you contend that any conduct to which Jeffrey Greenstein pled guilty on September 9, . 
2010, was not within the scope of his duties on behalf of QueUos, identify the specific act(s) 
and describe the factual basis for your contention that such act(s) were not within the sco~ of 
his employment,includlng but not limited to references to all relevant documents and 
cornmunicati.o~, persons with knowledge relating to.your contention., expert opinion(s), and 
any other materials or facts you believe support this contention. ' 

10 . Response: 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Quellos hereby in~orates each of the foregoing General Objections and 

Objections to Instructions and Definitions; including but not limited to, Objection Nos .. 14, 

15,16, 17, and 1&. QueUos further objects to Interrogatory No.8 on the grounds that it is 

vague, ambiguous and unintelligible as phrased. 

Interrogatory. No .. 9l 

!fyou contend that any conduct to which Charles Wilk pled guilty on September 9, 2010, was 
not within the scope of his duties on behalf of Quellos, identify the specific act(s) and 
describe the factual basis for yeur contention that such oot(s) were not within the scope of his 
employment, including but not limited to references to all relevant documents and 
communications, persons with knowledge relating to your contention, expert opinion(s), and 
any other materiiUs or faots ·y.ou believe support this contention. 

20 . Response: 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

QueUos hereby incorpomtes each of the foregoing General Objections and 

Objections to Instructions and Definitions, including but not limited to, Objection Nos. 14, 

15, 16, 17, and 18. QueUos further objects to Interrogatory No. 9 on the grounds that it is 

vague, ambiguous and unintelligible as phrased. 
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DATED: October {Y:J .2011 

KILPATRICK, TOWNSEND & 
STOCKTON,LLP . 

By~I1·~~~ 
Barry J. Fleishman (pro Hac Vice) 
Helen K. Michael (pro Hac Vice) 
Bric M. Gold (pro Hac Vice) 
607 14th Street, NW Suite 900 
Washington, DC 20005 
Telephone: (21)2) 508-5800 
Facsimile: (202) 508-5858 

Attorneys for Plainttl! Queltos Group LLC 

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO FIRST SET OF 
INTERROGATORIES - l7 

KILPATRICK TOWNSEND AliD STOCKTON U.P 
1420 FlF11i AVENUE, SUTrB 4400 
SEATILE, WA 98101·2m 
(206) 467·9600 

VSZOOI2OJIS19.1 
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VERIFICATION 

My name is Nonn Bonge. I am the ChiefFinanciaI Officer at QueUos Group LLC and I have 

the authOrity to verify these discovery ~nses. I declare under the penalty of petjury under- the laws 

of the State of Washington that the aoove anSwers (0 Defendant Indian. Barbor Insurence ComptUly's 

First Set of rnterrogatories to Plaintiff are true and correct based on my understanding. Emd belief. 

DATIID this 18th day of October. 2011. 

tIS2OOt~7.' 
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Proof of Service 

The undersigned hereby certifies and declares under penalty of peIjury that on this 

18th day of October, 2011, I caused to be served PlaintitfQuellos Group LLC's Responses 

and Objections to Defendant Indian Harbor Insurance Company's First Set of Interrogatories 

to P1ai.ntiff; via electronic mail and first class mail, to the following: 

000 . Wilson, Jr. 
i1son Smith Cochran Dickerson 

I21S Fourth Avenue. Suite 1700 
eattie, WA 98161 

aniel J. Standish 
P. Seligman 

lley Rein LLP . 
1776 K Street. NW 

ashington, DC 20006 

brlela Richeimer 

ounsel for Federal Insurance Company 

" e S. Ahari 
tephanie T. Schmelz 
oIly B. Thoerig 
IOutman Sanders LLP 
01 9th Street, N. W. Suite 1000 
ashington, D.C, 20004 

ounselfor Indian Harbor Insurance 
.. . . . - . -

BXEqJTED this 18th day of October, 2011, at Washington, District of Columbia. 
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P"mated 10' tbe C mt ~y the foreman Df tK 
Grad JUlY III epen Cont, in the PUltlU of 
tl&eGra8d JnQ aad FILED in T~e U.S. 
DISTRICT COURT at Seattle, W88hllgtOI. 

Hon. Ricardo' S. Martinez 

1111111 111111111111111111111111 11111 IIlI 1111 
1111111111111111111111111111 11111111111 
OS-CR-00296-lNDI 

~(i-N.2tc't-,l . -7 . Dq.~ 
. /. ~STATESDISTRICTCOURT 

WES1ERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON . 
ATSEAITLE. 

Plaintiff, 
. v. 

NO. CR08~0296RSM 

SECOND SUPERSEDING 
INDICTMENT 

12 JEFfREY I. GREENSTEIN and 
CHARLES H. WILK., 

13 

14 
Defendants. 

15' THE GRAND JURy CHARGES THAT: 

16 

17 

18 
1. 

COUNT! . 
(Conspiracy, to Defraud mS) 

Beginning at a time unknown, but no later than in or about Jooe 1999, and 

continuing until in or about August 2006, at Seattle, Washington, within the Western 
19 

District of Washington and elsewhere, JEFFREY 1. GREENS1EIN and CHARLES H. 
20 

21 
WILK, and others known and unlm6wn, did knowingly conspire, combine, confederate 

and agree to defraud the United States ~nd an agency thereof, to wit, the Internal Revenue 
22 

Service (he~inafter, "IRS") of the United States Department of Treasury, for the purpose 
23 

of impeding, impairing, defeating and obstructing the lawful governmental functions of 
24 

the IRS in the ascertainment, evaluation, assessment~ and collection of incomes taxes, 
25 

26 

27 

28 

interest, and penalties. 

Second Superseding Indictment! 
Greenstein et all CR08-296RSM 1 
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Case, 2:08~cr~00296-RSM Document 92 Filed 12/30/2009 Page 2 of 42 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Defendants and Other Relevant Parties. 

At all times relevant to this Second Superseding Indictment: 

2. Quellos Group, L.L.C. (hereinafter "Quell os"), formerly known as Quadra 

5 Capital Management, L.P., was an inveStment management services firm founded in or 

6 about 1994 and headquartered in Seattle, Washington. 

7 3. . Defendant JEFFREY ~, GREENSTEIN was a founder and Chief Executive 

8 Officer of Quellos. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN has a bachelors degree in finance and 

9 extensive experience dealing in complex securities and derivative markets. Prior to 

10 founding QueUos, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN was a General Partner of another 

11 registered investment advisory firm that provided alternative ~vestment strategies 

12 through the use of derivatives and hedging transactions. Previous to that, JEF;FREY I. 

13 GREENSTEIN, had been affiliated with a national.investment advisoty fIrm. marketing 

14 derivative securiiies to institutional clients. 

15 4. Beginning in or about 1996. JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN gained knowledge 
. ' 

16 and experience in tax shelters through work with certain national account~g firms on tax 

17 shelter strategies to include, among others, FLIP (Foreign Leveraged Investment 

18 Program), OPIS(Offshore Portfolio Inves~ent Strategy), and CDS (Contingent Deferred 

19 Swaps). JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, with others at QueUos, assisted national accounting 

20 finns by designing aspects .of FLIP and OPIS, and provided execution services in 

21 connection with approxiilla.tely: 150 individual FLIP and OPIS transactions. JEFFREY 1. 

22 GREENSTEIN. with others at Quellos, also promoted and proVided execution services 

23 for a number of CDS transactions. Through JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN's work on the 

24 various tax shelters, Quellos earned tens of millions of dollars in fees. Through 

25 JEFFREY 1. G~ENSTElN's involvement in FLIP and OPIS alone, QueUos earned 

. 26 between $25 million and $50 million in fees. In addition, JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN 

27 gained ftnther knowledge about tax shelters by personally participating in a FLIP shelter 

28 ·for himself. 

Second Superseding IndictmeDti 
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1 5. QueUos Customs Strategies, LLC (hereinafter "QCS"), was fonned in or 

2 about March 1999 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Quellos. QCS was formed with the 

3 goal of providing customized services to high net-worth individuals and families, 

4 including designing and implementmg customized tax shelter strategies to minimize or 

5 defer payment oftaxes. Through QCS, ffiFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN sought to capture a 

6 part of the lucrative tax shelter market from the national accounting fItms for themselves . 

. 7 JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN also sought to use these tax shelter strategies as a means to 

8 attract wealthy clients to the firm who could then be persuaded to invest their assets with 

9 QueUos, thereby expanding QueUos's investment business. One such tax shelter strategy 

10 develope<! and implemented by QCS was a strategy that came to be known as ''POINT'' 

11 (portfolio Optimized INvestment Transaction). . 

12 6. ' Defendant CHARLES H. WILK, a lawyer with a Masters Degree in tax 

13 law, joined Quellosin or about June 1999 as a principal. As part ofms duties, 

14 CHARLEs:a:. WILK directed QCS's tax shelter business. Prior to joining Quellos, 

15 CHARLES R WILK was !l semor manager with a national accounting firm, whose duties 

16 included providin~ tax shelter strategies for the accounting firm's wealthy clients. 

17 Previous to his position at the accounting firm, CHARLES H. WILK was an associate in 

18 the tax department of a national law fum. 

. 19 7. European American Investment Holdings.NY was incorporated in or about · 

20 June 1999 in the Netherlands Antilles. European American Investment Holdings Ny was 

21 ' a holding company under which a group of companies known as European American 

.22 Investment Group (hereinafter "Euram") was organized. Euram was formed by American 

23 and European investors, in part, to acquire an Austrian bank, which came to be known as 
24 European American Investment Bank AG. 

25 8. In or about 1999, principals from Quellos, including JEFFREY 1. 

26 GREENSTEIN, became shareholders in Euram and stood to profit from Euram's 

27 business. 

28 9. Of the other Euram companies, two United Kingdom-based subsidiaries, 

Second Superseding Indictment! 
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Case 2:08-cr -00296-RSM Document 92 Filed 12/30/2009 Page 4 of 42 

European American Corporate Services Limited and European American Advisors. 

2 Limited, focused on advising and providing structured fmancial products for high net 

3 worth individuals. The key members of the management ofEuram included: 

4 

5 

6 

7 Investments. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

C.D., Euram's Chief Executive Officer; 

J.S., Euram's Head of Tax and Structured Products; and 

R.P., Euram's Head of Ri sk Management.and Alternative 

8 10.· Beginning in or about late 1999 and continuing through in or about 2002, 

9 .C.D.,J.S., andRP. ofEuram assisted QueUos by providing execution services, such as 

10 drafting transactional documents and finding and appropriating offshore shell cOmpanies, . 

11 in furtherance of tax shelter strategies developed by QCS. Euram earned large fees· for its 

12 participation in. the tax shelter transactions developed and marketed by QCS, generally 

13 1 % of the tax loss desired by the taxpayer client 

14 11. Beginning in'or about 1999 and continuing through in or about 2000, 

15 Partner L.S.ofLaw Finp C.S. & M. LLP provided legal- advice to JEFFREY 1. 

16 GREENSTElNand CHARLES H. WlLK with respect to the development and 

17 Implementation of POINT, and issued legal opinion letters to at least four clients who 

18 entered into POINT taX shelter transactions. 

19 12, In 2001 and 2002, Law Firm B.C. LLP provided legal opinion letters to at 

20 . least two clients who entered into POINT tax sheltertransactions. 

21 B. . The POINT Tax Shelter. 

22 13. Beginning in or about 1999 and continuing through in or about 200l t 

23 JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN8Ild CHARLES H. WILK designed, 'marketed and 

24 implemented the tax shelt~r strategy known as POINT. In or about 2000 and 2001; six 

25 POINT tax shelters were ex~uted on behalf offive wealthy individuals: 

26 a. ~ 2000, Client M.z. executed a POINT tax shelter transaction with 

27 QueUos. Client M.Z.'s POINT tax shelter transaction was known as "Torens." 

28 b. In 2000, Client R.J. executed a POINT tax shelter transaction with 

I. ~~ond superseding Indictment! 
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Quellos. Client R.J;'s POINT tax shelter transaction was ,known as "Reka." 

2 c. In 2000, Client BJ. executed a POINT tax shelter transaction with 

3 Quellos. Client BJ. 's POINT tax shelter transaction was known as "Burgundy." 

4 d. In 2000 and then in 2001, Client M.S. executed two POINT tax 
5 shelter transactions with Quellos. Client M.S. 's POINT tax shelter transactions were 

6 known ~espectively as "Platinum" and "Cobalt." 

7 e. In 2001, Client H.S. executed a POINT tax shelter transa~ti~n with 

8 Quellos. Client H:S.'s POINT tax shelter transaction was known as "Titanium." 

9 14. The total .amount of fees paid by the clients to participate in POINT was 

10 'approximately $86 miUion: The clients who participated in the POINT tax shelter 

11 collectively sought to shelte:t: approximately $2 billion in capital gains and avoid payment 

12 of more than $400 million in federal taxes. 

13 15. .The objective of POINT was to offset capital gains and defer and reduce 

14 taxes on those gruns. In furtherance of this tax saving objecti~e, JEFFREY 1. ' 

15 GREENS1EIN and CHARLES It WThK, withtbe assistance ofC.D., ]'S., and R.P. of 

16 Euram, designed a series of transactions and executed those transactions on behalf of 

17 their clients in order to obtaiD the desired tax benefits. While each of the six POINT 

18 transactions varied somewhat in actual imp[ementation~ they typically included the 

19 following steps: 

20 a. During late 1999 and continuing through 2000, an "offshore 

21 investment fund" purportroly purchased shares of stock in' weUlmown,publicly-traded 

22 "technology companies. The fund then formed a number' of offshore partnership entities 

23 and contributed portions of its portfolio of stock to such partnerships. These partnership 

24 entities were ~own generically as "Special Ptirpose Vehicles" or '~SPVs." 

25 b, The fund then purportedly caused each SPY to issue "Covered 

26 Warrants" against their respective baskets of stocks. The Covered 'Warrants ~perated like 

27 a long-dated call, meaning that an outside investor could purchase the Warrant for a 

28 premium in return for the right in five years to purchase the stocks in the Spy at a set 

Second Superse<Iing Indictment! 
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price. In this case, each Covered Warrant was purportedly placed with a "bank" or some' 

2 other fmancial institution that purportedly paid millions in premiums to the SPVs for the 

3 Warrants. The institution then was purportedly responsible for further marketing the 

4 Warrantto others. 

5 c. Once the Warrants were issued, a U.S. taxpayer acquired from the 

6 offshore fur.ld the partnership interests in an SPV. At the time the client. acquired his or 

7 her partnership, the technology stocks that the fund had purportedly contributed to the 

8 partn~hip had fallen in value and, therefore, the partnership had built· in, unrealized 

9 , losses.' 

10 d. After the client acquired the partnership, he or she contributed to the 

11 partnership his or her oWil assets. These assets, typically other stock that the ,client 

12 desired to sell, had unrealiied gains. 

13 e. Shortly after the client contributed his or her own assets, within a 

14 matter, of two or three months, all or niQst of the assets within the partnership were sold, 

15 including the purported share$ oftechD.ology stock with the bwlt·in loss. The sale of the 

16 pre~existing portfolio also pmportedly triggered a cancellation of the "Covered Warrant" 

17 under terms that ultimately resulted in no economic impact on the par1neiship or the client 

18 who acquired the partnership. The client then offset the gains from his or her con1rlbuted 

19 assets with the 'alleged losses stemming from the pre~existlng portfolio. 
, , 

20 Subsequently, the cJient was able to draw out ofthe partnership, tax 

21 free, the proceeds up to the client's basis in the par1nership, or continue to maintain the 

22 proceeds within the partnership tax fr~, and invest it further. 

23 C. IRS Treatment of Tax Shelters. 

24 16. During all times relevant to this Second Superseding Indictmep.t, JEFFREY 
, , 

25 I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew. and understood that tax shelters that 

26 the IRS concluded were designed, marketed and implemented solely for the purpose of 

'2,7 providing clients with a way to defer or reduce tax, would be challenged by the IRS. In, 

28 that event, the IRS would seek to collect the unpaid taxes plus interest, and might also 
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seek to impose substantial penalties upon the clients. 

2 17. During all times relevant to this Second Superseding Indictment, JEFFREY 

J I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew and underStood that in order for a tax 

4 · shelter strategy to survive challenge by the IRS, taxpayers were generally required to 

5 demonstrate the following: 

6 a. . First. the individual transactions that comprised the shelter pos~sed 

7 real economic substance and were not sham 1nlnsactions; 

8 b. Second, the transactions that comprised the shelter were not pre-

9 arranged and orchestrated solely for the purpose of obtaining a tax benefit; and 

10 c. Third, the various 'parties involved in the transactions had a bona ·fide 

11 business purpose for engaging.in the transactions, i.e., that the client and -others had a 

12 - reasonable profit motive to take part in the transaction other than for tax sav4tgs. 

13 18. During all times relevant to this Second Superseding Indictment, lliFFREY 

14 I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK also knew and understOod in the event that 

15 the IRS disallowed a benefit obtained as a result of a tax shelter. the IRS could impose 

16 substantial penalties ranging from 20% to 40% of the underpayment attributable to the' 

17 shelter, unless the claimed tax benefit was supported by an independent legal opinion. 

18 reasonably relied upon by the taxpayer in good faith. Therefore, JEFFREY 1. 

19 GREENSlEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that in order to induce 

20 clients to participat~ in a shelter, and to shield the clients from possible penalties, they h_ad 

21 to obtain legal opinion letters from reputable law firms concluding that a shelter will at 

22 least ''more likely than not" survive IRS challenge. 

23 II. OBJECT OF THE- CONSPIRACY 

. 24 19. It was a part of and an object of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. 

25 GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILl(, together with others known and unknown, to 

26 unlawfully and knowingly defraud and attempt-to defraud the IRS by impeding, 

27 impairing, defeating and obstructing the lawful governmental functions of the IRS in the 

28 ascertainment, evaluation, assessment, and collection of income taxes, interest, and 
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1 penalties by designirig, marketing, implementi~g, and defending and aiding in the defense 

2 before the IRS of a fraudulent tax shelter known as POINT. 

3 ID. MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY 

4 20. It was a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

5 CHARLES H. WILK designed and developed the POINT tax shelter to consist of a pre-

6 ordained series of sham transactions, executed in precise steps in accordance with the 

7 directions of JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, for the sole purpose 

8 of-providing a means for wealthy individuals to reduce and/or defer the payment of taxes 

9 on capital gains income. 

10 21. It was further'apartofthe conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEI:N and 

11 CHARLES H. WILK implemented the POINT taX shelter in ·a manner that minimized 

12 costs to Quellos. and maximized th~jr profits. Specifically,. JEFFREY 1. GREENS1EIN 

13 and CHARLES H. w;lLK knew and understood that the procurement of sufficient 

J4 amounts of actual stocks to generate the losses for the POINT olients would cost more 

15 than they or others involved in the implementation of the shelter were able or willing to 

16 pay. Fu~ennore, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK were . 

17 unsuccessful in locating any bona fide, independent third-party who had real assets with 

18 sufficient built-in losses willing to participate in the POINT transaction. Therefore," 

19 JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CIIARLES H. WILK caused the creation ofa fictional 

20 "offshore investment fund" with a fictional portfolio of stocks that had been obtained 

21 through a series of sham paper transactions in which no stocks and no money ever 

22 exchanged hands. 

23 22. It was filrther a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GImENSTEIN and 

24 CHARLES H. WILK knew at the time they designed, marketed and implemented the . 

25 POINT tax shelters that the various clients who participated in the shelter would likely be 

26 audited by the IRS. Therefore, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WlLK 

27 drafted and disseminated, and caused to be drafted and disseminated, marketing material, 

28 transactianal documents, and legal opinions designed to conceal from the IRS the facts· 

·L_ Second Superseding Indictment! 
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1 that first, each aspect of the POINT tax. shelter, including the actions of the "offshore 

2 investment fund" was wholly conceived, orchestrated, and directed by JEFFREY I. 

3 GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK for the purpose of implementing a tax shelter, 

4 and second, that the purported stocks that generated the off·setting losses for POINT 

5 clients'were, in truth and fact, non.existent. 

6 A. Fraudulent POINT Marketio2 Materials. 

1 +3. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in order to conceal and'attempt to 

8 con~from the IRS the true nature of the POINT tax shelter, JEFFREY'I. 

9 GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK drafted and disseminated and caused to be 

10 dqUted and disseminated to POINT clients and their advisors, false, fraudulent and 

11 misleading descriptions of the POINT transaction in a marketing document entitled 

12 '"POINT Strategy,'" knowing and expecting that such clients and their advisors would rely 

J3 upon the document to claim false and fraudulent tax benefits as weU as in defense of any 

14 audit before the IRS. The POINT Strategy document purportedly set forth the genesis 

15 and business rationale for the POINT transaction. According to·the document, the . . 

16 POINT Strategy was an'investment opportunity independently fashioned by offshore 

11 parties to replicate a popular European investment-vehicle, and only fortuitously 

18 discovered by Quellos. The document described this supposed investment opportunity as 

19 follows: 

20 a. A certain unnamed "offshore investment fund'"desired to profit from 

21 replicating a European financial product sold by large European financial institutions 

22 known as "Covered Warrants," '!BLOCS," or "HYPOS." 

23 h. In order to replicate this product, the fund formed a partnership 

24 entity known generically as an Spy ("Special Purpose Vehicle"). Once the 'SPV was 

25 formed, the fund contributed certain publicly traded "stocks" it purportedly' owned to the 

26 SPY. The fund then caused the SPY to issue a "Covered Warrant" on the stocks in the 

27 SPY. The tenns of the Covered Warrant gave the acquirer of the Warrant the right to 

28 purchase the SPY's stocks in five ye~ at a set price in retmn for a Jarge premium. 
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According to the POINT Strategy document, a "bank" agreed to subscribe to the Covered 

2 Warrant and paid millions in premiums to the Spy with the' intention of marketing the 

3 Warrant to other investors; 

4 c. Once the Spy was fonned, funded and the Covered Warrant placed 

5 with the bank, the fund, with the assistance of the bank, sought to seU the entirety of the 

6 Spy interests to potential investors with the goal of profiting from the sale. According to 

7 the POINT Strategy document, QueUos only became involved· in marketing this 

8 oppo~ because the bank, which had a pre-existing relationship With 9uellos, 

9 approached Quellos to assist them in marketing the SPY units to U.S. investors. 

10 24. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

11 CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that contrary to what was stated in the 

12 POINT Strat~gy document, the "offshore investment fund" was not an independent 

13 investment fund who fonned and marketed the SPY interests with the desire to replicate a 

14 popular European investment vehicle, but rather; a shell corporation whose actions were 

15' wholly controlled by JEFFREY I. GREENSJEIN, CHARLES H. WILK and their Eumm 

16 associates· for the sole purpose of implementing a tax shelter. 

17 25. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTElNand 

18 CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that contrary to what was stated in the 

19 PqINTStrategy document~ the "offshore investment fund" owned no stocks to contribute 

20 to the Spy s. 

21 26. It was further a part oithe conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTElN and 

22 CHARLES H. wn.K knew, in truth and fact, that contrary to What was stated in the 

23 POINT Strategy docume~t, the "Covered Warrant" was a sham paper transaction, that no 

24 "bank." subscribed to any Warrant, that no premiuins were ever paid for the Warrant by 

25 any such bank, and that there was never any ·intent by any bank to market the Warrant 

26 21. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

27 CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that contrary to what was stated in the 

28 POINT Strategy document, Quellos was not fortuitously introduced by the bank to the 
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POINT Strategy and asked to assist in marketing the prod':lct to U.S. investors but, rather, 

2 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK conceived, designed and 

3 orchestrated the entire POINT strategy, including the actions of the purported "pffsh<?re 

4 investment fund," and intended from the beginning to mrutet the stnitegy to U.S. 

S taxpayers as a tax- shelter. 

6 B. Fraudulent POINT Transaction Documents. 

7 28. It was further a part of the conspir~cy that in order to conceal and attempt to 

8 conceal the true nature of the POlNT tax shelter from the IRS, JEFFREY 1. 

9 GREENS1EfN and CHARLES H. WTI.,K drafted and executed and caused to be drafted 

10 and executed false; fi:audule~t and misleading contracts and agreements to qocument the 

11 various. steps. in the POINT transaction, knowing and expecting that clients who 

12 participated in POINT would rely upon such documents to claim a false and fraudulent 

13 tax benefit lIS well as in defense of any audit by the IRS. 

14 29. It was further a part of the cOnspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and· 

15 CHARLES H. WILK represented and caused to be represented to clients and others that 

16 an Isle of Man entity known as Barnville Ltd. (bereinafter "Bamville") was the "offsbore 

17 investment fund" thilt created the Spy s and contributed the loss generating stocks. 

18 30. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

19 CHARLES R WILK caused to be drafted and executed a series of fulse, fraudulent t and 

20 misleading "Purchase Agreements" dated December 28,1999, JanuB;lY 3,2000. January 

21 10, 2000, February 28, 2000, and June 6,2000, tlrrough which Bamville p1,IIJldrted1y 

22 purchased more than $9 billion worth of stocks in a number of publicly ~ded technology 

23 companies from another Isle of Man entity ~own as Jackst6nes Ltd. (hereinafter 

24 "Jackstones"). 

25 3 I . It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and 

26 CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that the Purchase Agreements were false, 

27 fraudulent and misleading in that lackstones possessed no stocks to sell and Bamville had 

28 no means to pay for any such stocks. 

Second Superseding Indictment! 
Greenstein et aJi CR08-296RSM II 

Page 842 

UNITED STATES ATI'ORNEY 
100 STswAllT SntEEr. SUITE S22D 

SEATl1.1!, WASHINGTIlN98101 
(206) 553-1970 . 

._ - .. _-------- --



21626464 

Case 2:08-cr-00296-RSM Document 92 Filed 12/30{2009 Page 12 of 42 

1 32. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and 

2 CHARLES 11. WILK, in order to conceal the fact that Bamville never acquired any 

3 stocks from Jackstones on the dates subscribed to in the various Purchase Agreements, 

4 and that the purchases were a sham, caused to be drafted and executed a "Securities 

5 Lending Agreement" between Bamville and Jackstones. A.ccording to the tenns of the 

6 Securities Lending Agreement, BamvilIe, on each day it purchased stocks from 

7 Jackstones, immediately loaned the same stocks back to Jackstones in return for "cash" 

8 collateral purportedly t:qual to the purcbase price. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

9 CHARLES H. WILK knew and understood that this lendmg arrangement would be used 

10 to provide an explanation to the clients and their advisors, who, in tum, would provide the 

11 explanation to the IRS, as to the reason for the apparent lack of delivery or transfer of any 

12 stocks and cash between brokerage accounts of Barn ville and Jackstones at the time of 

13 the purported purchase and, therefore, conceal the fact that Barnville never owned any 

14 stocks m the first place. 
, . 

IS 33. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

16 CHARLES H. WILK, in 2000 and 2001, dr~fted and executed and caused to be drafted' 

'17 and executed false, fraudulent and misleading "Subscription Agreements" to the Global 

18 Call Warrarits that were pmportedly issued by each of the SPVs associated with the 

19 POINT clients. According to the "Subscription Agreement," '8 company known as EA 

20 Investment Services Limited subscribed to the Global Call Warrants and in return paid a 

21 "Subscription Price~' to the SPVs. The purported Subscription Price, in each instance, 

22 amounted to millions of U.S. dollars, and, according to the Subscription Agreement, the 

23 payments were credited to an account at EA Investment Services Limited for the benefit 

24 of each SPY. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and 

2S fact, that no subscription payments were ever made or going to be made, that EA 

26 Investments Limited had neither the intention nor the ability to make any such payments, ' 

27 and that the "Subscription Agreements" were shams, implemented solely to provide a 

28 fraudulent busin,ess purpose for the transaction. 
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1 C. 

2 

False, Fraudulent and Misleading Information Given to Legal Opinion 
Writers. 

3 
34. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEJN and 

CHARLES H. WILK knew and tUlderstood that in order to induce clients to participate- in 
4 

POINT, they would need to provide an opinion from respected law firms concluding that · 
5 

the shelter woul4 at least "more likely than not" surYive a challenge from the IRS. 
6 

7 
35. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

CHARLES H. Wlll< knew and understood ·that in the event of an audit, these legal 
8 

opinio~s ~ould likely be pr<?duced to the IRS in defense of the audit and to avoid possible 
9 

- 10 

11 

penalties. 

36. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY 1 GREENSTElN and 

CHARLES H. WILK secured the participation of Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP and Law 
12 

Fi~ B.C. LLP to opine on the various POINT tr~nsactions ~p:lemented by the.tive 
13 

clients. Law Firm C.S. & M_ LLP opined on the first four POINT transactions executed 
14 

by queUos in 2000; specifically, Law Finn C.S. & M. LLP opined on the POINT 
15 

transactions known as Torens, Reka, Burgundy, and Platinum. Law Finn B.C. LLP 
16 

opined on the last two POINT transactions executed by QueUos in 2001; specifically, 
17 

Law Finn B.C. LLP opined on POINT transactions known as Titanium and Cobalt. Each 
· 18 

opinion concluded that the POINT transaction would "more likely than not" survive a 
19 

challenge from the IRS. 
20 

37. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in order to conceal and attempt to 
21 

conceal the.true nature of the tax shelter from the opinion writers and, ultimately, the IRS, 
22 

23 
JEFFREY r. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WlLK knowingly and willfully made and 

caused to be made false, fraudulent and misleading representations to Law Firm C.S. & 
24 

M. LLP and Law Firm B.C. LLP about the POINT transaction, knowing that Law Firm 
25 

26 
C.S. & M. LLP and Law Firm B.C. LLP would rely upon their r.epresentations in order to 

understand the POINT transactions and to render their "more likely than not" opinions. 
27 

These false, fraudulent and misleading representations included the following: 
28 

a. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK falsely, 
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1 fraudulently and misleadingly represented and caused to be represented that the source of 

2 the losses utilized by the clients in the POINT transactions was d;erived from "stocks" in 

3 well-known publicly traded companies that had been purchased by a "non-U.S. 

4 investment fund'.' or "foreign investment fund," and contributed to the various SPY s. 

5 h. JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN and CHARLES H. WU,K falsely, 

6 fraudulently and misleadingly represented and caused to be represented that Barnville was 

7 the independent "non-U.S. investment fund" or "foreign investment fund" that fanned the 

. 8 SPVs, ~d that Bamvil1e fonned the SPVs independent of any pre-conceived plan to 

9 utilize the SPY s for a tax shelter; specifically, that Barnville formed the SPY s in order to 

10 profit from the issuance lind sale of the "Covered Warrants." 

11 . 38. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and 

12 CHARLES H. WlLK provided and caused to be provided to Law Finn C.S. & M. LLP 

13 and Law Firm B. C. LLP the same false, fraudulent, and misieading POINT Strategy 

14 dOCUinent fuat they had provided to their clients, knowing that the docwnent was false, 

15 fraUdulent and misleading and knowing and expecting that the firms would rely upon the 

16 document to Wlderstand the POINT transaction and to render their opinions. 

17 39. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

18 CHARLES H. WILK. provided and caused to be provided to Law Finn C.S. & M. LLP 

19 and Law Finn B.C. LLP the same false, fraudulent, and misleading transactional 

20 documents. including the Purchase Agreements and the Securities Lending Agreement 

21 between Bamville and J ackstones, and the Subscription Agreements for the Covered 
. . 

22 Warrants that they had provided to their ~lients, knoWing that the transactional documents 

23 were false, fraudulent and misleading, and ~owing and expecting that the fJt1D.s would 

24 rely upon such documents to understand the POINT transaction and to render their 

25 opinions. 

26 40. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY r. GREENSTEIN and 

27 CHARLES H. WILK provided and caused to be provided to Law Firms C.S. & M. LLP 

28 and B.C. LLP, false, fraudulent and misleading documents regarding the fees paid by the 
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1 Clients to implement the. POINT tax shelter strategy, in order to hide the actual amount of 

2 fees they paid and, thereby, make it falsely appear that the Clients had a reasonable 

3. potential of earning a profit from the POINT tax shelter strategy aside from the tax 

4 benefits. 

5 41. It was further a part of the conspiracy that Law Firm C.S. & M LLP and 

6 Law Finn B.C. LLP provided JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. ~K with 

7 drafts of their opinion letters, and relied upon ~FFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and 

8 CHARLES H. WILK to provide corrections and edits to the factual descriptions of the 

9 POINT transactions in the opinion letters. 

10 . 42. It was further a part of the conspiracy that as a result of their reliance upon 

11 JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN's and CHARLES H. WILK's representations regarding the 

. 12 POINftransactions., Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP and Law Finn B.C. LLP issued opinion 

13 letters that included false, fraudulent. and misleading descriptions of the POINT 

14tmnsactions. 

15 43. It was fiutber a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

16 CHARLES H. WJLK provided the false. fraudulent, and misleading opinion letters issued 

11 by Law Finn C.S. & M. LLP to clients and prospective clients in order to induce them to 

18 participate in the transaction, knowing 'that the opinion letters were false, fraudulent, and 

19 misleading. 

20 D. Kickbacks Paid to Matthew G. Krane. the Personal Attorney of Client as .. 
21 44. It was further a part of the conspiracy tliat in 2001, CHARLES H. WiLK 

22 met Matthew G. Krane, a tax attorney and advisor to Client H.S. CHARLES H. WILK 

23 learned from Matthew G. Krane that Client H.S. anticipated having more than $1 billion 

24 in capital gains in 2001. 

25 45. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in 2001, JEFFREY 1. 

26 GREENSTEIN. CHARLES H. WILK and Matthew G. Krane agreed to kickback to 

27· Matthew G. Krane a portion ofthe fees Quellos obtained from Client H.S. 

28 46. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in 200 I, JEFFREY I. 
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GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H. waK and Matthew G. Krane did not disclose to Client 

2 H.S. the kickback arrangement. Instead, beginning in or about March 2001 and . 

3 continuing through in or about October 200 I, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H. 

4 WlLK-and Matthew G. Krane drafted and executed arid caused to be drafted and executed 

5 a series of false, fraudulent, and misleading fee agreements between Client H.S. and 

6 Quellos; wherein Client H.S. was led to believe that he would paY a specific Quellos 

1 entity identified ,in the agreements as "Quellos Financial Advisors LLC" or "QF A:' 

8 approximately. $46 million for work in connection with the POINT transaction, whereas, 

9 .in truth. and fact, JEFFREY 1. GREENSlEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, knew that they 

10 would divert ~majority ofthos:~ fee~ to ~atthew G. Krane, CI.ient H.S's own attorney. 

, 11 47. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in or about October 2001, 

12 CHARLES H. WILKintroduced Matthew G. Krane. to 1.S. and R.P ofEurnm~ and 

13 requested that J.S. and RP. aSsist Matthew G. Krane in setting up an offshore entity and 

14 an offShore account for Matthew G. Krane. 

15 48. 1t waS further a part of the conspiracy that in or about October 2001, 

16 Matthew Go' Krane, with the assistance of a Swiss associate, B.H., appropriated an 

17 existing offshore shell entity and changed its name to "QFS Consulting Ltd." 

18 49! It was further a part of the conspiracy that in or about October'2001; 

19 Matthew G. Krane, with the assistance of a Swiss associate, B.H., opened a bank account 

20 at European American Investment Bank A.G. in VieIina, Austria in the name ofQFS 

21 Consulting Ltd. 

22 · 50. It was further a part of tile conspiracy that in or about October2001, 

23 JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK agreed that the kickback paymentl) 

24 for Matthew G. Krane would be paid not to Matthew G. Krane directly, but to QFS 

25 Consulting Ltd. 

26 51. It was further a part of the conspiracy that JEFFREY L GREENSTEIN, 

21 CHARLES H. WILK, and Matthew G. Krane knew and intended that the name of the 

28 foreign entity and foreign account controlled by Matthew G. Krane, "QFS Consulting 
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1 Ltd.", appeared very similar to a number of Quellos entities that were COminonly known 

2 by acronyms starting with the letter "Q," including but not limited to "QFA" (Quell os 

3 Financial Advisors, LLC), "QCS," (QueUos Customs Strategies, LLC), "QBS," (Quellos 

.4 Brokerage Services, LLC), '!QCM," (QueUos Capital Management, LP), "QFV," (QueUos 

5 Financial Ventures, LP), and "QCI" (Quellos Capital International). JEFFREY 1. 

6 GREENSTEIN, ·CHARLES H. WILK, and Matthew G. Krarie knew and intended that by 

7 using the nanie "QFS," parties who were unaware of the kickback mangement, including 

8 bank representatives overseeing the flow of funds, other advisors . of Client H.S., and 

9 Clie~t H.S. himself. would be mi8le~d into believing that fees that were in truth diverted 

10 to Matthew G.Krane was paid to a QueUos entity consistent with'the fee agreements 

11 signed by Clien.t H.S. 

12 52. It was ftnther a part of the conspiracy that on or about October 24, 2001, 

t:;l CHARLES H. WILK instructed a bank to wire approximately $28 million into the "QFS" . 

14 account in Viennil, Austria, knowing that the money was derived from fees Client RS. 

IS bel~eved he was paying QueUos. ' 

16 53. It was further a part of the conspiracy that on or about October 25,2001, 

17 CHARLES H. WILK instructed RP. to wire approximately $8 million into the "QFS". 

18 account in Vienna, Austria, knowing that the money was derived from feesCHent H.S. 

19 believed he was paying Euram. 

20 54. It was further a part of ~e conspiracy that in or about November 2001, after 

21 the funds had already been transferred, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, CHARLES H. 

22 WIL~ and Matthew G. Krane executed and caused to be executed a false, fraudulent, 

23 and misleading fee sharing agreement between QueUos and (cQFS Consulting Ltd!' The 

24 agreement specified that Quellos would pay approximately $28 million to .QFS ' 

25 Consulting for "certain advisory and consulting services," which "did not constitute the 

26 provision oflegal advice." 

27 55. It was further a part oftbe conspiracy that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN, 

18 CHARLES H. WILK, and Matthew G. Krane did not execute any written agreements to 
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document or otherwise account for the additional $8 million that was wired to QFS on or , 

about October 25, 2001. 

. 56. It was further a part of the conspiracy that in 2001 and 2002, CHARLES H . 

WILK knowingly and willfully provided and caused to be provided false, fraudulent and 

misleading infonnation to Law Firm B.C. LLP about the fees paid by Client,B.S. in 

connection with the Titanium transaction, including providing false, fraudulent and 

misleading fee calculation documents that excluded large portions offees paid to QueHos 

as well as. the amounts pai,d to Matthew G. Krane. 

E. F31se and Fraudulent Tax Retums. 

57. It was further a part ()fthe conspiracy that JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

CHARLES H. WILK caused Clients MZ., R.I., B.J., M.S, and H.S. to me false and 

fraudulent income tax returns, specifically Form 1040s, claiming capital losses from the 

'sale of the stocks within their respective SPVs which, in 1mth and fact, JEFFREY I. 

GREENSTEIN and CHARLES R WILK knew did not exist. 

58. It was :further a part of the conspiracy that the following Quellos clients 

claime~ the following false and fraudulent capital losses on their Form 1040s as a result 

of their participation iD the POINT transactions: 

Taxpayer Tax Year AIG{!1x. Date Approx. amount of . 
o . Iling Fraudulent Capital Loss 

ClientM.Z. 2000 1112/02 $122 million 

Client R.J. 2000 12127/01 . $133 million 

Client B.J. 2000 12126/01 $178 million 

Client M.S. 2000 4115101 $159 million 

ClientH.S. 2001 10115102 $730 million 

Client M.S. 2001 10116/02 $59 milliqn 

F. False Fraudulent. and Misleadiuf!: ReDresentations in Anticination of and 
Durin!! POINT Clients' IRS Audits. 

59. It was further a part of the consp~cy that sometime between 2003 and 

2006, CHARLES H. WILK and JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN knew that Clients M.Z., 
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R.I., B.J., M.S., and H.S. were under or anticipated to be under IRS audit as a result of 

2 their participation in th~ POINT tax shelter strategy. 

3 ·60. It was further a part of the conspiracy that CHARLES H. WILK, beginning 

4 in 2003 and continuing through 2005. when asked by the clients and clients' 

5 representatives for assistance responding to IRS inquiries or anticipated IRS inquiries 

6 about the POINT transaction, provided and caused to be provided to such clients the same 

7 false, fraudulent, and misleading documents that purportedly described and documented · 

8 the POINT transaction, including the "POINT Strategy" docmnent and underlying 

9 trartsactionaI docwnents, such as the stock Purchase Agreemen~ between Barnville and 

10 JacJcstones, the Securities Lending Agreelllent betWeen BarnviIle and Jackstones, and the 

11 Warrant SUbscription Agreements purportedly executed by the Spy s. 

12 61. It was a further part of the conspiracy that CHARLES H. WILK, beginning 

13 · in 2003 and continuing through 2005, when asked. by clients and clients' representatives 

14 for assistance in responding to the ,IRS inquiries or anticipated IRS inquiries about th'e 

IS POINT transaction, knowingly and willfully made and.caused to be made false, 

16 fraudulent, and misleading statements to clients' representatives, including t4e following: 

17 a. In or about March 2003, CHARLES H. WILK falsely, fraudulently 

18 and misleaqingly represented and caused to be represented to attorneys for Clients R.I. 

19 and B.J. that the source of the capital losses derived through the POINT transacti~ns were 

20 shares of stock in a number of publicly traded· companies that Barnville had contributed to 

21 the SPVs. 

22 b. In or about March 2003, CHARLES H. WILK falsely. fraudulently 

23 and misleadingly represented and caused to be represented to attorneys for Clients R.J. 

24 and B.l. that Bamville fonned the SPVs ami contributed the securities to those SPVs for 

25 an independent business purpose, i.e. to issue "Covered' Warrants" for which the SPY s 

26 received tens of millions of doll~ in premiums. 

27 c.· In or about June 2004, CHARLES H. WILK falsely, fraudulently, 

28 and misleadingly represented and caused to ~e represented to the attorneys for Clients 
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1 RJ. and BJ. that the only reason QueUos was unable to provide_ independent 

2 docwnentary t<Vidence of the existence of stocks that were purportedly purchased by 

3 Barnville from lackstones, such as brokerage statements or confinnations, was because 

4 QueUos did not have access to the internal records of Barnville and Jackstones, whereas, 

5 CHARLES H. WlLK knew, in-truth and fact, that the real reason QueUos could not 

6 provide such records was that no such stocks ever existed. -

7 d. In or about October 2004, in ~esponse to demands by attorneys for 

8 Clients R.J. and B.J. that Quellos provide a written -explanation of the transaction between 

9 Bamville_ and Jackstones to provide to the IRS, CHA.lU-ES H. WILK provided a false, 

10 fraudulent, and misleading written docwnent in which he stated that Euram introduced 

11 QueUos to Bamville who happened to be. holding a "stock poitfolio", and that Bamville 

12 contributed the "Stock" to the SPVs. 

13 e. On or about November 15, 2004, inrespo~e to demands by Clients 

14 RJ. andBJ. to JEFFREYI. GREENSTEIN for a detailed step-by-step explanation oitbe 

15 transaction betWeen Barnville and Jackstones, CHARLES H. WILK provided the clients 

16 with a false, fraudulent, and misleading letter in which he stated, among other things, that 

17 ...... ,[QueHos was 1 not party to the original transactions (purchase Agreements and 

18 Securities Lending Agreements) between Barnville and Jackstones, and therefore, this 

19 part of our step-by~step explariation is based on documentation we have reviewed", 

20- whereas, CHARLES H. WILK knew, in- truth and fac~ that he and JEFFREY 1. 

21 GREEN~TEIN were involved in the original transactions between Barnville and 

22 Jackstones. CHARLES H. WlLK knew that-he and _JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN devised 

23 the sham sale and loan-back arrangement between Barnville and J ackstones, that 

24 JEFFREY I. GREEN:STEIN, himself selected the very stocks that were to be used for the 

25 sham transa(ftions, and CHARLES H. WILK and JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN directed 

26 C.D., I.S. and R.P. to appropriate the companies and execute the transactions. 

27 f. On November 15,2004, CHARLES H. Wll.K further wrote in the 

28 letter-to .clients R.J.-and BJ. that I<[t)he Purchase Agreements between Jackstones (as 
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1 seller) and Barnville (as purchaser) reflect that Jackstones sold to Bamville the right to 

2 beneficial ownership of shares .... " whereas CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and 

3 fact, that the Purchase Agreements falsely stated that actual shares were purchased, and 

4 that .J?arnvllie engaged in neither a transaction for the "right to beneficial .ownership of 

5 shares" nor an actual stock purchase since the entire transaction with·Jackstones was a 

6 sham. 

7 g. In or about January 2005, CHARLES H. WILK, falsely, 

8 fraudulently, and misleadingly represented to attorneys for Client H.S. that Barnville was 

9 a "fund" that held a stock portfolio and that this fund was "discovered" by Euram, giving 

10 the false, fraudulent and misleading impression that Barnville held actual stock and that 

11 its stock portfolio pre-existed QueUos's involvement with the company, wher~ 

. 12 CHARLES H. WILK knew, in truth and fact, that ~ville held no stock, and that 

13 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. ~K,togetherwith E~, . 

14 appropriated Bamville and directed it to enter into· sham stock purchase agreements for 

15 the sole purpose ofutilizin:g it in the POINT tax shelter strategy. 

16 62. Itwru;"a further part of the conspiracy that beginning in or about April 2003 

17 and continuing in or about October 2005. representatives of Clients MZ., R.I., B.1., M.S., 

18 and H.S. responded to various IRS Infonnation Document Requests (also known as 

19 "IDRs") which sought e"xplanations and documents relating to their ~ctive POINT 

20 transactiQns by forwarding to the IRS the same false, fraudulent and misleading 

21 docwnents that had earlier been provided or caused to be provided by CHARLES H. 

22 Wll..K to such clients, inclu~ng the "POINT Strategy" document and/or underlying 

23 transactional documents, such ~s the stock Purchase Agreements between Bamville and 

24 Jackstones, the Securities Lending Agreement between Barnville and Jackstones, and the 

25 Warrant Subscription Agreements purportedly entered into by the various SPVs. 

"26 G. False. Fraudulent and Misleading Testimony During Senate Investigation 

27 63. It was further a part of the conspiracy that by 2006, the IRS had expanded a 

28 "promoter" elallllination of Quellos to include Quellos' role in the POINT transactions. 
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1 64. It was further a part of the conspimcy that in or about August 2006, 

2 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN, in an effort to continue to hide and conceal the true nature 

3 ·of the POINT tax shelter transactions from the IRS and others, knowingly. and willfully . 

4 gave the following false, fraudulent, and misleading testimony before the United ·States . 

5 Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations (hereinafter "PSI") that was 

6 conducting an investigation into, among other things, the POINT tr~sactions: 

7 a. JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN testified that the circular stock purchase 

8 and lending agreement entered into between Barnville and lackstones through which the 

9 portfolio of loss st;ocks were generated was "not dissimilar to swaps or contract for 

10 differences or single ~tock futures," in an effort to mislead the PSI and others into 

11 believing that Barnville and Jackstones engaged in legitimate derivative trades, whereas 

12 JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN knew, in truth and fact, that the BarnviIIelJackstones . 

13 purchase and loan-back arrangement was a sham, paper transaction. 

14 b. JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN testified that the purported derivative 

15 nature of these transactions between Bamville and Jackstones was, to his understanding, 

16 disclosed in detail to clients and the clients' advisors, whereas JEFFREY I. 

17 GREENSJEIN knew, in truth and fact. that the clients and the clients advisors were never" 

18 SO infonned, that none of the descriptions of the POINT transactions provided to the 

19 clients and clients advisors described the POINT transaction as such, that none of the . 

20 transactional docwnents provided to the clients and ~e clients' advisors described the 

21 transactions between Bamville and lackstones as such, that none of the opinion letters. 

22 issued by Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP and Law Finn B.C. LLP described the Barnville and 

. 23 lackstones transaction as such, and, to the contmry, all representations and materials 

24 provided to the clients and client representatives were designed and contrived to mislead 

2S them into believing that what Barnville purchased and contributed to ~e SPVs were 

26 actual stock. 

27 c. JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN testified that the Covered Warrants 

28 issued through each of the SPVs provided a potential for profit for the clients who 
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1 participated in POINT, whereas JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN knew, in truth and fact; that 

. 2 . the Covered Warrants were sham transactions~ and that no real premiums were paid or 

3 were ever going ·to be paid, and that the Covered Warrants never provided any profit 

4 potential to the clients who participated in POINT because each transaction was designed 

5 to be unwound and completed :before the Clil:;nts could ever profit from such Covered 

6 Warrants. 

7 IV. OVERT ACTS 

8 65. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the illegal objects thereof, 

9 JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN and CHARLES H. WILK, and their CO-cOnspirators, known 

10 and unkno~ committed or caused to be committed the following overt acts, among 

11 others, in the Western District ofWasmngton and elsewhere: 

12 a. Beginning in or about August 4, 1999, and continuing through on or 

13 about August II, 1999, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WlL~.together 

14' drafted and edited the "POINT Strategy" document. 

15 . b. On.orabout August 30, 1999, CHARLES H. WILK sent an email to 

1~ Partner L.S. at Law Firm.C.S. & M. LLP , attaching the ''PoINT Strategy" document, 

17 which, according to CHARLES H. WILK, described the POINT transaction in its "most 

18 basic fuets." 

19 c. On or about January 7, 2000, CHARLES H. WILl(, with the 

20 knowledge and consent of JEFFREY 1. GREENSlEIN, forwarded to Partner L.S. at Law 

·21 Firm C.S. & M. LLP a docmnent that purport~dly described.how the offshore fund 

22 originally obtained its stocks. 

23 . d. On or about Janualy 14,2000, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN sent an 

24 email to C.D., attaching a list of stocks that JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN selected to 

25 generate the fake· capital losses for the POINT transactions. 

26 e. On or about January 19, 2000, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN sent an 

27 email to Partner L.S. of Law Finn C.S. & M. LLP, forwarding a schematic that 

28 purportedly explained the POINT transaction in diagram form. The schematic described 
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1 the transaction as involving the transfer of "stock" from one entity to another entity. 

2 f. On or-about January 20,2000, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN sent an 

3 email to an associate at Law FinnC.S. & M LLP, who was assisting Partner L.S., 

4 attaching calculations pw:portedly demonstrating the potential profits and losses.that -

5 could be incurred by a POlNT investor from the Covered Warrants. 

6 g. On or about January 24, 2000. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

7 CHARLESH. WILK received by facsimile from Partner L.S. of Law Firm C.S. & M. 

8 LLP, a draft of Law Firm C.S. & M. LLP 's opinion letter regarding the POINT 

9 transaction. 

10 h. On or about February 2,2000, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, 

·11 CHARLES H. WILK,C.D., and J.s. ofEuram conducted a telephone conference call to 

12 -discuss the PQINT transaction, including, among other things, how Euram had "set up" 

13 the companies to be used to generate the sham. portfolio; how the parties 'could ~ncrease 

14 the size of the sham portfolio t6 accommodate additio~ tax shelterclients;.how Partner 

15 LoS". had not been fully informed as to the manner in which the sham portfolio was 

16 created; and the fact-that the legal opinion issued byP8l1l,ler L.S. regarding POINT could 

17 be view:ed by the IRS as baving been ''predicated on a fact that [was] not true," 

18 specifically, regarding whether the SPVs owned any shares in stock. · 

19 i. On or abQut Febr:uary 16.2000, M.P., an individwlI in Britain. at the 

20 direction of C.D. and 1.S .• who were; in tum, following the instructions of JEFFREY 1. 

21 GREENSTEIN and-CHARLES H. WILK, 'met with the Isle of Man corpo~ 

22 administrators of Bamville and 1ackstones. During the meeting, M.P. explained the 

23 following, Which he learned from J.S. and cn.: 
24· 1. Bamville and Iackstones were both beneficially owned by one 

25 individual, L.B., and that individuals at Quellos and Euram, with the permission ofL.B., 

26 sought to appropriate Barnville and Jackstones for the purpose of executing a tax shelter 

27 strategy; 

28 2. 
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1 this tax shelter strategy, to enter into a "virtual share transaction" in which Barnville buys 

2 a portfolio of non-existent stocks from lackstones and Jackstones borrows those same 

3 shares from Barnville, resulting in no actUal exchange of shares or exchange of money; 

4 3. . M.P. acknowledged to the administrators of Barn ville and 

5 J ackstones tha~ over time, as a result of this transaction, one party would have a large debt 

6 owed to the other on the bc?oks, but that in the end, because the two entities were _ 

7 beneficially owned by the same person, the companies could eventually be merged and 

8 any debts eliminated from the books; 

9 4. M.P. stated that L.B. would benefit from allowing the entities 

10 to be utilized in this manner through the large fees that Euram was expecting to earn as a 

11 result of assisting in executing this transaction because L.B. was a shareholder in Euram; 

12 and 

13 5. M.P. agreed that for assisting in the POINT strategy, the 

.14 corporateadlilinistrators for each of the companies would receive a flat fee of £5000 in 

15 addition to normal costs and disbursements. 

16 j. On or about February 29,2000, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN emailed 

17 J .S. and C.D. another selection of stocks to be added to the sham portfolio being Created 

18 . between the two off~hore companies for use in the POINT transactions. 

. 19 k . On or about March 13, 2000, C.D. emailed JEFFREY 1. 

20 GREENSTEIN that he was greatly disturbed by a meeting he bad with an advisor for 

21 Client RJ. during which it was made clear to C.D. that this advisor had no idea how the 

2? . loss stocks were generated, and C.D. demanded a formal letter from QueUos assuring 

23 ~uram that they had fully informed POINT clients and their advi~ors of the manner in 

24 which the loss stocks Were "created." 

25 1. On or about March 13, 2000, JEFFREY I. GREENSlEIN responded 

26 to C.D. in an email stating tli3t the advisor C.D. had met with had no involvement in 

27 . advising Client R.J. in the POINT transaction,. and that he was confident that Partner L.S. 

28 had fully advised the Client. 
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1 m. On or about March 29,2000, CHARLES, H. WILK and JEFFREY I. 

2 GREENSJEIN received from J.S. propol!ed transactional documents for the POINT 

3' transaction, including the sham stock Purchase Agreements and the Securities Lending 

4 Agreement to be executed between Barnville and Jackstones. 

5 o. On or about Apri14. 2000, J.S. emailed CHARLES H. wrr.K and 

6 asked whether the tax shelter clientS and their advisors had been fully informed as to the 

7 ~e nature of the sham stock portfolio between Barnville and J ackstones as promised. 

8 CHARLES H. WILK responded that per the advice of Partner L.S., the clients should Dot 

9 b~ informed abo~t the nature of how the shares were created and how they were 

10 contributed into the SPV s. 

11 p. On or about April 5, 2000, J.S., in response to requests by the' 

12 corporate administrator for Jackstones for written assurances from Q~enos confinning 

13 that the POINT clients and their advisors were fully informed of the nature of the share 

14 . trading transaction lx?tween the two offshore companies. stated that they were,not able to 

15 provide any such written'assurances. ].S. further explained that no such written 

16 assurances co¢d be provided because QueUos was sensitive about ''having anything in 

17 writing which suggests' that the investment strategy contemplated for the client is 

18 completely pre-ordained BIld exists only for the possibility of achieving a U.S. tax 

'19 advantage." 

20 q. In or about April 2000, CHARLES H. WlLK edited and caused to be 

21 edited transactional documents for the POINT transaction, including the stock Purchase 

22 Agreement and the Securities Lending Agreement between Barnville and.1ackstones. 

23 r. On or about the following dates, JEFFREY 1. G~ENSTEIN and 

24 CHARLES H. WILK initiated and then unwound the following POINT tr~sactions in 

2S order to generate the fake losses for the POINT clients: 

26 

27 

28 

Approx. Date 
Initiated 

April 28, 2000 

Approx. Date 
Unwoulld 

May 19, ,2000 
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Approx. Date Approx. Date Client Name of Transaction 
Initiated Unwound 

May 5,2000 June 5, 2000 RJ. Reka 

May 10, 2000 - June 5, 2000 BJ. Burgundy 

Nov. 29,2000 Dec. 18.2000 M.S. Platinum 

Sept. 24. 2001 Nov. 18,2001 H.S. Titanium-

Nov 7, 2001 Dec. 10,2001 M.S.- Cobalt 

s. On or about the ~ollowing dates, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and 

CHARLES H. WlLK caused Law Finn C.S. & M. LLP and Law Firm B.C. LLP to issue 

false, fraudufent and misleading opinion letters to each of the POINT Clients as follows: 

Approx. Date Law Firm Transaction 

Aug. 29,2000 Law Finn C. S.& M LLP Reka 

Sept. 6, 2000 Law Finn C. S.& M LLP Burgundy 

Sept.· 6; 2000 Law Firm C. S.& M LLP Torens 

. Doo.-22,.2000 . Law Firm C. S.&M LLP Platinum 

Dec. 14; 2001 Law Firm B.C. LLP Cobalt 

Oct. 14, 2002 Law Firm B.C. LLP Titanium 

t. Beginning on or about Sep~ember 9, 2001, and continuing tbrougq 

September 20,2001, CI:IARLES H. WILK. informed lS. through a series of em ails and 

telephone conversations that in o_rder fot Euram to be paid for work on Clien~ H.S!s 

POINT transaction, they must enter into an advisory services agreement with Client H.S. 

despite the fact that Euram provided no advisory services to Client H.S. 

u. On or about September 20) 2001. Matthew G. Kraneland CHARLES 

H. WILKdrafted an advisory agreement between Euram and Client H.S., backdated to 

appear to have been effectuated on May 1,2001, wherein Client H.S. purportedly agreed 

to pay Euram fees for advising Client H.S. on European aspects of Client H.S. 's business 

holdings and forwarded the agreement to J.S. for signature. 

v. In or about October 2001, CHARLES H. WILK and Matthew G. 

Krane telephoned 1.S. seeking assistance in setting up a non-U.S. corporation and bank 
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1 account for Matthew G. Krane. 

2 w. On or about October 24, 2001, CHARLES H. WILK and Matthew 

3 G. Krane caused to be drafted and signed a final fee agreement between QueUos and 

4 Client H.S. in which Client H.S. agreed to pay a specific QueUos entity more than $46 

5 million in fees for their work on Client H.S.'s transaction. 

6 x. On or about October 24. 2001, CHARLES H. WILK by email 

7 directed a bank: representative to divert approximately $28 million of ClIent H.S.'s $46 

8 milli()n in fees that had previously b~en instructed to go to Quellos to, instead, be 

9 deposited into an account in jIle name of "QFS". 

10 y. On or about October 24,2001 and October 26, 2001, CHARLES H. 

11 WILK,with the knowledge ofJEFFREY.I. GREENSTEIN, directed J.S. and R.P. in 

12 emails to Wire transfer approximately $8 million in additional fees collected from Client 

13 H.S.to an account in the name of'~QFS1t ' 

14 " ;. z; . On or about NovemberS, 2001, JEFFREY I. GREENSlEIN signed 

15 on behalf of QueUos a fee splitting agreement, back-4ated to October 25,2001, in which 

16 QuelIo~ agreed to pay "QFS ConsultantS Ltd." approximately $28 million for services it 

17 rendered as an "independent advisor" in connection with Client H.S!s transaction. 

18 aa. Qn: or about October 26, 2004, CHARLES H. WILK, in response to 

19 requests from the audit attorneys for Clients R.J. and BJ. fora written explanation of the 

20 POINT transaction, emailed a document in which CHARLES H. WlLK explained that 

2 I Euram introduced QUeUos to Bamville; and that Bamville bad in its possession a portfolio 

22 of stock that was ultimately contributed to the Spy s for use by the clients. 

23 bb. On or about November 15, 2004t CHARLES H. WILK, -in response 

24 to further requests by Clients R.I. and B.]. to JEFFREY 1. GREENS1EIN for a written 

25 description IIO.d explanation of the POINT transaction, sent by facsimile a letter stating 

26 that QueUos was not a party to the original transaction between Bamville and Jackstones, 

27 but from an. examination of the documents it appeared that Bamville obtained "rights to. 

28 an underlying portfolio of stock. n 
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1 ce. On or about JlUle 7, 2004, during.a meeting with representatives of 

2 Client as. who were handling an audit of Client H.S., CHARLES H. WILK represented 

3 and caused.to be represented that he had discovered BamviUe during a trip to London and 

4 was told that it held losses in stocks that it could not use. 

5 dd. On or about October 21,2004, CHARLES H. WILK caused to be 

6 sent by email the "POINT Strategy" document purporting to descdhe the POINT 

7 transaction to the. representatives. of Client H.S. who were responding to an audit of the 
.. 

8 POINT transaction by state taxing authorities and who were also anticipating an audit by 

9 theffiS. 

10 ee. On or about January 24an.d 25, 2005, CHARLES H. WILK met with 

11 representatives ofCHent H.S. and represented that Euram found Bamville and Iackstones; 

12 . that CHARLES H. WILK gave instrUctions to Euram to find loss stocks and did not thiDk 
13 it would be so easy to find the loss stocks. CHARLES R WILK further stated that while 

14. hehad:noaddi"iional infonnationregarding the existence of the stocks, perhaps Client 

15 H.S.'s representatives could write a Jetter to Barnville and Jackstones asking for 

. 16 documentation. CHARLES R WILK additionally stated that he did not know what 

17 advice Euram gave to· Client H.S. to earn its fees and that he had simply referred ~atthew . 

18 G. Krane to Euram and they entered into a separate engagement! CHARLES H. WILK 

19 also represented that Euram got two fees. 

20 ff. On or about Au~ '1,2006, JEFFREY L GREENS1EIN testified 

21 under oath before the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations of the Committee· on 

22 Governmental Affairs United States Senate r~gardingPOINT. JEFFREY I. 

23 GREENSTEIN testified that it appeared to him that Jackstones and Bamv;iUe engaged in 

.. 24 a transactiop "not dissimilar to swaps or contract for differences or single stock futures", 
. . 

25 that the Covered Warrants provided clients with a p.otential for profit, and that it was his 

26 understanding that the clients and their advisors were made fully aware of the nature of 

27 the POINT transaction. 

28 66. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish one or more of its 
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objects, one or more of the conspirators committed or caused to be committtXi the overt 

2 acts described in Counts 2~ 14 of this Second Superseding Indictment. 

3 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. 

4 

5 

6 
67. 

COUNTS 2-9 
(Tax Evasion) 

The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-65 of this Second Supers~ing 

Indictment are incorporated and r~alleged as if fully set forth herein. 
7 . 

8 
68. From in or about June 1999 through at least about October 2005, in the 

9 
Western District ofWashlngton and elsewhere, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and 

CHARLES H. WILK. unlavyfully, willfully and knowingly did attempt to evade and 
'10 

11 
defeat ~d aid and abet in the· attempt to evade and defeat a substantial part of the income 

tax due and owing by the POINT tax shelter clients set forth below to the United States of 
12 

America for the calendar years set forth below, by committing and causing to be 
13 

committed the foliowing affIrmative acts, among others: 
14 ,. .. 

15 
a. preparing and executing and causing to be. prepared and executed 

false and fraudulent documents to deceive the IRS, including promotional documents 
16 

purporting to describe the POINT transaeiion, transactional docume~, and opinion 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

letters; 

b. creathig and causing to be created entities to be used in exec~ting the 

POINT tax shelter transaction; 

c. preparing and' filing, and causing to be prepared and filed, false and 

fraudulent tax returns; and 

d. taking various steps to attempt to defeat the audit of the POINT tax 

shelter clients by causing clients' representatives to provide false, fraudulent and 
24 

25 
misleading information and documents to the IRS, purporting to describe' and document 

their respective POINT transactions, including, but not limited to, the "POINT Strategy" . 
26 

. 27 

28 

document and/or Wlderlying transactional documents, such as the stock Purchase 

Agreements between Barnyille and Jackstones, Securities Lending Agreen,lents between 
. '. 

Barnville and Jackstones, and 'the Warrant Subscription Agreements'purportedly entered 

Second Superseding IndictmenV 
Greenstein et aV CROS'-296RSM 30 

UNITED STAlES AITORNEY 
700 Sn!w/Jll: SnEEr. SUITE 5220 

SEAm.£, W ASHlNIlTON 9810 I 
(2(6) S5l-7910 

Page 861 .- ---- ----------' 



21626464 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

21 

28 

Case 2:08-cr-00296-RSM Document 92 Filed 12/30/2009 Page 31 of 42 

into by the various SPVs. 

Count Client Tax Returns Approx. ApproL 
Amount of Date of' 

" 
Fraudulent Tax Filing 
Savings 

2 ClientM.Z. 2000 Form 1040 $24 million 1/12102 

3 ' Client R.J. 2000 Form 1040 $18 million 12/27/01 

4 Client-R.I. 2003 Form 1040 $3 million 10118104 

5 ClientRJ. 2004 Fonn 1040 ' $2 million 10/18/05 

6 Client BJ. 2000 Form 1040 $36 million 12126/01 

7 Client M.S. 2000 Fonn 1040 I $32 million 4/15/01 

8 ClientH.S. 2001 Form 1040 $276 million 10115102 

9 Client MS. 2001 Form 1040 $11 million 10/16/02 

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201 and Title 18, United 

States Code, Section 2. 

COUNTS 10·14 
" 

(Counseling FalSe Tax Filings) 

69. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-65 of this Second Superseding 

Indictment are incorporated and re.alleg~d as if fully ~et forth herein. 

70. On or about the dates hereinafter set forth. in the Western District of 

Washington, and elsewhere, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, did 

willfully aid and assist in, and procure, coWlSel, and advise the preparation and 

presentation to the Internal Revenue Service, of U.S. Returns QfPartnership Income, 

Forms 1065, for the partnership entities and calendar years hereinafter specified. The 

returns were ruse and fraudulent as to material matters, in that they represented and 

caused to be represented that the partnership entities were entitled Wlder ,the provisions of 

the Internal Revenue laws to report the following capital losses in amounts hereinafter 

specified, whereas"as JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK then and 

there knew, the partnership entities were not entitled to report the capital losses in such 

amoWlts. 
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Count Partnership Tax Year APgTOX. Approx. amount of 

10 

11 
12 

13 

14 

Da eof Fraudulent Capital 
. Filing Loss ." 

Torens 2000 10124/01 $137 million 
Limited 

Reka Limited 2000 10115101 $137 million 

Bur~dy 2000 10/15/01 $158 million 
Limlted 

Titanium 2001 10115/02 $614 million 
Trading 
Partners LLP 

Cobalt 200] 6/17/02 $54 million 
Trading " 
Partners LLP 

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(2). 

COUNTS 15-17 
(Wire Fraud) 

" 71. Beginning at a time unknown, but no later than in or about June 1999 and 

15 continuing until in or about January 2005, in Seattle, Washington, within the Western 

16 District of Washington, and elsewhere. JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. 

17 WILK, together with others known and unknown, did knowingly devise and intended to . 

18 devise, and aided and abetted in devising, a scheme and artifice to defraud,. and to obtain 

19 money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, 

20 representations, and promises. and concealment of material facts, knowing that tho/ were 

21 false and fraudulent when made, and transmitting and caW3ing to be 1r~mitted certain 

22 wire communications in interstate commerce for the purpose of executing the scheme. 

23 If INTRODUCflON, 

24 72. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 2-18 of this Second Superseding 

25 Indictment are incorporated and re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

II. ESSENCE OF THE 
SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD. 

26 

27 73. The essence of the scheme and artifice to defraud was for JEFFREY I. 

28 GREENSJEIN and CHARLES H. WILKto design, market and execute a fraudulent tax 
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1 shelter known as POINT on behalf of wealthy individuals through which they could and 

2 did earn millions of dollars in fees, as well as retain the wealthy clients 8S investors in 

3 Quellos' various investment funds through which the company earned additional revenue~ . 

4 The scheme and artifice to defraud proceeded in two phases: 

5 a. First, in order to induce clients to participate in the fraudulent taX 

6 shelter, JEFFERY I. GREENS1EIN and CHARLE~ H. WILK provided and caused to -be 

7 provided false, fraudulent and misleading marketing documents, transactional documents, 

8 and false, fraudulent and misleading legal opinion letters from national ~aw firms aU of 

9 which described the transaction as involving the purchase of partnerships that owned low 

10 valuelhigh basis "stocks," whereas, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN 81ld CHARLES H. 

11 WILK knew, in truth and fact, that the transactions did not involve any such stocks. 

12 b. Second, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN imd CHARLES H. WILK were 

13 aware that clients who exe.cuted the POINT tax shelter strategy w.ouId likely be subject to 

14 . ms audit. As such, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILl(, in 

15 furtherance of the continuing scheme and artifice to defraud, proVided and· caused to be 

16 provided false, fraudulent and misleading representations and explanations about the 

17 POINT transactions to the clients in response to their ~equests for assistance with audits . 

18 and anticipated audits in order to prevent detection of the scheme and artifice, andto 

19 prevent the loss of such clients as investors. 

20 74. As a result of their scheme and artifice to defraud, a total oftive individuals 

21 - Clients M.Z., R.J., B.l., M.S .• and H.S ... - paid approximately $86 million in fees to 

22 participate in POINT. Moreover, ~ese clients also collectively invested tens of millIons 

23 of dollars in various Quellos investment vehicles, earning QueUos substantial sums in 

24 additional fees. 

25 

26 
IlL MANNER AND MEANS OF THE 

SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD1 

27 75. The manner and means of the scheme and artifice to defraud are set forth in 

28 paragraphs 20-65 ofthis Second Superseding Indictment, which are incorporated and re- . 
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l' alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

2 

3 

4 

IV. EXECUTION OF THE 
SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD. 

76. On or about the dates set forth below, at Seattle, Washington, within the 

WestemDistrict of Washington. and elsewhere, having devised the above...<Jescn'bed 
5 

scheme and artifice to de:fraud, JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, 
6 

for the purpose of executing this scheme and artifice to defraud, did knowingly cause to 
7 

be transmitted by wire communication in interstate or foreign commerce m:itings, signals, 
8 

picture, and sounds, each transmission of which co~titutes a separate count of this 
9 

Second Superseding Indictment. 
10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Count Date Sender 

15 10/21/04 Ern-ployee 
of (,JueUos 

16 10/26/04 CHARLES 
H. WILK 

Recipient 

Attorney for 
ClientH.S. 

Attomeyfor 
Clients R.J. and 
BJ. 

Wire Transmission 

Email sent· from Seattle, 
Wasbington to Los Angeles, 
Califorrua attaching the ''POINT 
Strategy" documellt, which 
falsely, fraudulently and 
-misleadingly descnbed the . . 
POINT transaction as involving 
the acguisition by the taxpayer 
ofhilili/basis low value "stock" 
that Dad been contributed to a . 
partnership by an "offshore 
investment fund." 

Email sent from Seattle, 
Washington to New York, New. 
York attaChing a document 
entitled ''Bamville, to which 
falsely' stated that Bamville 
contrIbuted "stock." to the Spy 
acquired by the clients. 

22 17. 11115/04 CHARLES Clients RJ. and Faxed letter sent from 
H. WILK B.J. Wash~on D.C. to New York, 

New York in which CHARLES 
H. WILK falsely suggests that 
QueUos was not involved in the 
original transaction between 
Barnville and Jackstones; that 
the documents appear to indicate 
that Jackstones sold to Bamville 
''the right to beneficial 
ownership of shares .... " 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 . All in violation of Title 18. United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2. 
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COUNT 18 
(Conspiracy to Launder Monetary Instrumellts) 

77: Beginning at a time unknown, but no later than in or about March 2001) and 

continuing through in or about January 2008, at Seattle, Washington, within the Western 
4 

District of Washington, and elsewhere. Matthew O. Krane, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, 
5 

and CHARLES K WILK, together with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, 
6 

did knowingly combine, conspire, and agree with .each other to commit offenses against 
7 

the United Sta~ in violation of Title ·18, United States Code, Section 1956, to Wit, to 
8 

knowingly conduct and attempt to conduct a fmancial transaction affecting interstate and 
9 

foreign commerce, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity. that is 
10. 

11 

12 

Deprivation of Honest Services, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 

1343 :and 1346, and Wire Fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

1343, knowing that the transactions were designed in whole or in part to conceal and 
n 

disguise the nature, location, source, ownership, and control of the proceeds of specified 
1.4 . 

unlawful activity, and that while conductmg and.attemptlllgto c~duct"such financial 
15 

transac~ons, knew that the property involved in the fmaricial transactio~ represented the 
16 

proceeds of some fonn of~awful activity, in violation of Title 18. United States Code, 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Section 1956(a)(1)(B}(i}. 

I, INTRODUCTION. 

At various times relevant to this Second Superseding Indictment: 

78. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 2-18 of this Second Sup~seding 

Ind~ctment are incorporated and re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. . 
22 

23 
79. Defendant Matthew G. Krane was an attorney, licensed in the State of 

California. Matthew G. Krane was a sole practitioner who specialized in the area of tax. 
24 

25 
80. Client ~.S. was a Los Angeles based businessman. Beginning 

approximately in 1990 or 1991, Matthew G. Krane was engaged by Client H.S. to provide 
26 

tax advice and tax planning services to Client H.S. and Client H.S.'s business. 
27 

28 
81. 'B.H. is a resident of Switzerland and a busiJ;less associate of Matthew G. 

Krane. 

Second Superseding Indictment! 
Greenstein ct aJ/ CR08-296RSM 35 

UNITIID 5rAlES ATIORNEY 
700 S1EWA1tJ S'BEIrr. Sum; 5220 

SFArn.1r, W ASIIINGTIlIl9810 I 
(206) 553-7970· 



21626464 

Case 2:08-cr-00296-RSM Document 92 Filed 12130/2009 Page 36 o~ 42 

1· . II. THE ESSENcE OF THE SPECIFIED UNLAWFUL ACTIVITIES: 
. DEPRIVATION OF HONEST SERVICES AND WIRE FRAUD. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

82. Attorneys practicing law in California owe both a fiduciary duty to their 

clients and a duty of loyalty to act in their clients' best interests, both financially and 

otherwise, and to comply with the California Rules of Professional Conduct. 

83. Rule 3-310 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct requires that 

members oftbe California Bar ··shall not accept or continue representation of a client 

without providing written disclosure to ~e client where ... the member J.tas or had a legal, 

business, financial, or professional interest in the subject matter of the representation." 
9 

10 

11 

84. The essence of the Specified Unlawful Activities is that beginning in or 

about January 2001 and continuing through in or. about December 2002, Matthew G .. 

Krane, knowingly and willfully devised and intended to devise a ~cheme and artifice to 
12 

13 
Qefraud and deprive Client H.S. of his intangible right to honest services as his attorney, 

and used or caused the use of the wires in furtherance of the scheme; and that Matthew G.· 
14 

Krane lrnowmglY·and willfully devised andintend~ to devise a ~henie and artifice to 
15 

16 
obtain money and property of Client H.S. by means of materially false and fraudulent 

pretenses~ representations, promises, and omissions, and Used or cause" the use of the 
17 

wires in furtherance of the scheme. 
18 

85. It was part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that"in late 2000, Client 
19 

H.S. engaged Matthew G. Krane to find a means to minimize anticipated capital gains 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

taxes stelpn1ing from a sale of certain ofCHent H.S.'s assets. 

86." It was a further part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that soinetime 

in early 2001, Matthew G. Krane introduced Client H.S. to QueUos and CHARLES H. 

WILK who, according to Matthew G. Krane, had devised a financial transaction through 

which Client H.S. cpuld shelter his capital gains. 

87. It was a further part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that Matthew 

G. Krane represented to Client H.S. that he. would need to pay approximately $46 million 

in fees to QueUos for their work in implementing the transaction. Matthew G. Krane 

represented that the fees were reasonable because the transaction would save Client H.S. 
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substantially more in taxes than it cost .. 

2 88. It was a further part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that Client 

3 H.S .• relying upon the advice and representations of Matthew G. Krane that the 

4 transaction was legitimate and that the fees and costs were reasonable, agreed to enter 

5 into the tax shelter transaction with QueUos. 

6 89. It was a further part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that, contrary 

·7 to what Matthew G. Krane represented to Client H.S. about the fee arrangements, 

8 Matthew G. Krane, JEFFREY I. GREENS1EIN, and CHARLES H. WILK had entered 

9 into a separate agreement whereby JEFFREY 1. GREENS1EIN and CHARLES H. WnJ~. 

10 promised to kickback.to Ma~ew G .. Krane more than half of the fees that Client H.S. 

11 agreed to pay Quellos. 

12 90. It was a further part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that Matthew 

13 G. Krane, contrary"to his duties as Client H.S.'s attorney, never disclosed to Client H.S . 

. 14 .. the kickback arrangeinent he had entered into with JEFFREY 1. GREENSTEIN and 

15 CHARLES H. WILK. 

16 91. It was a further part of both schemes and artifices to defraud that Matthew 

17 G. Krane knew about and participated with CHARLES H. WlLK and others in creat~g . 

18 false and misleading documents to hide from the IntemalRevenue Service and others the 

19 true amount of fees and costs· paid by Client H.S. to take part in the tax spelter 

20 transaction. 

21 92. It was a further part of both schemes WId artifices to defraud that in or abou~ 

22 October and November 2001, when Client H.S. 's tax shelter transaction was completed, 

23 CHARLES H. WILK, in Seattle, Washingto.n, in fulfilhnent of the kickback arrangement 

24 with Matthew G. Krane, cause~, by means of international wire tninsfers, the following 

25 payments totaling approximately $36 million: 

26 a. On or about October 31, 2001, the transfer of approximately $28 

·27 

28 

million from HSBC Bank in New York, New York, to European 

American Inves1ment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria, for the benefit of 
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b. 

c. 

an account in the name ofQFS Consultants, Ltd; 

On or about October 25,2001, the transfer of approximately $7.5 

million from HSBC Bank in New York, New York, to European 

American Investment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria, which amount 

w~s further transferred on or about November 1,2001. to another 

. account in European American Investment Bank AG in Vie~a, 

Austria for the benefit" of an account in the name 'of QFS 

. Consultants, Ltd. 

On or about November 7, 200 1, the transfer of approximately 

$600,000 from HSBC Bank in New York, New Yorle, to European. 

AIDerican Investme~t Bank A G in Vienna, Austria, for the benefit of 

an account in the name of QFS Consultants, Ltd~ 

13 C. Manner and 'Means of the Conspiracy to Launder Monetary Instruments. 

14 93. The manner'and means by which Matthew G. Krane, JEFFREY 1. 

IS GREENSJEIN, CHARLES H. WILl(, and their coconspirators sought to accomplish the 

16 object of the conspiracy included, among other things, the following: 

17 94. In or· about Octo~r 2001, CHARLES H. WILK. who was working in 

18 Seattle, Washington, introduced Matthew G. ~e to J.8. and RP. in London, England, 

19 . and requested that J.S. and RP. assist Matthew G. Krane in establishing an offshore 

20 company and an offshore bank account to hold Matthew G. Krane's share of fees 

21 generated from Client H.S.'s tax shelter transaction. 
. : 

22 95. In or about October 2001, Matthew G. Krane and B.H. agreed that in return. 

.23 for a paYment of $1 million, RH. would act on behalf of Matthew G. Krane as the sole 

'24 beneficial owner of the offshore company to be set up thro.ugh the assistance ofJ.S. and. 

25 R.P. B.H. further agreed with Matthew G. Krane that he would manage an offshore 

26 account in the name ofthls offshore company on Matthew G. Krane's behalf. 

27 96. In or about October 2001, B.H., through the assistance ofRP. and others, 

28 utilized a corporate administrator based in Gibraltar to obtain the use of a shell·company 
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known as Eldred Ltd., incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. 

2 97. On or about October 24,2001, at the behest of Matthew G. Krane, B.H. 

3 instructed the corporate administrator of Eldred Ltd. to change the name of the company 

4 to QFS Consultants Ltd. QFS was similar to acronyms used by various sub~idiaries of 

5 Quellos. Matthew G .. Krane chose the name QFS so that do~uments regarding fees that 

6 vvere, in truth,. being paid to Matthew G. Krane in fulfillment of the kickback arrangement 

. 7 with JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN and CHARLES H. WILK, would fraudulently appear to· 

8 others as if they were being paid to Quellos. · 

9 9R. On or about October 24, 2001, at the behest of Matthew G. Krane, B.H. 

10 opened a bank account in Vienna, Austria, at European American Investment Bank AG in 

11 the name of QFS. 

12 99. O~ or about October 31,2001, at the behest ofMatthewG. Krane, 

13 CHARLES H. WILK, from Seattle, Washi?-gton. einailed instructions to HSBC, a bank in 

14 New y. ork, to transfer approx:imately $28 million frOIn the fees generated from Client 

15 H.S.'8 tax'shelter transaction to the QFS account at European Anierican Investoient Bank 

. 16 AG in Vienna, Austria. 

17 100. On or about October 25,2001, approximately $28 million in proceeds from 

18 the above described scheme and artifice to defraud as set forth in paragraphs 82 through 

19 92, was transferred via wire from an HSBC account in New York, New York, to an 

20 account in the name of QFS at European American Investment Bank AG in Vienna., 

21 Austria. 

22 101. On or about October 25,2001, at the behest of Matthew G. Krane and 

23 consistent with the undisclosed fee sharing agreement as described in above paragraphs 

24 82 through 92, CHARLES H. Wll..K, with the knowledge and consent of JEFFREY 1. 

25 GREENSTEIN, emailed from Seattle, Washington. instructions to Euram, to transfer 

26 approximately $8 million in additional fees generated from Client H.S. 's tax shelter 

27 .transaction that had been held in the name ofEuram to the QFS account at European 

28 American Investment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria. 
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1 102. On or about November 1,2001, in accordance with the instructionS from 

2 CHARLES H. WILK, Euram caused approximately $7.5 million in proceeds from the 

3 above described scheme and artifice to defraud as set forth in paragraphs 82 through 92, 

4 to be transferred from an account in the name ofEuram at European American 

5 fuvestment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria, to the account in the name of QFS at European 

6 American Bank AG in Vienna, Austria. 

7 103. On or about November 7,2001, in accordance with the instructions from 

8 CHARLES H, WILK, Euram caused approximateJy $600,000 in proceeds from the above 
- -

9 described scheme and artifice to defraud as set forth in paragraphs 82 through 92, to be 

10 transferred from an account at HSBe in New York, New York. to the account in the name 

-11 of QF~ at European American Investment Bank AG in Vienna; Austria. 

12 104. In or about October 2001, in response to due diligence demands by the QFS 

13 corponite administrators for explanations as to the source of the $36 mJIlion"in funds held 
- , 

.. 14 . by QFS, Matthew G. 'Krane, CHARLES H. WILK and JEFFREY I.@REENSTEIN . 

15 agreed to ex~ a written agreement wherein it was made to falsely appear that QFS, 

16 and not Matthew G. Krane, obtained the money ~ a result ofa fee~sharing agreement 

17 with Quellos fo~ "non~legar' advisory services that QFS'provided in connection with 

18 Client H.S.'s tax shelter transaction. 

19 105. In or about October 2001, Matthew G. Kraileinstructed B.H. to find 

20 someone wholly unrelated to Client H.S. and MATIHEW KRANEto sign the written 

21 fee-sharing agreement on behalf ofQFS. BlI. agreed to do so, and caused an -

22 acquaintance in London, with no connections to Client H.S., MA T11IEW KRANE, or 

23 QFS, to sign the agreement on behalf of QFS. 

2~ 106. On or about November 5, 2001, B.H. faxed from' Switzerland the written 

25 fee-sharing agreement between QFS and Quellos to Seattle, Washington, for execution of 

26 the agreement by Quellos. 

27 107. On or about November 5, 2001, JEFFREY I. GREENSTEIN, in Seattle, 

28 yv ashington, executed the fee sharing agreement on behalf of Quellos, and CHARLES H. 
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1 WILK caused the agreement to be faxed back to RH. in Switzerland. RH. then 

2 submitted the executed agreement to the QFS corporate administrators in fulfillment of 

3 their due diligence request 

4 ·108. By January 2002, the QFS corporate administrators continued to be 

5 dissatisfied with the explanation for the source of the. $36 million held by QFS. In or 

6 about January 2002, in response to the corporate administrator's continued due diligence 

7 requests, Matthew G. Krane and B.H.. submitted and caused to be submitted a false 

8 document· that falsely explained that the source of the QFS funds were fees from complex 

9 work done by B.H. ,in connection with the sale of Client H.S.' s assets. In .truth, Bll had 

10 done no work in connection with the sale ofClientH.S.'s assets. 

11 . 109. In or about Jan~.2002, Matthew G. Krane caused to be incorporated in 

12 the State of Delaware a new corporation known as Goldfluegel Partnerschaft, ILC 

13 (hereinaiter "Goldfluegel") . 

. 14 .. ltO. . In or about July 2002, Matthew G .. Krane caused. to b.e opened a new bank . 

15 account at European American Investment Bank AG in Vienna, Austria in the name of 

J 6 Goldfluegel. 

17 11L On or about July31. 2002, Matthew G. Krane and B.H. instructed European 

18 American Investment Bank AG to transfer approximately $35 million in proceeds from 

19 the above described scheme and artifice to defraUd held in the European American 

20 Investment B~ AG's qFS accountto the new account in·the name of Goldfluegel. 

21 Matthew G. Krane and B.H. agreed that the remaining approximately $1 million in 

22 proceeds in the QFS account was for B.H.'s use in fulfillment of Matthew G. Krane's 

23 agreement to pay RH. for his involvement with QFS. 

24 112. On or about the dates listed below, MATIREW KRANE cmlSed the 

25 fol1ow~g wire transfers from the European American Investment Bank AG's account in 

26 Vienna, Austria, in the Dame of Goldfleugel, to an account in the name of Matthew G. 

27 Krane at Charles Schwab & Company, Inc. in San Francisco, California. These monetary 

28 transactions involved proceeds from the above described scheme and artifice. In an effort 
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to disguise the purpose, source, and nature of these monetary transactions, Matthew G. 

Krane caused each of the wired funds to be accompanied with a false notation that thes~ 

amounts were' being paid to Matthew G. Krane for "legal fees." 

Date of Wire Transfer Amount of Wire Transfer 

November 18, 2004 $ 86,259.77 

February 23,2005 $76,277.23 

December 30, 2005 $124,939.52 

April 12, 2006 $137,288.68 

SePtember 5, 2006 $198,814.07 

February 8, 2007 $164,426.22 

June 11,2007 $192,049.93 

September 21,2007 $65,587.06 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h). 

A TRUE BILL: 
. . . DATED: ': ... \·~t-~oi-~aJ1-

Si~ature ofForeperson redacted purnuant 
to the \lUcy ofllie Judicial Conference 
of the nited States. 

FOREPERSON 
-- - . . _ ... . .". - --- -- - _ .... __ . __ .- --- --

Jfjjdn!1Jk ft-.urt-

11:r~ 
MARK BARTLET!' 
First Assistant United States Attorney 

~~'-~~~J~' .-=:> 
~~~KKlliKSON Ass stant United States Attorney 

.' 
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DNrrnD STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

ATSEATfLE 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

PlaintUt: 

v. 

JEFFREY I GREENSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

No. CR08"0296RSM 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

11 The United States of Americ~ by and furough Jenny A. Durkan, United States Attorney 

18 for the Western District of Washington, and Robert Westinghouse, Katheryn Kim Frierson, 

19 Michael Dion, and Jen-od Patterson, Assistant United States Attorneys for said District, 

20 Defendant, Jeffrey Greenstem, and his attorneys, Jeffery: Robinson, Andrew Levander. and 

21 Benjamin Rosenberg enter into the following Agreement. pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal 

22 Procedure 11 (c): 
- . 

23 L The Charges. Defendant, having been advised of the right to have this matter 

24 tried before a jury, agrees to waive that right and enters his pleas of guilty to the following 

2S charges contained in the Second Superseding Indictment (hereinafter, the ''Indictment''). 

26 a. Conspiracy to Defraud the United States! as charged in Count 1, in violation 

27 of Title 18, United States Code; Section 371; and 

28 

PLEAAGREEMENTlGreenstein 
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b. Aiding and Assisting the Filing of a False Return, as charged in Count 13, . 

2 in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(2). 

3 By entering pleas of guilty, Defendant hereby waives all objections to the form of the charging 

4 document. Defendant further understands that before entering bis.pleas of gUilty, he will be 

5 placed under oath. Any statement given by Defendant under oath may be used by the United 

6 States in a prosecution for perjury or false statement 

7 2." Elements oftbe Offense. The elements of the offense of Consp~y to Defraud 

8 the Unit.ed States, as charged in Count 1, in violation of Title 18, United States Code. Section 

9 371, are as follows: 

10 First, the existence of an agreement by two or more persons to defraud an agency 

11 of the United States, specific3J.ly, the Internal Re~enue Service of the United States Department 

12 of Treas-ury for the purpose of impeding, impairing. defeating and obstructing the lawful 

13 governmental functions ofth~ IRS in the ascertainment. evaluation, assessmentt and collection 

14 of inc~me 'taxes; 

IS Second. the defendant's knowing and voluntary participation in the conspiracy; 

16 and 

17 Third, t.b.e commission of an overt act in fi.ni:h6l'3.1lce of the conspiIacy. 

18 . The elements of the offense of Aiding and Assisting the Filing of a False Return, 

19 in violation of Title 26, United States C<xie, Section 7206(2), are as follows: 

20 First, the defendant aided or assisted in, procured, counseled. or advised the 

21 preparation or presentation of a document, specifically, Form. 1065, U.S. Returns ofPartnersbip 

22 Income, in c~mnection with a matter arising under the internal revenue laws; 

23 Second, the document waS false as to a material matter; and 

24 Third, the act of the defendant was willful. 

2S 3. The Penalties. Defendant understands that the statutory penalties for the offenses 

26 of Conspiracy to Defraud the United States, as charged in Countl, and Aiding and Assisting in 

27 the Filing of False Returns, ~ charged in Count 13, are as follows: 

28 
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a. Count 1 (Cons.pimcy to Defraud the United States): Imprisonment for up to 

"2 five (5) years, a fine of up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) or, in cases 

3 involving pecuniary gain as a result of the offense, of an amount no greater than twice the gross 

4 gain pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3571(d}, a period of supervision following 

5 release :from prison of at least two (2) years but not more than three (3) years, and a special 

6 assessment of one hundred dollars ($lOO.oo). 

7 b. Count 13 (Aidin~ and Assisting in the Filing of False Retqrn§): 

8 Imprisonment for up to three {3) years, a fine of up to two hundred fifty thousand dollars 

9 ($250.000.00) or, in cases involving peclll1iary gain as a result of the offense, of an amount no 

10 greater than twice the ~ss gain pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 3571 (d) and 

11 (e), together with the co$ts of prosecution, a period ofsupe:ryision following release from prison 
" " 

12 of up to one (1) year, and a special assessment of one 'hundred dollars ($loo.oo). 

13 If Defendant receives a sentence of probation, the probationary period could be IIp 

14 to five (5) years. Defendant agrees that the special assessment shall be paid at or before the time 

IS of sentencing. 

16 Defendant understands that supervised release is a period of time following 

17 imprisonme.nt during which he will be subject to certain restrictions and requirements. 

18 Defendant further understands that if sUpervised release is imposed and he violates one or more 

19 of its conditions, Defendant could be returned to prison for all or part of the term of supruvised 

20 :release that was originally imposed. This could result in Defendanfs serving a total term of 

21 inlprisonment greater than the statutory maximum stated above. 

22 Defendant agrees that any monetary penalty the Court impo~ including the 

23 special assessment, fine, or costs, is due and payable at the time of sentencing or before. If 

24 pa.yment is not made by the time of or at sentencing, Defendant agrees to submit a completed 

25 Financial Statement of Debtor fonn as requested by the United States Attorney's Office. 

26 4. Rights Waived by Pleading Gullty. Defendant1l1lderstands that by pleading 

27 guilty, he knOwingly and voluntarily waives the following rights: 

28 a. The right to plead not guilty and to persist in a plea of not guilty; " 
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b. The right to a speedy and public trial before a jury of his peers; 

2 c. The right to the effective assistance of counsel at trial; including, if 

3· Defendant could not afford an attorney, the right to have the Com1 appoint one for him; 

4- d. The right to be pr~ed innocent until guilt has been established beyond a 

5 reasonable doubt at trial; 

6 

7 trial; 

8 

e. The righ:t to confront and cross~xamine witnesses against Defendant at 

f. . The ri~t to compel or subpoena witnesses to appear on his behalf at trial; 

9 g. . The riglit to testify or to remain silent at trial~ at which trial such silence 

10 could not be -used against Defendant; and 

II . b. The rlglit to appeal a finding of guilt or any pretrial rolings. 

12 5. United States Sentencmg GuidelineS. Defendant understands and acknowledges 

13 that, at sentencing, the Court must consider the sentencing range calculated under the 

14 United States Sentencing GuidelineS, together with the other factors set forth in Title 18, 

15 United States Code, Section J553(a), including: (1) the nature and circumstances of the 

16 offenses; (2) the history and ~teristics of the defendant; (3) the need for the sentence to 
, 

11 reflect the seriousness of the offenses, to promote respect for the law, and to provide just 

18 punishment for the offenses; (4) the need for the sentence to afford adequate deterrence to 

19 criminal conduct; (5) the need fQf the sentence to protect the public from further crimes of the 

20 defendant; (6) the need to pfl?vide the defendant with educational and vocational training, 

. 21 medical cafe> or other correctional treatment in the most effective manner; (7) the kinds of 

22 sentences available; (8) the n~ to provide restitution to victims; and (9) the need to avoid 

23 unwarranted sentence disparity among defendants involved in similar conduct who have similar 

24 records. Accordingly, Defendant understands and acIalowledges that: 

2S The Court will determine his applicable Sentencing Guidelines range at the. 

26 time of sentencing; 

27 

28 

b. After consideration of the Sentencing Guidelines and the factors in 
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1 18 U.S.C. 3553(a), the Court;may impose any sentence authorized by law, up to the maximum 

2 term authorized by law; 

3 c. The Court is not bound by any recommendation regarding the sentence to 

4 be imposed, or by any calc1i1a.tion or estimation of the Sentencing Guidelines range offered by 

5 the parties or the United States Probation Department, or by any stipulations or agreements 

6 between the parties in thi~ Plea Agreement; and 

7 d. Defendant may not withdraw a guilty plea solely because of the sentence 

8 imposed by the Court. 

9 . 6. mtimate Sentence. Defendant acknowledges that no one has promised or 

10 guaranteed what sentence the Court will impose. 

Il 7. Statement of Facts. The parties agree on the following facts. Defendant admitS 

12 he is guilty oftbe charged o,renses. 

13 Quellos Group, LLC (hereinafter "Quellos"), formerly known as Quadra Capital 

14 Management, LP, was an investment management services finn founded in 1994 and· 

15 headquartered in Seattle, W~bingtoD. Defendant Jeffrey Greenstein was a founder and Chief 

16 Executive Officer of Quellos;. Defendant Charles Wllk was hired by QueUos in May of 1999 

17 and becanle a principal in M!}y of2000. 

18 Beginning in 1999 and continuing through 2005t Jeffrey Greenstein, together with 

19 Charles Wilk, and others conspired and agreed to defraud the Internal Revenue ServiCe by 

20 qesigning, promoting, and implementing a fraudulent tax shelter~ which they referred to by the 

21 acronym, POINT, and by directly and indirectly deceiving and lying to the IRS dming 

22 examinations ofreturos that taxpayers filed in reliance upon POINT. To accomplish the 

23 objective of~ conspiracy, Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles Wilk worked with individuaJs at 

24 European American Inves1ment Group (EURAM) to create fictitious losses through the 

25 purported purchase and sale ~f"synthetic" stock with a paper value exceeding $9.6 Billion 

26 between two Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV1s), Isle of Man businesses, Jackstones, Ltd., and 

27 Bamville, Lid, which bad no assets. In truth there was no actual stock; no purchase and sale of 

28 actual stock; no payment for actual stock, and no basis in stock. These fictitious losses were 
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I used in POINT to offset approximately equal dollar amounts of real capital gains, thereby 

2 deferring substantial capital gains taxes. 

3 As part of the conSpiracy and in furtherance of it, Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles 

4. Wilk told wealthy individuals and their advisors with substantial capital gains that they could 

5 defer taxes on snch capital gains by participating in POINT. The defendants then provided and 

6 caused "to be provided to .these willing taxpayers, infonnauon and documentation for POINT that 

7 they knew were false. Th.ey also provided these taxpayers with legal opinions, based upon the " 

8 same fulse infonnation and d9cumentation, that attested to the probable legitimacy ofPOI,NT. 

9 Defendants knew these opinions relied on faIse information and documentation. 

10 The taxpayers, in reliance upon the losses generated by POINT, filed individual 

II and pih-mership returns in which they claimed huge losses ~ a means of offsetting real capital 

12 gains, thereby deferring taxes of approximately $240 Million. When these returns came under 

13 audit. th~ defen~ts gave the taxpayers and their advisors the same fillse infonnation and " 
. " 

14 documentation and the defendants knew that the taxpayers and their advisors would use the false 

15 information and documentation in responding to the IRS. The false infonnation and 

16 docwnentation purportedly explained the genesis and business purpose of the POINT strategy. 

17 Taxpayer H.S .• was one of the taxpayers that participated in POINT. The 

18 partnership entity that H.S_ p~chased in order to obtain the ptIlported btiih in loss to" offset his 

19 capital gain was known as Titairlum. For the tax. year 2001, Taxpayer caused to be filed a U.S. 

20 · Partnership Income Return, Forro 1065, for Titanium in which he claimed approximately $614 

21 mil1ion in capital loss as a result of the sale of the purported technology stocks that were 

22 contributed by Barnville. The loss, however, did not exist Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles Wilk. 

23 knowingly and willful.ly caused to be provided the false loss figure thus aiding and assisting in 

24 the filing of the materially false return. 

2S 8. Tax Offenses. The United States and Defendant stipulate and agree that two 

26 :Pundred and forty million dollars ($240,000,000.00) is the correct amount of tax loss for 

27 purposes of sentencing. The United States and the Defendant agree that this tax·loss :figure 

28 specifically excludes losses from the "Silverlight" transaction which comprised approximately 
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1 half of the tax loss claimed by ~ayer H.S. The United States understands that the Internal 

2 Revenue Service does not intend to assess any additio~ civil tax, penalties, andlor interest that 

3 may be owed by Defendant as a result ofhis conduct in designing, promoting, and implementing 

4 P01NT. However, the United States acknowledges that there is a current examination of 

5 QueUos and Quadra regarding the promotion of various tax shelters, including POINT, and 

6 nothing in this agreement limits the authority of the IRS to complete those examinations and 

7 assess and collect wbatevercivil faxes, penalties, and interest it deems appropriate therein. The 

8 United States agrees that any assessment and collection of civil taxes, penalties, and interest will 

9 be enforced first against Quellos and Quadra. 

10 9. Monetary PeBalties Defendant understands that he is requii-ed to pay the costs of 

11 prosecution, the amount of which will not exceed $400,000.00, and which will be determined 

12 prior to the time of payment Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles Wilk will each pay half of the 

13 assessed cost of prosecution.: Thepayment for the cost of prosecution is to be Dlade on or before 

14 September 30, 2010. 

15 In addition, the Defendant agrees to pay the Internal Revenue Service at the time 

16 of sentencing, asdisgorgementofthe total amount of gain that has been realized by Jeffrey 

17 Greenstein from the design. promotion, and implementation·ofPOINT, the sum of$6.4 Million. 

18 The payment will be made pursuant to a closing agreement that will be provided to the 

19 Defendant and signed by the-Defendant prior to sentencing and which will provide the necessary 

20 documentation for acceptance of this payment by the Internal Revenue Service. If, for any 

21 reason this payment cannot be accepted by the Department of Treasury, alike amount will be 

22 imposed as a fme by the Court at sentencing. 

23 10. Sentencing Recommendation. As part of this plea agreement, 

24 a. The United States agrees to recommend a sentence no greater than 72 

2S months and the Defendant agrees to recommend a sentence of no less than 24 months. 

26 Defendant understands, however, that at the time of sentencing, the Court is free to reject these 

21 reconunendations and sentence up to the maximum permitted by law; 

28 
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1 b. The United States and the Defendant agree to recommend that th6 United 

2 States Sentencing Commission Guidelines Manual effective November 1, 2000 will apply; and. 

3 c. The United States .also agrees tQ join the Defendant in reConunending the 

4 designation of Sheridan Prison Camp as his place of incarCeration and in requesting that 

5 sentencing occur on January 28, 2011. 

6 11. Additional Obligations of Defendant. AB part of this plea agreement, the 

7 Defendant agrees to the.!ol1owmg: 

8 a. The 'Defendant will arrange for and s~ publicly, at a time agreeable to 

9 the institution but pliorto sentencing, at the University of Washington School ofBusines~ 

10 re~g his offense and focusing on the topic of business ethics: The Defendant will provide 

11 prior notice to the United States Attorneys Office of the time and place of the sp~aldng 

12. engagement; and 

13 b. The Defendant will work with the United States to ~in an expedited 

·14 designatio~ to report to the BureauofPrisoQ8 and tose~report as soon as designated, with the 

IS goal of having the Defendant report promptly after sentencing. 

16 12. Interdependence of Plea Agreements. The parties agree that this Plea 

17 Agreement shall be conditio~ed upon the Court's acceptance of the Plea Agreeroent{s) in the 

18 matter of United Statesy. Charles WiUr, CR08-296RSM. . Defendant understands, therefore, that 

19 this Agreement is part ofa package plea agreement with the United 'States, to wit: if either 

20 Defendant or Charles Wilk does no~ enter into, and plead guilty pursuant to the respective Plea 

21 Agreement, or if ei~er Defendant Of Charles Wille subsequently seeks to withdraw froni the 

22 guilty plea~ ~ the United States will withdraw from both Plea Agreements and will seek an 

21 indictment a~st both parties for all crimes for which the United States bas sufficient evidence. 

24 13. Non-Prosecution of Additional Offenses. As part oftbis Plea Agreement, the 

25 United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington agrees to move to 

26 dismiss the remaining counts in the Indictment at the time of sentencing and not to prosecute 

27 Defendant for any additional offenses known to it as of the time of this Agreement tlult are based 

28 upon evidence in its possession at this time, and that arise out of the conduct giving rise to this 
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1 investigation. In this regard, Defendant recognizes the United States has agreed not to prosecute 

2 all of the crinrinal cbarges set forth in the indictment solely because of the promises made by 

3 Defendant in this Aweement. Defendant agrees, however, that for purposes of preparing the 

4 Presentence Report, theUnited States Attorney's Office will provide the United States Probation 

5 Office with evidence of all conduct committed by Defendant 

6 Defendant agrees that any charges to be dismissed before or at 1he time of . 

7 sentencing were substantially justified in light of the evidence available to the United states. 

8 wer~ not vexatious. frivolous or taken in bad fai~ and do not provide Defendant with a basis for 

9 any future claims under the "JIyde Amendment,11 Pub.L. No. 105~ 119(1997). 

10 14. Ac~ptance ofResponsibillty. The United States acknowledges that ifDefen~t 
II qualifies roran acceptance of responsibility adjustment pursuant to USSG § 3E 1.1 (a), 

12 =.if .. jo!fenseIOVOI is sixteen (16) or greater. his rota! offense level~d be decr~ by 

13 ~vels j~suantto USSG §§ 3B1.1(a) and (b). because he has assiSted the Umted States 

14 *;~li :ltifyingthe authorities of Defendanr s intention to plead guilty. thereby permitting 

15 the United States to avoid pryparing for trial and pennitting the Court to alloCate its resourees 

16 efficiently. 
, ' 

11 15. Breach, Waiver, and Post-Plea Con.duet. Defendant agrees that if Defendant 

IS breaches this Plea Agreement, the United States may withdraw from this Plea Agreement and 

1·9. Defendant may be prosecuted for all offenses for which the United States haS evidence. In such 

2(} event, Defendant agrees not to oppose any steps taken by the United States to nullify this Plea 

21 Agreement, including the filing of a motion to withdraw from the ~lea Agreement. Defendant 

22 also agrees thatuDefeqdant is in breach of this Plea Agreement, Defendant has waived any 

23 objection to the fe"institution of any charges in the Indictment that were previously dismissed or 

24 any additional cbarges ,that had not been prosecuted. 

25 Defendant further understands that if. after the date of this Agreement, Defendant 

26 should engage in illegal conduct, or conduct that is in violation of his conditions of release 
. ' 

27 (examples of which include, but are not limited to; obstruction of justice, failure to appear for a 

28 court pr~eeding, criminal conduct while pending sentencing, and false statements to law 
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enforcement agents, the.Pretrial Services Officer, Probation Officer, or Court}, the United States 

2 is free under this Agreement to file additional charges against Defendant or to seek a sentence 

3 that takes. such conduct into consideration by requesting the Court to apply additional 

4 adjustments Of enhancements in its Sentencing Guidelines calculations in order to increase the 

s applicable ad\1isory Guidelines range, andlor by seeking an upward departure or variance·from 

6 the calculated advisory Guidelines range. Under .t1;tese circumstances, the United States is :free to 

1 seek such adjustments, enhan;cements, departures, andlor variances even if otherwise precluded 

8 by the terms of the plea agreement 

9 16. Waiver of Appeal. As part of this Plea Agreement and on the condition that the 

10 Comt imposes a custOdial sentence that js within Of below the Sentencing Guidelines range (or · 

11 the statutOlY mandatory minimum, if greater than the Guidelines range) that is detennined by the 

12 Court at the time of sentencing, Defendant waives to the full extent of the law: 

13. a any right conferred by Title 18. United States Code, Section 3142 to appeal1he· 

14 

15 b. 

16 

sentence, including· any restitution order Unposed; and 

any right tobringa collateral attack against the conviction and sentence, including 

any restitution order imposed, except as it may relate to the effectiveness oflegal 

17 . representation. 

18 Furthermore,. this waiver does not preclude Defendant from bringing an appropriate motion 

19 pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 2241.10 address the conditions of his confinement or the decisions of the 

20 Bureau ofPri6ons regarding the execution of his sentence. 

21 If Defendant breaches this Plea Agreement at any time by appealing or ~llatera1ly 

22 attacking (except as to effectiveness of legal representation) the conviction or sentence in any 

23 way, the United States may prosecute Defendant for any counts, including those with mandatory 

24 minimum sentences, that were dismissed or not charged pUrsuant to this Plea Agreement 

2S 17. Voluotarlness of Plea. Defendant agrees that Defendant has entered into this Plea 

26 Agreement freely and voluntarily and that no threats or promises, other than the promises 

27 contained in this Plea Agreement, were made to induce Defendant to enter these pleas of guilty. 

28 18. Statute of Limitations. In the event this Agreement is not accepted by the Court 
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1 for any reaso~ or Defendant has breached any of the ternis of this Plea Agreement, the statute of 

2 limitations shall be deemed to have been tolled from the date of the Plea Agreement to: 

3 (1) thirty (30) days following the date of non-acceptance of the Plea Agreement by the Court; or 

4 (2) thirty (30) days following the date on which a breach of the Plea Agreement by Defendant is 

5 discovered by il,te United States Attorney's Office. 

6 19. Complete~ess of Agreement. The United States and Defendant acknowledge that 

7 these tennsconstitute the entire' Plea Agreement between the parties. This Agreement binds 

8 only the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington. It does not 

9 bind any other United States Attorney's Office or any other office or agency of the 

10 United States, except as provided in Paragraph 8 above, or any state or local prosecutor . 

11 

l2 

13 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

28 

. Dated this 10th day of·September,201O. 

JEFFREy 1. GREENStEJN 
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lllllllllll' 11m IIKIIIUI nlll.llll\~ llll· 
IlIlmlllllllllllll~lllllllllln IlllllID n lilt 
08-CR-00296-DOCTRM 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASlllNGTON 

AT SEATTLE 

UNITED STATES OF' AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
No. CR08-0296RSM 

PLEA AGREEMENT 
v. 

CHARLES H. WILl(, 

Defendant 

11 The United States of America, by and through Jenny A. Durkan, United States Attorney 

18 for the Western District of Washington, and Robert Westinghouse, Katheryn Kim Frierson, 

19 Michael Dion, and Jerrod Patterson, Assistant United States Attorneys for said District, 

20 Defendant, Charles Wilk, ~d his attorneys, John Keker, Jan Little, and Pama Blizzard enter into 

21 the. following Agreement, pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure ll(c): 

22 L The Charges. Defendant, having been advised of the right to have this matter 

23 tried before a jury, agrees to waive that right and enters his pleas of guilty to the following 

24 charges contained in the Second Superseding Indictment (hereinafter, the "Indictment"). 

25 . a. Conspiracy to Defraud the United States, as charged in Cotmt 1, in violation 

26 of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371; and 

27 h. Aiding and Assisting the Filing ofa False Return, as charged in Count 13, 

28 in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(2). 
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By entering pleas of guilty. Defendant hereby waives all objections to the form of the charging . 

2 document · Defendant further understands that before entering his pleas of guilty, he will be 

3 placed under oath. Any statelpent given by Defendant under oath may be used by the United 

4 States in a prosecution for perjury or false statement 

5 2. Elements of the Offense. The elements ofthe offense of Conspiracy to Deftaud 

6 the United States, as charged in Count 1, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

7 371, are as follows: ,. 
8 First, the existenceot an a~ement by two or more persons to defraud an agency 

9 of the United States, specifically. the Internal Revenue Service of the United States Department 

10 of Treasury for the purpose of impeding. impairing. defeating and obstructing the lawful 

11 governmental functions of the IRS in the asce.rtainnlen~ evaluation. assessment, and collection 

12 of income taxes; 

13 Second, the defendant's knowing and voluntary participation in. the conspiracy; 

14 and 

15 - Third. ~e commission of an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy~ . 

16 The elements of the offense of Aiding and Assisting the FilingofaFalse Re~ 

17 in violation of Title 26, United States Code. Section 7206(2), are as follows: 

18 First, the defendant aided or assisted in, procured, counseled, or advised the 

19 preparation or presentation ofa document, specifically, Form 1065, U.S. Returns ofParmership 

20 Income, in connection with a matter arising under the internal revenue laws; 

21 

22 

Second, the document was false as to a material matter; and 

Thlrd, the act of the defendant was willful. 

23 3: The Penalties. Defendant understands that the statutory penalties for the offenses 

24 of Conspiracy to Defraud the United States, as charged in COIDltl, and Aiding and Assisting in 

2S the Filing of False Returns, as charged in Count 13, are as follows: 

26 a Count 1 (Conspiraqy to Defraud the United States): hnprisonment for IIp to 

27 five (5) years, a fine of up to two hlllldred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) or, in cases 

28 involving pecuniary gain as·a result of the offense, of an amount no greater than twice the gross 
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gain pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3571 (d)t a period of supervision following 

2 release from prison of at least two (2) years but not more than three (3) years, and a special 

3 assessment of one hundred. dollars ($100.00). 

4 b. Count 13 (Aiding and Assisting in the Filing of False Returns): 

. 5 Imprisonment for up to three (3) years, a fine of up to two hundred fifty thousand dollars 

6 " ($25 OjOOO. 00) 01', in cases involving pecuniary gain as a result of the offense, of ail amount no 

7 greater than twice the gross gain pursuant to Title 18~ United States Code, Sections 3S71(d) and 

8 "(e), together with 1h~ costs of prosecution, a period of supervision following release from prison 

!> of up to one (1) year, and a special assessment of one hundred dollars ($100.00). 

10 If Defendant receives a sentence of probation, the probationary period could be up 

11 to five (5) years. Defendant agrees that the special ass~sment shall be paid at or before the time 

12 of sentencing. 

13 Defendant understands that supervised release is a period of time following 

14 imprisonment during which he will be subject to certain restrictions and requirements. 

15 Defendant further understands that if supervised release is imposed and he violates one or more 

16 of its GOnditions, Defendant could be returned to prison for all or part of the term of supervised 

17 release that was originally imposed. This could result in Defendant's serving a total term of 

18 imprisonment greater than the statutory maximum stated above. 

19 Defendant agrees that any monetary penalty the Court.imposes, including the 

20 special assessment, fine. or costs, is due and payable' at the time of sentencing or before. If 

21 payment is no.t made by the time of or at sentencing, Defendant agrees to submit a completed 

22 Financial Statement of Debtor form as requested by the United States Attomey'siOffice. 

23 4. Rights Waived by Pleading Guilty. Defendant understands that by pleading 

24 guilty, he knowingly and voluntarily waives the following rights: 

25 

26 

27 

a. 

b. 

c. 

The right to plead not guilty and to persist in a plea of not guilty; 

The right to a speedy and public trial before a jUlY of his peers; 

The right to the effective assistance of counsel at trial, including, if 

28 Defendant could not afford an attorney, the right to have the Court appoint one for him; 
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1 d. The right to be presUmed innocent lll1til guilt has been established beyond a 

2 reasonable doubt at trial; 

3 

4 trial; 

s 

6 

e. 

f. 

g. 

The right to confront and cross-examine witnesses against Defendant at 

The right to compel or subpoena witnesses to appear on.his behalf at trial; 

The right to testify or to remain silent at tria~ at which trial such silence 

7 could not be used against Defendant; and 

8 h. The right to appeal a finding of ~t or any pretrial rulings. 

9 5. United States Sentencing Guidelines. Defendant understands and acknowledges 

to that, at senttmcing, the Court must consider the sentencing range calculated under the 

11 United States Sentencing Guidelines, together with the other factors set forth in Title. 18, 

12 United States Code, Section 3553(a), including: (1) the nature·and circumstances of the. 

13 offenses; (2) the history and characteristics of the defendant; (3) the need for the sentence to 

14 reflect the seriousness of the offenses, to promote respect for the law, and to provide just 

15 punishment for the offenses~ (4) the need for the sentence to afford adequate deterrence to 
. . 

16 criminal conduct; (5) the need for the sentence ~o protect the public from further crimes of the 

17 defendant; (6) the need to provide the defendant with educational and vocational training, 

18 medical care, or other correctional treatment in the most e1fe<;:tive manner; (7) the kinds of 

19 sentences available; (8) the need to provide restitution to victims; and (9) the need to avoid 

20 unwarranted sentence disparity among defendants involved in similar conduct who have similar 

21 records. Accordingly, Defendant 1Ulderstands and acknowledges that: 

22 a. The Court will determine his applicable Sentencing Guidelines range at the 

23 time of sentencing; 

24 b. After consideration of the Sentencing Guidelines and the factors in 

25 18 U.S.C. 3553(a), the Court may impose any sentence authorized by law, up to the maximum 

26 tenn authorized by law; 

27 c. The Court is not bound by. any recommendation regarding the sentence to 

28 be imposed, or by any calculation or estimation of the Sentencing Guidelines range offered by 
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the parties or the United States Probation Departmen~ or by any stipulations or agreements 

2 between the parties in this Plea Agreement; and 

3 d. Defendant may not withdraw a guilty plea solely because of the sentence 

4 imposed by" the Court. 

s 6. Ultimate Sentence. Defendant acknowledges that no one has promised or 

6 guaranteed what sentence the Court will imp.ose. 

7 7. Statement of Facts. The parties agree on the following facts. Defendant admits 

8 he is guilty of the charged offenses. 

9 Quellos Group, LLC (hereinafter "QueUos"), formerly known as Quadta Capital 

10 Managemen~ LP, was an investment management services finn founded in 1994 and 

11 headc:t.uartered irt Seattle, Washington. Defendant Jeffrey Greenstejn was a founder and Chief 

12 Executive Officer of Quellos. Defendant Charles Wilk was hired by Quellos in May of 1999 

13 and became a principal in May of2000. 

14 Beginning in 1999 and continuing tbrougb 2005, Charles Wilk, together with 

15 Jeffrey Greenstein, and others conspired and agreed to defraud the Internal Revenue Service by 

16 designing. promoting, and implementing a fraudulent tax shelter, which they referred to by the 

17 acronym~ POINT, and by directly and indirectly deceiving and lying to the IRS during 

18 examinations ofretums that taxpayers filed in reliance upon POINT. To accomplish the 

19 objective of this conspiracy, Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles Wilk worked with individuals at 

iO European American Investment Group (BURAM) to create fictitious losses through the 

21 purported purchase and sale of "synthetic" stock with a paper value exceeding $9.6 Billion 

22 between two Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV's), Isle of Man businesses, Jackstones, Ltd., and 

23 Bamville, Ltd, which had no assets. In truth there was no actual stock; no purchase and sale of 

24 actual stock:; no payment for actual stock, and no basis in stock. These fictitious losses were 

2S used in POINT to offset approximately equal dollar amounts ~f real capital gains, there~y 

26 deferring substantial capital gains taxes. 

27 As part of the conspiracy and in furtherance ofit, Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles 

28 WiTh: told wealthy individuals and their advisors with substantial capital gains that they could 
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1 def6f taxes on such capital gains by participating in POINT. The defendants then provided and 

2 callSed to be provided to these willing taxpayers, information and documentation for POINT that 

3 they knew were false. They also provided these taxpayers with legal opinions. based upon the 

4 same false information and documentation, that attested to the probable legitimacy of POINT. 

5 Defendants knew these opinions relied on false information and documentation. . 

6· The taxpayers. in reliance upon the losses generated by POINT. ftled individual 

7 and partnership returns in which they claimed huge losses as a means of offsetting real capital 

8 gains, thereby deferring taxes of approximately $240 Million. When these returns came under 

9 audit, the defendants gave the taxpayers and their advisors t1;1e same false information and 

to documentation and the defendants knew that the taxpayers and their advisors would use the false 

11 infonnation and docwnentation in responding to the IRS. The false information and 

12 documentation purportedly explained the genesis and business purpose of the POI.NT strategy. 

13 . Taxpayer H.S., was one. of the taxpayers that participated in POINT. The 

14 . partnership entity that H.S. purchased in order to obtain the purported built ·inloss to· offset his 

15 capital gain was known as Titanium. For the tax year 2001. Taxpayer caused to be filed a U.s. 

1'6 Partnership Income Return, Form. 1065, for Titaniwn in which he claimed approximately $614 

17 million in capital loss as a result of the sale of the purported technology stocks that were 

18 conuib~ted by Barnville. The loss, however, did not exist Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles Wilk. 

19 knowingly and willfully caused to be provided the false loss figure thus aiding and assisting in: 

20 the filing of the materially false return. 

21 8. Tax Offenses. The United States and Defendant stipulate and agree that two 

22 hundred and forty million dollars ($240,000,000.00) is the correct amount of tax loss for 

23 purposes of sentencing. The United States and the Defendant agree that this tax loss figure 

24 specifically excludes tosses from the "Silverlight" transaction which comprised approximately 

25 ·half of the tax loss claimed by taxpayer H.S. The United States understands that the Internal 

26 Revenue Service does not intend to assess any additional civil tax, penalties. andlor interest that 

27 may be owed by Defendant as a result of his conduct in designing, promoting, and implementing 

28 POINT. However, the United States acknowledges that there is a current exammation of 
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1 QueUos and Quadra regarding the promotion of various tax, shelters, including POINT, and 

2 nothing in this agreement limits the authority of the IRS to complete those examinations and 

3 assess and collect whatever civil taxes, penalties, and interest it deems appropriate therein. The 

4 United States agrees that any assessment and ~ollection of civil taxes, penalties, and interest will 

5 be enforced first against QueUos and Quadra. 

6 9. Monetary Penalties Defendant understands that he is required to pay the costs of 

7 prosecution, the amount of which will not exceed $400,000.00, and which will be determined 

8 prior to the time of payment. Jeffrey Greenstein and Charles Wilk will each pay half of the 

9 assessed cost of prosecution. The payment for the cost of.prosecution is to be made on or before 

10 September 30, 2010. 

II In addition, the Defendant agrees to pay the Internal Revenue Service at the time 

12 .of sentencing, as disgorgement of the total amount of gain that has been realized by Charles 

13 Wilkfromthe design, promotion,and implementation ofPOlNT, the sum of $600.000. The 

14 payment will be made pursuant to a closing agreement that will be provided to the Defendant· 

IS and signed by the Defendant prior to sentencing and which will provide the necessary 

16 documentation for acceptance of this payment by the Internal Revenue Service. It: for any 

17 reason this payment cannot be accepted by the Department of Treasury, a like amount will be 

18 imposed as a fine by the Court at sentencing. 

19 10. Sentencing Recommenda~ion. As part of this plea agreement, 

20 a. The United States agrees 10 recommend a. sentence no greater than 72 

21 months and the Defendant agrees to recommend a sentence of no less' than 24 months. 

22 Defendant understands, however, that at the time of sentencing, the Court is :free to reject thlfSe 

23 recommendations and sentence up to the maximum pennitted by law; . 

24 h. The United States and the Defendant agree to recommend that the United 

2S S(ates Sentencing Commission Guidelines Manual effective November 1, 2000 will apply; and, 

26 c. The United States also agrees to join the Defendant in recommending the 

27 designation of Sheridan Prison Camp as his place of incarceration and in requesting that 

28 sentencing occur on January 28, 2011. 
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11. Additional Obligations of Defendant. As part of this plea agreement, the 

2 Defendant agrees to the following: 

3 a. The Defendant will arrange for. and speak publicly, at a time agreeable to 

4 the institution but prior to sentencing, at the University of New York Law Schoo} regarding his 

5 offense and focusing on the topic of legal ethics. The Defendant will provide prior notice to the 

6 . United States Attorneys Office of the time and place of the speaking engagement; and 

7 b. . The DefendantwiU work with the United States to gain an expedited 

8 designation to reportto the Bureau of Prisons and to self report as soon as designated, with the 

9 goal ofhavil).g the Defendant report promptly after sentencing. 

10 12. In.terdependenc.\! of Plea Agreements. The parties agree that this Plea 

11 Agreement shall be conditioned upon the Court's acceptance of the Plea Agreement(s) in the 

12 matter of f!nited Stat~ V., J~ Greens1ein,(CR08-296RSM. . .Defendant understands, therefore, 

13 that this Agreement is part of, a package plea agreement with· the Uni~ States, to wit: if either 

, 14 Pefe~dan.t orJeffre)r Greenstein does qot entermto, and plead guilty pursuant to the respective 

15 Plea Agreement, or if either Defendant or Jeffrey Greenstein subsequently seeks to withdraw 
1 ' · -:', <'.' .# ' 

16 from the guilty plea, then the: United States will withdraw from both Plea Agreements and will 

17 seek an indictment against,both parties for all crimes for which the United States has sufficient 

18 evidence. 

19 13. Non-Prosecution of Additional Offenses. As. part ofthis Plea Agreement, the 

20 United States Attorney's Office for ·the Western District of Washington agrees to move·to 

21 dismiss. the rermPning counts in the Indictment at the. time of sentencing and not to prosecute 

22 Defendant for any additional offenses known to it as of the time oftrus Agreement that are based 

23 upon. evidence, in its poss~sion at this time, and that arise out of the conduct giving rise to this 

24 investigation. In this regard, Defendant recognizes the United States has agreed not to prosecute 

25 all of the criminal charges set forth. in the indictment solely because of the promises made by 

26 Defendant in this Agreement Defendant agrees, however, that for purposes of preparing the 

27 Presentence Report, the United States Attorney's Office will provide the United States Probation 

28 Office with evidence of all conduct committed by Defendant. 
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1- Defendant agrees that any charges to be d~missed before or at the time of 

2 sentencing were substantially justified in light of the evidence available to the United States, 

3 were not vexatious, frivolous or taken in bad faith, and do not provide Defendant with a basis for 

4 any future claims under the "Hyde Amendment,tI Pub.L. No. 105-119(1997). 

5 14. Acceptance of Responsibility. The United States ackriowledges that if Defendant 

6 qualifies for an acceptance of responsibility adjustment pursuant to USSG § 3El.l(a), " 

7 ~elevel is sixteen (16) or greater, his total _elevel should be decreased by 

i8 , levels~ttoUSSG§§ 3El.l(a) and (b), because he has assisted the United States 

9 b1\1~/?o~fYihg the authorities of Defendant's intention to plead guilty, thereby permitting 

10 the United States to avoid preparing for trial and pennitting the Court to allocate its resources 

11 efficiently. 

12 15. - Breach, Waiver, and Po~-Plea Conduct:. Defendant agrees that if Defendant 

13 breaches this Plea Agreement, the United States may withdraw from this Plea AgreemeQt and 

14 . Defendant may be prosecuted for all offenses for which the United States has evidence. In such 

. . IS event. Defendant agrees not to oppose any steps taken by the United States to nullify this Plea 

16 Agreement,. including the filing of a motion to withdraw from -the Plea Agreement. Defendant 

17 also agrees that if Defendant is in breach of this Plea Agreement, Defendant has waived any 

18 objection to the re-institutio~ of any charges in the Indictment that were previously dismissed or 

19 any additional charges that had not been prosecuted. 

20 Defendant further understands that if, after the date of this Agreement~ Defendant 

21 should engage in illegal conduct, or conduct that is in violation of his conditions of release 

22 (examples ofwbichinclude, but are not limited to: obstruction of justice, failure to appear for a" 

23 court proceeding, crin1;inal conduct while pending sentencing) and false statements to law 

24 enforcement agents, the Pretrial Sei:vices Officer, Probation Officer, or Court), the United States 

25 is free llllder this Agreement to file additional charges against Defendant or to seek a sentence 

26 that takes such conduct into consideration by requesting the Court to apply additional 

27 adjus1Jnents or enlumcements in its Sentencing Guidelines calculations in order to increase the 

28 applicable advisory Guidelines range; andlor by seeking an upward departure or variance from 
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1 the calculated advisory Guidelines range. Under these circumstances, the United States is free to 

2 seek such adjustments, enhancements, departures. and/or variances even if otherwise precluded 

3 by the tenns of the plea agreement. 

4 16. Waiver of Appeal. As part of this Plea Agreement and on the condition that the 

5 Court imposes a custodial sentence that is within or below the Sentencing Guidelines range (or 

6 the statutory mandatory minimum, if greater than the Guidelines ~ge)·that is determined by the 

7 Court at the time of sentencing, Defendant waives to the full extent of the law: 

8 a. . any right conferred by Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 to appeal the 

9 

10 

II 

12 

b. 

sentence. including any restitution order imposed; and 

any right to .bring a collateral attack against the conviction and sentence, including 

any restitution order imposed, except as it may relate to the effectiveness of legal 

representation. 

13 Furthermore, this waiver does not preclude Defendant from bringing an appropriate motion 

14 · pursuant to.28 U.S.C. 2241) to address the conditions ofbis confinement or the deci&ions of-the 

15 Bureau of Prisons regarding the ex.ecution of his sentence. 

16 If Defendant breacbes this Plea Agreement at any time by appealing or collaterally 

17 attacking (except as to effectiveness oflega! representation) the conviction or sentence in any 

18 way, the United States may prosecute Defendant for any counts, including those with mandatory 

19 minimum sentences, that were dismissed or not charged pursuant to this Plea Agreement. 

20 17. Voluntarlness of Plea. Defendant agrees that Defendant has entered into this Plea 

21 Agreement freely and voluntarily and that no threats or promises, other than. the promises 

22 contained in this Plea Agreement, were made to induce Defendant to enter these pleas of guilty. 

23 18. Statute ofLiInitations. In the event this Agreement is not accepted by the Court 

24 for any reason, or Defendant has breached any of the terms of this Plea Agreement, the statute of 

25 limitations shall be deemed to have been tolled from the date of the Plea Agreement to: 

26 (1) thirty (30) .days following the date or non-acceptance ofilie Plea Agreement by the Court; or 

27 (2) thirty (30) days following the date on which a breach of the Plea Agreement by Defendant is 

28 discovered by the United S~tes Attorney's Office. 
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1 19. Completeness of Agreement. The United States and Defendant acknowledge that 

2 these terms constitute the entire Plea Agreement between the parties. This Agreement binds 

3 only the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington. It does not 

4 bind any other United States Attorney's Office or any other office or agency of the 

5 United S1ates, except as provided in Paragraph. 8 above, or any state or local prosecutor. 

6 Dated this 10m day of September, 2010. 

7_ 

8 

9 . 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

28 
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E-FILED 
CASE NUMBER: 10-2-41637-4 S 

IN TIIE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR KING COUNTY 

9 QUEL~OS GROUP LLC, 

10 Plaintiff, 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

v. 

FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY; 
INDIAN HARBOR INSURANCE 
COMPANY; AND NUTMEG INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

Defendants. 

No.: 10-2-41637-4 SEA 

DECLARATION OF MAIUE M. 
BENDER IN SUPPORT OF 
QUELLOS GR.OUP LLC'S 
OPPOSITION TO FEDERAL'S 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY . 
JUDGMENT 

17 I, Marie M. Bender, declare: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1. The infonnation contained herein is based upon my personal knowledge or a 

reasonable inquiry gained from my review of relevant documents and information. If called 

as a witness, I could and would competently testify thereto. 

2. I was the General Counsel for QueUos Group LLC ("QueUos") and its 

23 predecessors (collectively "Quellos") during the relevant period. 

24 

25 

26 

3. Between 2000 and 2001, Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC flkja Quadra 

Custom Strategies, LLC ("QueUos Custom"), Quadra Financial Group, L.P., and QueUos 

1 
Bender Declaration in Support of QueUos' 
Opposition to Federal's Motion for Summary 
JUdgment 
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9 

10 

'11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

.,. 19 

; 20 
" 

21 

22 

23 

·24 

2S 

26 

Financial Advisors, LLC contracted with clients to provide tax advantaged investment 

strategies in connection with portfolio optimized investment transactions ("POINT"), and 

performed work necessary to execute the POINT transactions. 

4. In my capacity as General Counsel, I completed and signed the September 30, 

2000 Investment Management Insurance Application ("Application"), a true and correct copy 

of the Application, without supportin~ documentation, is attached hereto as E~hibit 1. 

5. I answered ''No'' to the following question in § VI of the Application: "Does 

the applicant ,or any of its partners, directors, officers, employees or trustees have any 

knowledge of any fact or circumstance which might give rise to a claim under the 

proposed policy?" I answered this question honestly, with no intent to deceive and only after 

making a reasonable, good faith inquhy within Quellos and concluding that no fact or 

cirCumstance was then known that reasonably might give rise to a claim covered by the 

proposed policy. 

6. In connection with various POINT transactions, a tax attorney issued opinion 

letters approving the POINT transaction. 

7. As of September 30, 2000, Quellos Custom had completed POINT transactions 

for three clients, and, to my knowledge, none of those clients had expressed any 

dissatisfaction with the services rendered or expressed any intent to pursue any type of claim 

against QueUos. 

8. As of September 30, 2000, the IRS had not yet taken any action to question the 

validity of any POINT transaction or deny the tax benefits generated by any of the ~OINT 

transactions. 
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2 
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4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

9. QueUos described to AISLIC its tax strategy services in connection with its 

original 2000 Investment Management Insurance Application, and again for the 2004 

Renewal Application for primary coverage. 

10. A true and correct copy of the 2004 Renewal Application and pertinent 

portions of the supporting documentation, including a service brochure and Part II of Quellos 

Custom's Fonn ADV, are attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 

11. Among the documents QueUos provided to AISLIC as part of the 2004 

Renewal Application was a brochure describing the services provided by Quellos affiliates for 

maximizing after-tax returns fot its clients' through legal structures and complex investment 

strategies. In addition, as part ofthe 2004 Renewal Application QueUos provided AISLIC 

with QueUos Custoin's "Fonn ADV," which discussed the inherent risk that the IRS could 
13 , 

14 challenge an investment strategy, such as the POINT strategy, could deny the claimed ~ 

15 benefits, and potentially subject a client to the payment of back taxes, interest charges, and 

16 penalties. 

17 . 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

12. On February 8, 2005, the IRS sent a summons to Quellos for documents 

related to POINT. 

13. The IRS subsequently denied the tax benefits generated by each of the POINT 

transactions. 

14. In 2005, the Senate Pennanent Subcommittee on Investigations ("Senate 

23 Subcommittee") initiated an investigation regarding various tax shelter strategies, including 

24 POINT. 

25 

26 
15. In August 2006, Jeff Greenstein, the former CEO of QueUos, gave testimony 

3 
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14 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 
. . 

24 

25 

26 

before the Senate Subcommittee about the POINT transaction. 

16. In July 2007 and June 2008, QueUos received grand jury subpoenas seeking 

documents and oilier information relating to the POINT transaction in connection with an 

investigation initiated by the United States Attorney's office for the Western District of 

Washington. 

17. Quellos incurred costs in responding to this formal investigation on behalf of 

the company and eleven direCtors, officers and employees, including Mr. Greenst~in and 

Charles Wilk, a former director of at least one QueUos slJbsidiary, ~cluding QueHos Custom. 

18. On June 4,2009, after having advised Quellos seven months prior that the 

company would not be charged with any wrongdoing because the activities under 

. investigation were' confined to a discrete and minor area of QueUos' overall business, the U.S. 

Attorney's office announced the indictments of Messrs. Greenstein and Wilk for alleged 

wrongdoing in connection with the POINT. transactions. 

19. Long before the criminal indictments of Messrs. Greenstein and Wilk, two 

POINT clients asserted claims of negligence, negligent. misrepresentation, breach of fiduciary 

duty. and intentional misrepresentation against Quellos arising out of the POINT transactions 

(colIectively, the "individual investor claims"). 

20. The first of the individual investor claims was made in June 2005, four years 

before the indictments, and the second of these claims was made in March 2006, over three 

years before the indictments. 

21. It is my understanding that these individual investor claims arOSe out of the 

same factual circumstances and POINT transactions that later served, in part, as the basis for 

4 
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16 

17 

1& 
.i 
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19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

the criminal indictments and ultimate guilty pleas of Messrs. Greenstein and Wilk. 

22. QueUos settled with one individual investor in March 2006, approximately 

three years before the indictments, and with the other individual investor in November 2007, 

approximately two years before the indictments. 

23. QueUos negotiated and executed the settlements based upon the individual 

investors' allegations of negligence, negligent misrepresentation, breach of fiduciary duty, 

and intentional misrepresentation. 

24. The settlements released all claims that could have been asserted against any 

Quellos entity or person representing QueUos, including all of its directors, officers, 

employees, and insurers. 

25. The settlements and related costs of representation exceeded the limits of the 

Investment Management Insurance Policy sold to QueHos by American International 

Specialty Lines Insurance Company, Policy No. 885-37-42, and the Excess Policy sold to 

QueHos by Federal Insurance Company, Policy No. 7023-2408, for the policy period' 

September 21,2004 to September 21, 2005. 

26. ,QueUos gave timely notice of various claims related to the POINT transaction, 

including the individual investor claims, beginning in the 2004-2005 policy period. Quellos 

apprised its insurers of the settlement discussions regarding the individual investor claims. 

For the larger of these claims, the insurers declined to participate in the discussions and 

denied coverage. 

. Bender Declaration in Support of QueUos' 
Opposition to Federal's Motion for Summary 
Judgment 

US20082693294.2 

112lJ6JY·] 

5 

Page 1110 



21626464 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

.7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

To the best of my knowledge and belief. I declare under penalty of perjury that the 

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on this 22nd day of 

November. 2011, in Seattle, Washington. 

~xf\6~ 

Bender Declaration in Support of Quellos' 
Opposition to Federal's Motion for Summary 
Judgment 

USlDO. 26912".2 

1l21161v) 

Marie M. Bender 
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"' , , 

American International Companies 

Name of Insurance Company 
T h' hA I'cat'on'sl" ade' Quadra Finan<;',ial'Group, L;P. OW IC pp I I I VI , ____________________ _ 

(herein called the Company) 

The iollowing are the available c~verages under this policy form: 

1) Coverage A, 

2) Coverage B, 

3) Coverage C. 

4) Coverage D. 

PLEASE ALWAYS COMPLETE SEeTIO!}!1 

Investment Adviser Profession?!1 liability and Corporate Reimbursement, ple~se complete 
Section II. ' 

Mutual Fund Professional Liability and Directors ano Officers Liability and Corporate 
Reimbursement, please complete Section III. ' 

Directors and Officers'Liability and Corporate Reimbursement. please complete Section IV, 

Distributor Professional Liability and Corporate Reimbursement, please complete Section V, 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT INSURANCE APPLICATION 

IF A POLl<;;Y IS ISSUED. IT WILL BE ON A CLAIMS-MADE BASIS 

NOTICE: THE LIMIT OF LIABILITY AVAILABLE.TO PAY JUDGMENTS OR SETTLEMENTS SHALL BE REDUCED BY 
AMOUNTS INCURRED FOR DEFENSE COSTS. AMOUNTS INCURRED FOR DEFENSE COSTS SHALL BE 
APPLIED AGAINST THE RETENTION AMOUNT. ,ALSO NOTE THAT THE COMPANY HAS THE RIGHT,' BUi NOT 
THE DUTY TO DEFEND THE INSURED, BUT WILL PAY DEFENSE COSTS AS THEY ARE INCURRED. ' , 

IF A POLICY 15 ISSUED THE APPLICATION IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF THE POLICY SO "ITS IS 
" NECESSARY THAT ~LL QUESTIONS BE ANSWERED IN DETAIL. 

I. "GENERAL IN'FORMATION (MUST BE COMPLETED): 

1. (a) Name of applicant: 
Quadr.a E"i~an~~r~up; L:P.-'------------~- -------, -------

(b) Mailing Address: ____ 60_1_U_n_i_o_n_S_t_r_e_e_t_,_5_6_th_F_l_o_o_r_._s_e_a_t_t_l_e_,_W_A--'-_9....,B_l_O_l_....,..-__ _ 

(c) State 01 incorporation {if applicable): ~"_D_e_l_aw_B_r_e __________________ --'-----

(d) ,If other ~n a corporation. state form of 'organization a'nd identify applicable law controlling said form of 
'organization. State what public authority any documents relating to forfT)ation ot such organization (e,g., 
, limited partnership certificate of record) are filed with, 

Limited Pattner&hip - Delaware 

2.' (a) ~imit of liability re~uested : $ __________ -:-_a99regale 

(b) Retentions requested: $ ________________ _ 

3., Is applicant registered with the SEC as an Investment Adviser? DYes o No 

- i -
51505 (11/92) 
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.. 4. (a) . Has the applicant be!nV~lved in any mergers, acquisitions 
and/or consolidations during the past three years? 

(b) Are any plans lor merger. acquisilion or consolidation being considered? 

(c) If so, have they been approved by Ihe.board of direc1ors? 

. (d) If 'so, have they been submil1ed to .Ihe shareholders lor approval? 

DYes o No· 

o Ye~ o No 

DYes · o No 

DYes o No 

II. COVERAGE A: INVESTMENT ADVISER PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INCLUDING' COMPANY REIMBURSE • 
. MENT (COMPLETE ONLY IF COVERAGE IS DESIRED): 

1. Attach. copies of following: 

(a) Applicant's lalest audil~d annual report: 

(b) Applicant's latest 1 O:K ·repo·rt liled with the SEC (if the Applicant is- publicl~ traded); 

(cl Copy 01 brochure and sample contrac~ oliered 10 clients : 

(d) Information indicating overalf portfolio performance for past live years and include cOll}parative results to 
Standard and Poors, Salomon Brothers Bond Index or sirniiar indices; 

(e) Latest prospectus and audited an·nual reporl lor each mutual fund 10r which the applicant acts as 
Investme~t Adviser; ' . 

(f) Complete ADV report parts I and II (as filed with the SEC); 

(g) list of applicant's affiliates and sul?sidiaries. See Exhibit 1 

2. Year investment advisory operations commenced: _________ _ 

3. (a) Does the applicant have a parent (ownerShip of m~re than 50% of applicant)? 0 Yes o No 

(b) If "Yes", please supply full details and attach parent's lalest audited· annual report .. ______ ,--_ 

(e) Is. coverage desired for any entity affiliated with applicant? DYes DNa 

-. (d) If ·Yes", state entity arid describe its function and relationship. _____ ;--________ _ 

.' 

4. (a) Total asset value of all accounts managed: 

Current Year (9/30/00) Previous Yea·r (12/31199) 

$ 2.592,600,000 $ _ .... 1 + ..... 1 ...... 8 ...... 6 ......... 60 ......... 0+. {\ .... OuOI.L-__ _ 

(b) Asset value of largest account: $ 395,532 ,DOD (9/30/00) 

(c) Number of accounts lost during last 12 months and corresponding total asset value: 2 ($86,000.000) 

(d) Reasons for loss of accounts: (U Client real] pca tion of assets; (2) was a sub-adyise.d 

account - bllsjness. terms djsagreement with manager. 

-·2-
51505 (11r,!2) 
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(e) 
. _ .. . e 

Percentage 01 accountS' for which the appHC.8nt acts as custodIan: _..:.. __ ~ _________ _ 

(I) Percentage 01 accounts for which the applicad acls as financial planner or consultant: -----

(9) Minimum size 01 accounts currently accepted as new accounts: $ ____ _ 

5, Complete lor all those accounts 101 which the applicant acts as Investment Adviser: 

MARKET NUMBER 
ASSET VALUE OF ACCOUNTS 

(a) Discretionary Accounts: (9/30/00) (9/30/00) 

ERISA pension & employee bene!it plans . $ 

Non:ERISA pension & employee benefit plans :Ii 

Mutual Funds $ 

REITS S; 

AII,qther accounts $ 

Total book value 01 all accounts $ 1. 963 .800 . 000 46 

(b) Non-Discretionary Accounts: 

ERISA p'ension & employee benefit plans !Ii 

Non-ERISA pension & employee benefit plans $ 

All other 'accounts $ 

Total, book value of all accounts $ 628 .. 800,000, lQ 

(c) Does the Applicant Investment Adviser{s) manage private account assets 01 re,lated and/or affiliated 
companies? . , 

o '(es 0 No 'II yes. state amount of total managed assets: -:-___________ _ 

Are these assets included in Question 4.{a)? 0 Yes 0 No 

6.' Does the applicant acl as Investment Adviser for any multi-employer (Taft-Hartley). union or governmental 

7. 

employee be~e1it plans? ' 

DYes 0 No (If ··Yes· at1ach list of clie!}ts and dollar amounts of assets managed.) 

May clients select their own ~rokers for executions? [j Yes !Xl No 
No clients presently select their own broker. 

(a) 

(b) Are some client transactions executed. by "in-house" broker-dealer? 0 Yes !Xl No 
Transactions may in the future be' executed 'hy Quadra CapitiH Markets, LLC" 
Name of ,~in-hotise" broker-dealer: _____________ ' ___________ --= __ _ (c) 

8. State the percentage of investments in the following specialty areas. 

commodity futures % real estate % unregistered securities % 

private placements % options % direct placements % 

junk bonds % annuities % oil <lnd gas joint ventures ' % 

GICs/GACs % foreign securities % limited partnerships % 

- 3-
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9. (a) Does the applicant h,!measures instituted to ass~re that clientS'!ns are in wmplian·ce with ERISA? 

DYes o No 

(b) State frequency and nature of &udiling ~ervices . ____________ --'-________ -:-_ 

(c) 00 ihe clients 01 the applicant transfer all fiduciary liability to the applicant? DYes [] No 

If yes . please explain _____________ .,--___________________ _ 

10. Does the applicant have procedures lor decisions and executions when a ponlolio manager is nol available? 

DYes C No· 

11. . (a) Annual lees lor investment advisory services : $ . __ ~_. _________ _ 

Other·income (annual) $ 

(b) Explain sources 01 eilher income: ___ .,.. ______ .,...--:--____ ~ ____________ _ 

. . 

12. Ptease explain how the applicant insures that the clients investment manager-henl contracts are adhered iO? 
Also the internal compliance procedures lor client accounts. 

13. Describe how the applicant protects itself 1rom the liabilities of a previous investment adviser which it 
succeeds? (Hold halmless, etc.) . 

14. Does the applicant guarantee in any. way to its clients a p.red~termined return on investments? 

DYes 0 No If yes, pleas~ explain ______________ '--_---,--_____ _ 

15 .. Previol,ls Investment Adviser Professional Ual;>ility Insurance: 

(a) Insurer ___________________ Limits 01 Liability $ _____ ---'--__ _ 

Policy Term ___ -'-______________ Premium $ _. ___________ -'-

Loss Experience _________ -=-_.c..-_____________________ _ 

(b) Has any insurer refused, cancelled or non-renewed coverage? DYes DNa 

(c) If ·Yes", stale name of insurer, reason· and date of refusal, cancellation or non-renewal: 

-4-
51505 (111921 
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Current Directors -and 
Officers Insui-ance PoliCy -

Current Fidelity Bond 

Other s.imilar insurance (describe) 

Insurer 

17_ Name and address 01 law firm acting as counset: 

18. Does Ih? applicant have separate ERISA counsel? 

e 
limit - Term 

Yes o No 

If yes, which firm is utilized? ____ ---' ____________ -'--__ ~ __ ~ ___ . ___ _ 

19. Please _attach infomiation on the training of all new professional employees: 

20. Has any claim been brought against the applicant or any 01 its partners, directors, ojjicers; trustees or 
employees in their capacities as Investment Advisers? 0 Yes 0 No 

I{-"Ye;:;", attach full ~etail5. It is agreed lhat such prior or-existing claim(s) will not be c.overed by the policy. 

. . 
III. COVERAGE B: MUTUAL FUND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY AND DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY AND 

COMPANY REIMBURSEMENT (COMPLETE ONLY U= COVERAGE IS DESIRED): 

1 . At1ach copies of t.h~ following: I 

. 2. 

51505 (11192) 

(a) . Each Fund's latest prospectus; 

(b) . Latest annual and quarterly report for each Fund; 

(c) Statement of additional information for each Fund. 

(a) 
NAME OF' 

EACH FUND 

TOTAL ASSETS 
CURRENT PREVIOUS 

. YEAR YEAR 

Total Current Assets of all funds ___________________________ _ 

(b) Name of Advisers: _____________________________ _ 

-5-

Page 1117 



21626464 

. .. 4IIt 
Ie) Name 01 sub-advisers (if any): ________ --'----------'-------_____ -'-

(d) NumbeJ 01 offices of Ihe Funds and ihe locaiion 01 each; ____ _ 

(e) Name and address of the bank or lirm p.erforming shareholder accounting services: ______ _ 

3. .a) Have there been any changes or . modifications in lhe inveslment restrictions or limitations of any Fund 
during the past two (2) years?· ! ; Yes 0 No 

Ii ~Yes·, please give full deiails: _______ ---' _______________ ~ ___ _ 

(b) Have there been any material changes in the administrative operations or investment policies <:if any 
Fund during the past two (2) years? . 0 Yes 0 No 

If "Yes", please give full delails: ___________________________ _ 

4. Does any Fund utilize 12b-1 distribution plans? DYes o No 

If "Yes", please state name of Fund and fee percentage: ___________________ _ 

5. State criteda used in s~lecting institutions approved for repurchase agreements, reverse rep·urchase 
agreements and len~ing of securities wherein these investments comprise more than 25% of anyone Fund's 
assets. (Please attach list oj institutions). 

-6-
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6. Do the directors, officers, partners and trustees (as a group) of the Funds or their Investment Advisers own 
more than SOh ollhe outstanding shares 01 any of the Funds? 0 Yes 0 No 

If "Yes" give full details .. _____ _ 

7. (a) Name and address 01 the law firm acting as counsel: ___ ________________ _ 

(b) Does the firm supply a written opinion as 10 the legality of any cliange ir, investment and management 
policy? ·0 Yes 0 No 

8. Previous Mutual Fund Professional Liability Insurance: 

(a) Insurer: _____________________________ _ 

Policy Term: _____________ -----------------

Loss Experience:. ___________ ~~ ______ _'_ ____ _ 

Limit of Liability: ---------------7""""""---;-------

Premium: ________________________________ ~ __ 

(b) Has any Insurer refused, cancelled o'r non-renewed coverage? DYes o No 

II 'Yes", !3ttach full details: ___________ ---;-_________________ _ 

9_' Current Fidelity Bond in force: 

Insurer: ________ .:...... ______ =--______________ _ 

Limit: _____ -------~-----------------------~~--
Tenn: ____________ ~ ____________________ ___ 

10. Has any claim been brought against the applicant or any of its trustees, 'parlners, officers; directors or 
employees? . . 0 Yes 0 No 

If ·Yes", attach-full details. It is agreed that such prior or existing claim(s) will not be covered by the policy. 

-7-
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IV. COVERAGE C: DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LlAS_flllY AND COMPANY REIMBURSEME:NT (NOT -
APPLICABLE TO FUNDS) (COMPLETE ONLY IF COVERAGE IS DESIRED): . _ _ 

1_ Attach copies of the following: 

(a) Latest annual report 

-(b)" _ Latest 1 OK repol1 filed with SEC (illhe Comp"wy' is publicly tradedj 

(cj -Latest inierim financial statement available 

(e) Latest copy ot the _notice of annual meeting of sh?reholders 

(I) Latest.proxy statement 

(g) -Certified copy of the indemnification provisions of the charter and the by· taws or partnership agreement. 
Also 811ach a copy of any standero indemnilication agreemenL 

2. List 01 entities ior which coverage is pesired: 

BUSINESS OR lYPE 
OF OP.ERATION 

OWNED 
BY 

PERCENTAGE OF DATE 
OWNERSHIP ACOUIREQ 

3. (a) Annual Sales _______________________ _ 

(b)NetWorth __________________ ~ _____________ __ 

(c) Total As~ets __________________ _"__ __ __:__--

-- DOMESTIC 
OR FOREtGN 

4. 9rganization has continually been operating since_~-,-__________________ _ 

5. Stock ownership 

(a) Total- number 01 common shares outstanding ____ ~~ ______ ____' _______ _ 

·(b) Total number of common stock shareholders _______ -:-________ ~ ___ _ 

(e) Totat number of common shares owned by its Directors (direct and beneficial) --:-__ -:-____ -

. (d) Total number of common shares owned by its Officers 
(d_irect and beneficial) who are not Di~ectors _____________________ -

(e) In the event any shareholder owns 5 percen1 or more oj the common shares directly or beneficially -
designate name and percentage of holdings. 

-8-
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(C) Please designate if there are any other securities converiible to common stock. If so, describe fully 

---._._---

. 6. Comple:e Iisl61 ali directors of parent company by name and aflilia·'ions with other corpo~anons. 

7. COmlJlete list o{ 011 officers of parent company by name and aHiliaticns willl other corporations. 

8. Does the organization anticipate any new public offering of securities or any registration of securities under 
the Securities Act 011933 or qualijjcatio~ 01 securities under Regulation A within the next year? (if ·Yes", give 
details and submit prospectus). 0 Yes [jJ No 

9~. There has not been nor is there now pending any claim(s) against any person proposed for insurance in their 
capacity as· dire.ctor, otficer, partner or trustee of tlie organization named in 2. above, except as .101l0ws: 

(attach complete details} (if no such claims, ch~ck here: Ii) None) 

It is agreed that such prior or existing claims wHi not be covered by the policy. 

10. Has the Organization or any of its directors, ollicers, partners or trustees been involved in or have any 
knowledge of any fact or circumstances involving the following which may give rise to a claim under the 
proposed policy? All in connec·tion with the business of applicaQt and it.s . 

affiliates. 
(ay . Antitrust, copyright or patent li1igation? 

(b). 

(c) 

(d) 

Been charged in any civil or criminal action or administrative proceeding 
with a violation of any federal or state securities law or regulation? 

Been charged in any civil or criminal action or administrative proceeding 
with a violation of any federal or stale antitrust or fair trade law? 

Been involved in any representative actions, class actions or derivative suits? 

(if any of the above are answered "Yes" , attach full details.) 

DYes 

DYes 

DYes 

DYes 

I!I No 

I!J No 

I1[J No 

ll[J No 

It is agreed that if such knowledge, information or involvement exists, any claim or action arising therelrom is 
excluded from this proposed coverage: 

11. It is agreed that the Organization will file with the Company, as soon as they become <3vailable, a copy ·of 
each registration statement and annual of interim report which the Organization may from time to time file with 

. the Securities and Exchange Commission. . 

-9-
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..... 
P . o· .. Off- I . h . revlous Irectors ana IcefS nsurance (answer eae • Item): 

(a) Name.of inSl,Jrance company---'---_______________ .--,-_____ -...-,.. ______ _ 

(b) Limit ____________ _ Self· Insured Retention --------------------------
(el Policy Expiration Dale _____________ ~_. _____ ----~---

(d) Premium _~-_--o--------_:_-----'----~--_-(indicatE one year or other) 

(e) Loss Experience (al1achlull details) (il no Los~es. Cll€ck here' 0 None) 

13. Has any insurance carrier relused. cancelled or nonrenewed coverage? o Yes o No 

(11 'Yes", slate when) __ _ 

v. COVERAGE D: DISTRIBUTOR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY AND CORPORATE REIMBURSEMENT 
(COMPLETE ONLY IF COVERAGE IS DESIRED); 

1. Name and 8?dreSs 01 general distributor: _______ --: _________________ '---_ 

2. Please provide average number 01 transactions on a daily basis ________________ __ 

3. Please provide average dollar value of transactions _______________ ~ ____ ._ 

4 .(af - GTve -nuriiberqfrrotices;-'leHers-; -enEl-Gomplaints-fece.iY.edJIlJhe .pji_~I.!!1ree years by the Applicant: . . . _--- ----------====---. - . 
(b) How many were unsettled after 60 days? _______ .,--_______________ _ 

ec) Attach lull details regarcJing any cases in the last five years involving. monetary setUement In excess of 
$5,000. 

--5.-- [)escribe·measure~ .. the-!!jst[ib.utQLh5!~ LIJ?!i!~.ted lor verifying customers orders and determining that 
coniirmations are accurate and received on lime: --.-.- - .- .. --.- .-..... . .. . -.. -----.. 

VI. THE FOLLOWING APPLIES TO ALL INSURING CLAUSES AND MUST BE COMPLETED. 

Does the applicant or any of its partners, directors, officers, employees or trustees have any knowledge of any fact 
or circumstance which might give rise to a claim under the proposed policy? . 

DYes 89 No 

It is agreed thai if such knowledge exists any claim arising from such fact or circumstances will not be cov.ered by 
the policy. 

- 10-
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" 0 _ . . 
THE A~PLlCANT DECLARES THAT THE STATEMENTS SET FORTH HEREIN ARE TRUE. THE AppLIcANt 
AGREES THAT IF THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED ON THIS APPLICATION CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF 

. THI~ APPLICATION AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE! APPLICANT WILL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
COMPANy OF SUCH CHANGES, AND THE COMPANY MAY WITHDRAW.OR ~ODIFY ANY OUTSTANDING 
QUOTATIONS AND/OR AUTHORIZATION OR AGREEMENT TO BIND THE INSURANCE. 

SIGNING OF THIS APPLICATION DOES NOT BIND THE APPLICANT NOR THE COMPANY TO COMPLETE THE 
.. INSURANCE, -BUT IT IS AGREED THAT THIS FORM SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT SHOULD A 

POLICY BE ISSUED, AND IT WILL BE ATTACHED TOANO BECOME PARTOF THE .POLICY .... 

ALL WRITIEN STATEMENTS AND MATERIALS FURNISHED TO THE COMPANY IN CONjUNCTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO THIS APPLlCI'l:TION AND MADE A PART 
HEREOF . 

. NOTICE: IN NEW YORK ANP OHIO, ANY P!,;RSON WHO KNOWINGLY AND WITH INTENT TO·OEFRAUD ANY 
INSURANCE COMPANY OR OTHER PERSON FILES AN APPLICATION FO~ INSURANCE OR STATE·MENT OF 
CLAIM CONTAINING ANY MATERIALLY FALSE INFORMATION, OR CONCEAL~ FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
MISLEADING INFORMATION CONCERNING ANY FACT MATERIAL THERETO, COMMITS A FRAUDULENT 
INSURANCE ACT, WHICH IS A CRIME. 

.s;gned·4}~ 
- - -. --.- - - - ----- ---- -- ----_______________ . _Date.: 9/30/2000 

---------~~====~====~~--------

Broker: 

Address: 

51505111192) 

Title: General Counsel 
. (Must be signed by the chairman of the board or 

the president if a corporation, general partner 
if a partnership) .. 

PLEASE CONTINUE TO NEXT PAGE 

- 11 -
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• ~iEA~E READ·THE FOLLOWING StEMENT CAREFULLY AND SIGN BELO'NHEREINDICATED. IF A POLICY IS 
ISSUED, THIS SIGNED STATEMENT \""Ill BE ATIACHED TO THE POliCY. . . 

. The Insured hereby acknowledges that he/shent is aware that the limit of liability conlaine9 in this policy shall be .. 
reduced, and may be completely exhaus1ed, by the costs 01le9al delense and, in such evenl, the Company shall not be 
liable lor the costs of legal defense or lor the amount of any judgment or settlemenl to the extent thaI such' exceeds the 

limit of liability 01 this policy. 

The Insured tlereby lurther acknowledges thal he/she/it is awarelllat legal defense costs that are incurred shall be 
applied against the deductible amount. ' . . . 

------ - ----- - -- - -_._--- - --- - ----

. 51S05{11/92) 

Date: 9/30/2000 

Title: General Counsel 

- 12-
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Quellos Group, LLC 
Operating Entiles Inform.tior. 

Operating Entity 

Qu.ellos Group, LLC 

Quadr. Financial Group, L.P." 

'QueUos Holdings, LLC 

Quellos Holdings, Inc. 

QuclIos Capit.llntcmotionaJ, LLC 

Quellos Cuslom Strategies, LLC 

Qu"Jlos Financi.1 Advisors, LLC 

Quellos Fixed Jnc~e Adv;sors, LLC 

QueJlos Brol< .. zage Services, LLC 

Quellos C.pital MAnagement, L.P. 

Quadra Corporate Ad<'isors, LLC 

QA Inves~ents, LLC 

Union Personal Guaranty, u.c 

Confidential 

• EXHIBIT 1 

fornlation 
Dale 

2S-Aug·OO 

7-Nov-94 

2S-Aug-OO 

7-Nov-94 

9-OcI-98 

24-Msr-99 . 

1-Jul-97 

S-Nov-99 

29-Jul-98 

3-0ec-97 

1997 

I-Jul-97 

31-Aug-OO 

Tenilinati 011 
Oat~ Form.rJy Known As ({/klal 

Quadr. FiIi;mcial Group, LLC 

31-Aull-OO Quadrl Group, LP. 
Quadr. Capital Management. L.P. 

Qua.drs Financial Holdings, LLC 

Ql1adra Holdings, Inc. 

Quadr .. Cal'ilallnternatioruol, LLC 

~.dr .. Custom Strategios, LLC 

Quodr. Associates, LLC 

Oat" Name Changed 

27-Sep..oo 

llJ.Sep-99 
2!i-Oec-97 

27-s.,p.oo 

27-Scp-OO 

27-Sep-OO 

27-Scp.ijO 

27-Sep-OO 

Quadr" Fixed Income Adv isors, LLC 27-Scp-OO 

Quod .. CApital Markets, !-LC 

Quadra Capital Management, LP. 
Quadr. Gruup, L.P. . 

-_ .. _----_. 
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American International Companies @ 

Name of Insurance Company 
To which Application is Made: ___ ~ ___ ~ ___ --::-_:---:-_.,-___ -:-:-_______ _ 

(herein called the Company) . 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT INSURANCE RENEWAL APPLICATION 

IF A POLICY IS ISSUED, IT WILL BE ON A CLAIMS-MADE BASrs 

NOTICE: THE LIMIT OF LIABIlITY AVAILABLE TO PAY JUDGEMENTS OR SETTLEMENTS SHALL BE REDUCED 
BY AMOUNTS INCURRED FOR DEFENSE COSTS. AMOUNTS INCURRED FOR DEFENSE COSTS SHALL BE 
APPLIED AGAINST THE RETENTION AMOUNT. ALSO NOTE THAT THE COMPANY HAS THE RIGHT. BUT NOT 
THE DUTY TO DEFEND THE INSU~ED. BUT W1l:L PAY DEFENSE COSTS AS THEY ARE INCURRED. 

IF A POLICY IS ISSUED mE APPLICATION IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF THE POlley so IT IS 
NECESSARY THAT ALL QUESTIONS BE ANSWERED IN DETAIL 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION (MUST BE COMPLETED): 
.---- ---~ -- ,- ". _ .. __ . _ .- _._-------- . -.- ---- _ . _--_ ._ - -- -_ ..... . __ ._.- .- - - ._--- - -'--'-- - -- - -_ ._- -- -_. -

1. (a) 

. (b) 

(c) 

Nameofappr~nt ___ g~UE~L~L~O~S~·;GRO~U~P~,~L~L~C~ _________________ ~ __ __ 

Maning address: ___ ..L6wOu.l--l:LUNl1T .... O.aNL-.o:SuTR.aLE""ET ......... _5.J.J6L.t.THUL!I...£FCJ.,I.O"-",,OB~ ...... SiJ..IE:u;A:uT ...... TI ...... lllB'-#-._WruA<L-9u8 ... 1 .... 0,""l~ __ _ 

:NtA state of incorporation (if applicable): -,-____________________ _ 

(d) If other than a corporation, state foml of organization and identify applicable law controlling said form of 
. ·· - -··organizxltion. -State what-public.authorHy-any .documentsrelating fo .. formation.of such-organization . .(e.g.,. 

limited partnership certiflC8te of record) are filed with. 

2. (a) 

(b) 

Limited Liabil!ty Company formed in Delaware 

limIt of liability requested: $ __ l_O_O...:'t'_O_O_O.:.., 0_0_0 ______ _ aggregate 

Retentions requested: $ _____ .....;5:....0---'0;..: • .....;0_0...;.0_-'--________ _ 

3. Is applicant registered with the SECas an Inves1mentAdvlser1. Yes __ No X,·, (two affiliates of 
Applicant are registered) 

4. {a) Has the applicant been Involved in any mergers, acqUisitions and/or consolidations during the past three 
years? Yes __ N0-x"'-

(b) Are any plans for merger, acqUisition or consolidation being considered? 
Yes No~ 

(c) If sa, have they been approved by the board of directors? Yes __ No : N/ A 

(d) If so, have they been submitted to the shareholders for approval? Y 6S __ No N/A 

If (a) or (b) is answered 'Yes-, attach full details. 

51835 (5f91) (9/93) 
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II. COVERAGE A: INVESTMENT ADVISER PROFESSIONAL . LlABIUTY INCLUDING COMPANY 
REIMBURSEMENT {COMPLETE ONLY IF COVERAGE IS DESIRED): 

1. Attach copies of the following: 

(a) Applicant's latest audited annual report; Attached 

(b) Applicant's latest 10-K report filed with the SEC (if the Applican t is publicly traded); N / A 

(c) Copy of brochure and sample contract offered to clients; Attached 

(d) Information indicating overall portfolio peIformance for past fNe years and include comparative results to 
Standard and Poors, Salomon Brothers Bond In.dex or simila~ Indices; Attacbpd'1s tn.eo Composite 
Performance for the ARB funds; Private cap1ta1 funns'are tieo~new-and~aereIoLe 

, . . . '. bave nQ p~rformance 
{e} Latest prospectus and audIted annual r~ort for each mutual fund for WhIcC;-the applicant acts as 

InvesfmentAdvlser; Offering memoranda on file for each named insured; audited 
financial statements or balance ~heet and income statement attached for ~ll funds 

(f) Complete ADV report parts I and II (as filed with the SE9; r:'1\:t fached 

(g) Ust of applicant's affiliates and subsidiarlel:;. At tached 

2. (a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Does the applicant have a parent (ownership of more than 50% of applicant)? 
Yes _X __ No . 

If 'Yes-, please supply full details and attach parent's lat~t audited annual report Quellos Holdings, LLC 
is a holding company of Applicant. See Part II. l(a) for consolidatedannuai . 

Is coverage deslred for any entity affiliated with applicant? Yes X ___ No repor • 

(d) If "yes", state entny and describe its function and relationship. See Part II. H~) for list and detaiL 
--- - - -_. " - --- - - • __ ._- -- _. - - -- .... --.--- ----- - .---- -- ----- • ___ • __ • _______ • _ _ _ _ _ _ • _ ____ 0'. __ _ _ ------ ___ _ . > 

{o} 

(e) 

\ 
Total asset value of all accounts managed: 

CUrrent Year (5/1/04) 

·--$--.14~-213-,17~~-857 . 

Asset value of largest account $ 

Previous Year (12/31/03) 

- .----- . - - $- --1t;J60.6H:;890 . - - - .... -. --_. .. .... .. . . ... - ..... -_ ... . 

Largest Managed Account $'553,"121,520 as of 5/1/04 
Larg8Gt CQmmj~l~Q.Fuad · AceQ~nt $2,730,555,003 as of 

511/04 
Number of accounts lost during iast-12 months and corresponding total asset value: 

Four accounts w~~e lost for a total asset value of $1,301,588,930 

(d) Reasons for loss of accounts: 

One account was a term note thatexpire~; Other accounts ~ere due to 

. changes in commercial strate~y. 

(e) Percentage of accounts foi' which the applicant acts as custodian; None, other than as· general 

partner .or managing IDember. 

(f) 

51835 (5191) 

Minimum size of accounts currenHy accepted as new accounts: $ s ta ted minimum for inves tors 
in the funds is $2,000,000 to $5,000,000; Stated minimum for a separately 
managed account is $50,000,000. 

2 (9193) 
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4. Complete for all those accounts for which the applicant acts as Investment Adviser: 

(a) Discretiooi:uy Accounts: 

ERISA pension & employee 
benefit plans -

Non-ERISA pension & employee 
benefit plans 

Mutual Funds 

REITS 

All other accounts 

TotaJHv~ue of all accounts 

(b) Non-Oiscretionary Accounts: 

ERISA pension & employee 
benefit plans 

Non-ERISA pension and employee 

MARKET 
ASSET VALUE 
as of 5/1/04 

$ 1,217-;'994,271 

$ 450,929;886 

N/A 
$_------
$ N/A -------
$ ,11,684,096:391 

$ qt4.p,-9201548 

$ ___ 0 ___ _ 

$ '0 

NUMBER 
OF ACCOUNTS 

as of 5/1/04 

3 

2 

N/A 

82 

87 

o 

o 
__ .. _ .. _ _ . __ . _ .~enefnp~~ _________ .. ___ .. ________ . ____ . _ ___ . _____________ . _______ ._. ___________________ _ 

All other aCCQunts 
market 

Total~value ofal! accounts 

$ 800.151.309 

$ 800.151.309 

11 

11 

5. Does the apprlCant act as Investment Adviser for any mulli-employer (Taft-Hartley), union or 90vernmental 
employee benefit plans? Yes X No • (If "Yes" aUach list of dlents and dollar amounts of assets 
managed.) Investors in QIP, Ltd include Taft-Hartley and other govetilmental plans. 

----See-·-attaclunen-!:-.-·--·-- · ··-- --,-- ----- - -.. -.-- .. --.--.. -.-----.-._:_------ _. ____ ._ .. ... _. ___ ._ .. ____ . _____ . _______________ . __ ._ 
6. (a) May cUents select their own brokers for executlons1 Yes No _X __ _ 

(b) Are some client transactions executed by "in-house" broker-dealer? Yes No ~* 

(e) Name of "in-house" broker-dealer: Quelles Brokerage Services, LLC 

7_ (a) Does the appRcant recommend Investments In speclalty.areas other th~n commonly traded securities? 
Yes X No (Spedalty areas include commodity futures. real estate, options, private 
placements, unregistered securities, direct placements, oil and gas joint ventures. foreign securities, 
limited partnerships of any types_> 

{b) If "Yes-, describe specialty area and slate Its percentage of 0) total asset value and (ii) each type of 
account as specified in 4 {~} and 4 (b), (I.e •• mutual funds. etc.) _ 
See Capabilities Brochure under tab Part II lCc) and Part II l(g~ for 

description of functions. 

8. Does the app6cant have measures instituted to assure that dients' plans are in compliance wtth ERISA'} 

Yes X No 

9. Does the applicant have procedures for decIsions and executions when a portfolio manager is not available? 
Yes X No . . 

* to the extenft distributions from underlying funds are recemved as distributions 
in-kind, the;sale of such securities may be execut.ed through Quellos Brokerage Services. 

51835 (5191) 3 (9/93) 
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10. (a) Annual fees for investment advisory service~: $ Management-$53 ,635 ,197 ; Performance:=$80 , 381,692 
*for -Quellos Capital Management, L.P. and Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 
Other Income (annual): $ ..!L.ML4, 232 

11. 

(b) Explain sources of other income: _--"I,-"n!.!v.."e",s ... t",m",e""n",t,--",I",n",c""o",m",e:....--..!:e""a"'r"'n"'e""d'---"'o.!!n....b.g.!::e.!!n.!::e.!:.r~a=l.-J::pa=r.::.tn~e=-r:::..!-I_ 
·managing member investments and interest on cash and money balances. 

Current Directors and 
Officers Insurance Policy 

Current Fidelity Bond 

Other similar Insurance (describe) 

Insurer Uml! Term 

12. Name and address of lawflrm acting as COUIlSe!: Various law firms are employed depending 

on the matter. 

III. COVERAGE B; MUTUAL FUND PROFESSIONAL UABLITY AND DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS UABllITY AND 
COMPANY RSMBURSEMENT (COMPLETE ONLY IF COVERAGE IS DESIRED): 

1. -Attach copies of the follOWing: 

--- . - - --<a}--Each-Pamj's-latestprospectuSj- ·o-~r:tng-Memo-randa -TO-r-Named- Insureds--on--f-i:1e; --- -_.- -- -- --
(b) LatestaMualandquarter1yreportfureadlFund; See attachment for Part II. l(e). 

2. 

(e) Statement of addiUooal information for each Fund. Nt A 

(a~ 

(b1) 

(b2) 

(e) 

NAME OF 
EACH FUND 

See attached chart 

CURRENT 
YEAR 

TOTAL ASSETS 

PREVIOUS 
YEAR 

Name and address of advisers: See attached chart above in 2(a) -, - The address 

of the advisers is 601· Union Streett 56th Floor t Seattle, lilA 98101 

Name and address of sub-advIsers (if any): NaDe 

Name and address of general distributor. There is 110 general distributor, however various 

funds or QueJ.]os·Capital Management. L.p, may have distribution arrlm2ements 
With distribution agents, 

(d) Name and address of the bank or firm performing shareholder accounting services: ______ _ 

See attached chart in Part III. 2(a) 

3. Number of offices of the Funds and the location of each: Quellos' Capital Management. L.P. main tains 
offices in Seattle~ New York, San-Francisco, Menlo Park, Los Angeles and North 
Carolina (pendIng); Quel10s Custom. StrategJ..e~_. LLC mamtaJ..ns offJ..ces in Seattle 
and New York. 

51635 (5f91) 4 (9/93) 
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4. (a) Have there been any changes or modifications in the investment restrictions or limitations of any Fund 
during the past two (2) yeal'S? Yes ___ No X . If-Yes", please give full details: ___ _ 

No material changes 

{b} Have there been any material changes in the administrative operations or investment pollcies of any 
fund during the past two (2) years? Yes No X . U "Yes", please give full details: __ _ 

Other than to meet regulatory requirements 

5. Does any Fund utilize 12b-1 disrrlbutlon plans? Yes ___ No _x"'--__ ,. If "Yes·, please state name of Fund 
and fee percentage: N / A 

6. State ctiteria used in selecting institutions approved for repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase 
agreements and lending of securities whereIn these Investments comprise more than 25% of any one Fund's 

. assets. (Please attach list of Institutions.) __________ ---.. ___________ _ 

NfA 

7. Do the direc;tors, officers, partners and trustees (as a group) of the F'fdS or their Investment AdVisers own 
more than 5% of tf1e outstanding shares of any of the Funds? Yes No . If "Yas" give full 
demws. See attaclied chart for detail 

--- --_ . . --- - _ .. _. -- .. __ .. _-----_ .. . .. ----

8. Are any portfolio transactions executed by an "In-house" broker? Yes ___ No X • If "Yes·, give 
name of in-house broker. ___________________________ _ 

9. If coverage is desired for any entitY affiliated with the Applicant, please state !he entity and describe its function 
and relationship: See response to Part II. 1 (g) 

10. {a} Name and address of the law firm" acting as counsel: __ -'V'-"a ... T""i""o""us2-1=a:""w~f"_'i"'rm_.ss~awor.,.,e'_'=_em ... p~1~o:!.vl.!·e=..d!.-

depend~ng on the m~.tter. 

(b) Does the fum supply a written opinion as to the legality of any change in investment anamanagemenf 
policy? 
Yes No X -----' 

51835 (5/91) 5 (9/93) 
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11, (a) -Name and address of the fum employed as accountant: ___ --:;S~e'-E!ec....aaJ;.tl:.;t aaJc::.Jb:ue!.Cd'--__ ~ __ 

(b) State frequency and nature of auditing services conducted: Domestic; Funds are atidite;d annually 
ba~ed on'US'GAAP. Offshore· Funds are audited annually based on INternational 

Auditing Standards -

12. Currerit FJdelity Bond in force: 

Insurer: ______________________ _ 

Limit: _______________________ _ 

T~m: ____ ~ _________________________ ___ 

IV. COVERAGE C; DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABIl.ITY AND qOMPANY REIMBURSEMENT (NOT 
APPUCABLE TO FUNDS) (COMPLETE ONL X IF COVERAGE IS DESIRED): 

1. 

2. 

Attach copies of the following: 

(a) Latest aimual report; Attached (see response to Part II. I Ca» 
(b) Latest 1 OK report filed with SEC (if the Company Is pubfidy traded); N I A 
(c) Latest interim financial statement avaAable; Attached 

_~~~_ -~~~~~O:t:~~ of:/i~_~~~in~~~,~~~~~~~ __ ~L~ __ - -- - ----- -- --- - - - - ----
(t) Certified copy Of the indemnifICation provisions of the charter and the- by-laws or par1llership agreement. 

Also, attach a copy of any standard indemnification agreement Attached 

LIst of entities for which coverage is desired: 

BUSINESS OR lYPE OWNED PERCENTAGE OF 
OF OPERATION __ ___ _ 13"X _________ ___ __ OWNERSHIP 

DATE 
ACQUIRED _. _. _ .. -. 

See response to Part II. l(g) and Part III. 2(a) 

DOMESTIC 
OR FOREIGN __ _ 

3. (a) Annual Sales ______________ j 
SEE AUDITED:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(b) NetWorth,---_______________ (provided in Part II. lea)) . 

(c) Total Assets _____ ~ _______ _ 

4. Stock ownershIp (information includes shareholders holding Quellos Group through 
Quellos Holdings, LLC) 

(a) Total number of common shares outstanding __ ...::6,-=8'-L,.:=.O-,,-64~, 0::..:5"-'1=--___________ _ 

(b) Total number of common stock shareholders ____ 4_8 ________________ _ 

51835 (5191) 6 (9193) 
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*directors and officers hold interestlS~' through Quellos Group and Quellos Holdings. LLC 
their direct and indirect holdings constitute" ~-percentage of QG interests outstandi· 

(c) Total number of common shares owned by its Directors (direct and beneficial) 75 _65:~ " 

(d) Total number of common shares owned by its Officers (direct and beneficial) who are not Directors...!i..1.!l..7. 

(e) In the event any shareholder owns 5 percent or more of the common shares directly or beneficially. 
designate name and percentage of holdings. See 'chart in response to Part II. 1 (g) 

(t) Please designate if there are any other securttJes convertible to common stock. If So, describe fully_ 

None 

5. Complete list of all directors of parent company by name and affiliatfons with other corporations. 

Attac.hed. The -board of" directors has Special, Advisors for which 
we also request coverage. 

6. Complete list of all officers of parent company by name and afftliations with other corporations, " 

See above and see attached for affiliations With other entities. 

- -----
---,;" Itlsagreetfttfat lhe O-rfj~mlZaliOri-.. wrfiTe with -t1ie- Coojpa'ily:a~ soona;,-tiley b;~~-av~iI';bi~. '; copy of each 

". registration statement and annual or Interim report whiCh the Organiiation" may from time to time file with the 
Securities and Exchange CommIssion. " 

N/A 

THE APPL1CANT DECLARES THAT THE STATEMENTS SET FORTH HEREIN ARE TRUE. THE APPLICANT 
AGREES THAT IF THE INFORMATION" SUPPLIED ON THIS APPLICATION CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF 

'. THIS APPUCATION AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE, APPLICANT WILL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
COMPANY OF SUCH CHANGES, AND THE COMPANY MAY WITHDRAW OR MODIFY ANY OUTSTANDING QUO. 
TATIONS ANDIOR AUTHORIZATION OR AGREEMENT TO BIND THE INSURANCE. 

IT IS AGREED THAT THIS RENEWAL APPLICATION IS A SUPPLEMENT TO THE APPLICATION(S) WHICH ARE 
PART OF THE EXPIRING POLICY, AND THAT THOSE APPlICATION(S) TOGETHER WITH THIS RENEWAL 
APPLICATION CONSTITUTE THE COMPLETE APPliCATION THAT SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT 
AND SHALL FORM PART OF THE POLICY SHqUlD A POLICY BE ISSUED. 

SIGNING OF "THIS APPLICATION DOES NOT BIND'THE APPLICANT NOR THE COMPANY TO COMPLETE THE 
INSURANCE,. BUT IT IS AGREED THAT THIS FORM SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT ·SHOULD A 
POUCY BE ISSUED, AND IT WILL BE ATTACHED TO AND BECOME PART OF THE: POLICY. 

·51835 (5(91) 7 (9193} " 
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ALl WRITTEN STATEMENTS AND MATERIALS FURNISHED TO THE COMPANY IN CONJUNCTION WITH THIS 
APPUCATION ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO THIS APPLICATION AND MADE A PART 
HEREOF. 

IF A POLICY IS ISsUED THE APPUCATION IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF THE POLICY SO IT IS 
NECESSARY THAT ALL QUESTIONS BE ANSWERED IN DETAIL. 

NOTICE TO NEW YORK AND OHIO APPLICANTS: 

-ANY PERSON WHO KNOWINGLY AND WITH INTENT TO DEFRAUD ANY INSURANCE COMPANY OR 
OTHER PERSON FILES AN APPLICATION FOR INSURANCE OR STATEMENT OF CLAIM CONTAINING ANY 
MATERIALLY FALSE INFORMATION, OR CONCEALS FOR THE PURPOSE OF MrSLEADING,INFORMATION 

. CONCERNING ANY FACT MATERIAL THERETO, COMMITS A FRAUDULENT INSURANCE ACT, WHICH IS A 
CRIME. IN NEW YORK, A PERSON WHO COMMITS SUCH CRIME SHALL ALSO BE SUBJECT TO A CIVIL 
PENALTY'NOJTO EXCEED $5,000 AND THE SfATED VALUE OF THE CLAIM FOR EACH SUCH VIOLATION:' 

Q~el1os·Group. LLC 

/?//A?/ Slgned: ___ ~-+-6<<<Z-'-4-__ -r-_-T-?"'-L _____ _ 

D~: ____ J_un_e_2_2~. __ 20_0_4 __________ · ______ __ 

litle: . Chairman and President 

--- --_ . -- ----_ .. _. - -_._-- -- - -- -- . 

. (must be signed by the Chairn!~n_I~f..Jh~ -.J!~r!1_o.r the. _ _ _ _ __ . . 
--- --- -- - - - - -Presidentifacoiporatron.-Genefal Partner if a partnership). 

. Attest: _______________ _ 

Broker. _________________________ __ 

__ Addr.es.s: ''-'-''' ~-'--'-" -:.,::_.-:.....:.:.--.= ... .::...-. -:....:..., ... _____ .-_--_-_ . __ ._----__ " -_. _ 

5t835 {5191J 8 (9193) 
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PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT CAREFULLY AND SIGN BELOW WHERE INDICATED. IF A 
POLICY IS ISSUED, THIS SIGNED STATEMENT WILL BE ATTACHED TO THE POLICY. 

The Insured hereby acknowledges that hetshe/it is aware that the limit of liability contained in this policy shall 
be reduced, and may be completely exhausted, by the costs of legal defense and, In such event. the Company 
shaJi not be liable for the costs of legal defense or for the amount of any Judgement or settlement to the extent 
that such exceeds the limit of liability of thIs policy. 

The Insured hereby further a,cknowledges that he/she/it Is aware that legal defense costs that are incurred shall 
be applied against the retention amount 

51835 (5191) 

Quellos -Group, LLC . / 

Signed: 2~=;Z , . y 
Da~: June 22~ 2004 

Title: Chairman:ahd President 
(must be Signed by the ChaIrman · of the Board or the 
President if a corporation, General Partner if a partnership) . 

.. . _.- . ---_._. __ . __ . - --_ ._ .. __ . __ .. _-_._---- ------ -_. _ .- _ . . .... _._--- .. . __ .(' 
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. . . 

comprehensi"ve 

--;-_ ..... ' .'.- _. ----~. 
C ~;' · . .. : . 

~~ 

'. 

- ._ '- ------.- ... ~., -. 

...... 

. . .', ~ .. 

." , . . ' ~ 

- -. -- - ..... ---- '-: -:'- .. ---
.0... , ' • _. 

TooafS 'flnanclal environment, in~erit landsc~Re. ~nd the ~ot~ of ' . 
• ' - -, . - ' . 0- " • i ;.'':. • " .' t" . 

5e;Clirities and lax regulations are more comPlex and Inter~.than eVer. . ..~'. 

before: Capitllizfng on opportunities and avoiqing cOstlY m'i~keS, re"CfUftes~ . - ,.... ,,' . " , ' . 

~ ~_ ~_& Q..e9j~~ llnd col~QQr,a~~.t~31[!!~f ~~~~_ir~~s~.!!~-, ..: ··i. ~. 

'. 

a ~mprehe~Ive~~nd IWII'(eseaTch'ed$ateilY, a disci~ined management :. 

'. pr~S and a meaningful commitment of resources_For these reasons, 

rpany~ substailtial pl'ivate dienfs an"d insti1utional investors worldwide h8vrf 
turned to QueJlos. 

Whether it is navigalillg !he maze of potential Investment options and . 
~, '. ~ . . . , '. ~ . 

evaluating managers, 'de;;igning and implementing a coQ!plex IDx-plaonlng 
~ . 

strategy, managing the adminlstrative affairs of a family office or ~uting a 

sizeable securities transaction. QiJell05ls diStinguished by the resources and 

expertise it brings if! delivering valt!e-added financial solutions for !'s d.ieo1s. 
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'lUELLOS GROUP OVERVIEW 

Quellos is a financial boutique dedicated 10 providing integrated financial 

solutiornl that address the. broadei- needs .and goals of ~ch dient.Since· 

the finn's founding in 1994, Quellos has provided leading-e<ige investment 

management services as the COfnelSlDne ~ m~ing a client's finanei'll 

- Ob~T From .!his.foundalion..significant-Value-isadded.by.creating.a . 

comprehensive and customized financial soIulion that carefuny anatyzes 

and inlegrates investment strategies, tax planning, capital rna.rket activities 

and broader financial affairs. Quellos' services span three areas 

of core ~mP!llency: 

Investment Management 

Financial Advisoly 

Brokerage Services 

These core compelencies emanate £rom a corporate culture and a team 

of professionals that emphasize integration. collaboration 'and innovation. 

While services are offered independently, Quellos strongly believes !here 

is tremendous benefit in applying an integrated and holistic approach. For 

example, while many In\Iestors and other financial advisors focus solely on 

investments without regard to their tax implications, Quellos concentTates 

on maxi'!lizing after-tax returns without compromising investment flexibility. 

3 

~[-~~::~:i;;, =~~==-~i~--.-
• fl"AfiCIAL 
I ADVISORY 

r-.'-'." - ....... -.- 1-L t QUElLOS GflOUP 

I. L UOIIUA<lE 
SERVICES 

---' 

. A comprehensive sOlution emerges from the breadthof experience and 

collaboration of Queilos'.diveI'se and formidable team of professionals. 

A universal passion exists to provide each client wlth the best solution 

regardless of lis origination. Eve!)' employee is arIglled and singularly 

. . .... .focused.oCLadding_wlueJoU!aclu:lienL QueUQS~ Ie<lro::OJienlOO.c.u!tl!!:!L .. .. _. _ 

avoids the encumbrances of bureaucracies and fiefdoms that'often plague 

larger fll1ancial-service organizations. This culture is reinforced by a unique 

compeos;ltion model, the lack of geographic boundaries and a flexible 

management structure. 

Through its extensive, collective experience, Quellos recogniZes that 

. uncertainty and change are inevitable and a static solution Is InferlOf. 

Quellos avoids complacency and hubris by relentlessly striving to further 

develop innovative ways to achieve each clienl's objectives and 

enhance results. 
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Quellos' investment management goal is to 

create optimal portfolios that target a cHem's 

risk and reward objectives in the most 

tax-efficient manner. 

.:-

-- ------ ---_._-_._--------_ .. - -----_ .. -
INVESTJIIIENT MANAGEMENT - ------ ---C----
Quellos' investment management services are based on a core phUosophy 

that g10b;J1 capital markets are characterized by VC!ryng levels of market 

efficiency that directly impact an active manager's potential to add value. 

In an efficient market, there is a high degree of competition among 

participaots as informat/on Is raPidly and widely disseminated. As a result, 

---- - - -fne oveiWIieliriingiiliijootYoftfiesemiiilagers ffiirtciolitpencirili"lhel'r-

~richmark after considering fees and trading ~. In an iriefficient 

market. however, a lesSer degree of conipetition provides greater . 

opportunities for active managers to use sPecianzation and sklU to 

capital!ze on these inefficiencies. Furthermore, the higher the degree of 

inefficiency within a certain market. the wider the dlspersion of returns. 

To pursue superior, risk-adjusted returns tor its clleots and principals, 

QueUos' investment activities draw on a unique collection at experts with 

financial backgrounds induding; 

Senior investment professionals responsible for managing the assets 

of multi-billion dollar investment portfolioS; 

Portfulio managers. proprietary traders and investmeol bankers 

er.perienced in a wide variety of financial instrumeots and markets; 

"Big Four" audit experience and investment operations 

professionals; and 

Risk management professionals experienced in building proprietary C_-_ 

tools and evaluating the risks inherent in specific Instruments, 

strategies and malkels. 
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---.. --_. - -- - ._- . --- -- - _ .. - - - -- - - --- - ------ .--------- ---- - --- - .. - -_ .. -=--

. . 
Que/los fundamentally believes that aligning incentives between the 
investment manager and the investor leads to gn!ater care in the 

managementof.fu~. for this reason, QueUos has committed j)e(SOIl8l 

Alternative I nvestment Strategies' 

QueUos devOtes ~kJerable resources to lis Investment efforts In 

Alternative Investment Strategies, which seek to generate superior risk-

and corporate funds alongside !heir investors and, where possible, employs adjusted returns by exploilin& marllet inefficiencies. These strategies are 

. ·-a-fee structure-primarily based-on -addlngvaltleand-reducing-the-potential" _ .. - -tYpically· aiViifoo -Base<! oil" liqUiClitY Ii:finis!uae1ili561iile Return Strategle~--_··-

.. . , ., 

to lake undue risks with client capital. 

Based on its underlying investment phIlosophy, Quellos' In\Iestment 

management. service~ are d~igned to: 

Actl\lely manage Alternative Investment Straregles allocations involving 

boIh Absolute Return Strategies and Private Capital Strategles through 

a fund of funds approach; 

Allocate fixed income and cash allocations to financially engineered 

portfolios targeting specific client objectives; and 

Passively manage (index) or employ Alpha Transport Stra!egies for 

traditional equity allocations. 

often referred to as hedge funds, and Private ~ pital Strategies or 

private equity. 

QuelJos believes the best approach in these sectors involves assembling 

a portforlO of independent investment managers i.nstead of relying on one 

firm. The disparity among top, median and bottom performing alternative . 

investment managers is considelable. Therefore, the challenge of buDding 

and managing an optimal portfolio requl~ a substantial, proacti-le effort 

in all aspeds of the Investment process. To successtuny ma.nage billions 

of do/lars for its global clientele, Quellos has assembled a deep and 

experienced team of investment and operations professionals. Supporting 

this team is an annual mulli-iTllliion dollar technology budget earmarked 

for developing proprielal)' information management. risk management 

and eIlent servicing tools. 
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Absglute Return Strategies (Hedge Funds) 

These strategies seek III capitalize OIllllBrket inefficiencies within a wide 

. range of marketable securities. By Isolating Ihese Inefficiencies and 

minimizing uncontrollable macro variables, such as !he overall direction 

.. . Qf~yiJY. rn~J:sJlrJ-nteres!.~~!.i!~ible!~_~r~~bsoI':lle_~~ .. 
even in declining rnarI<eis. Due to !he unique and superior risk..acljusted 

retum profiles, QueUos refetS to these as "slay. rich" investment strategies, 

Portfolio construction balances Ihe capabl.lities and risks of Ihe specific ( 

Investment managers and strategies. By diversifying across markels and 

insirumimts, Quel1es largets portfolios less susceptible to adverse 

conditions in anyone sector of the capilal markets an~ eliminates the 

futile el(erclse of attempting to correctly time markets. 

The. Wide variety, compleKily and d~ree of risk associated wilh Absolute 

Return Strategies necessitates !he commitment of extensive resources in 

four c:ntical areas; . 

Manager Identification demands a diligent. proactive effort to ~rne 
the dearth of publicly avaDabie manager information. Often, Ihe best . 

investment managers are the most dIfficult to Identify sInce they are 
adequately capitalized and focus on perforll\afICe-related issues rather 

than marketing. 

Manager evaluaoon focuses 00 the exislance and suslainability of 8 

manager's compeiutlve advanlage or edge. Fundamentally assessing 
this edge provides a more reliable basis for aikicaiing assets than the 

reliance on historical performance resulls. 

Risk management seeks early identification of potential problems that 

may jeopardize Ihe in~ty of a manager or strategy. A dedicated team 

of seasoned professionals use sophisticated. proprIetary technology to 

. continuously implemen! Quantilative and Qualitative methods In analyzing 

,managers, strategies and underlying positionS. 

QueUes offers clienls several ways to participate in one of the most 

successful investment programs in this asset class. Clients can invest in a 

variety of broadly diversified commingled lunds targeting pre-<lelined risk 

and rerum objectives or establish a customized fund tailored to meet their 

indlvidual objectives. auelos' investment management services are 

available to US taxable, US tax-exempt and non-US investors. 

( 
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--... ---- ._- . . - ._--_.- - 0 - ___ •• _ • • __________ • ___ • • _ • 

. k ~rivate capital StRteyJes (P,'yat~ Equity and ventu~caPtta))-- --- . - - - ~~o:::Q~ri~-~-::~::=~~o:=: ::~~:f= ·--C-
. These ~~. ~erthepoten6aHD deUver tne highest risk-adjUsted Investinent stni\egies. A regular and proac:tivecf.alogue wltM the 
.retu.ms of any asset. class bY~ng the I~ciencies inherent in illiquid • . investment niana~'Strives for ea~ inrerveJiti6rl of trouBled irwestrnents 
~te in~ts,kJch as venturaca~l8nd Jeveraged buy-ouls. TIle . and th~ identlficatio.n of Potential new.inveStment opportunities_ . 

. itiog;term nall.lre of these inVestments and the wide disparity In manager 
';~~,;;nrerim~dateSa-~~weu~':easoned aiKfdISCipUne4- -' .:-- ... ___ Dlstnb~ ~n~.!lemel\tis r~ui~~!nce many managess will allen 

cflstiibule securities In the underlying companies.-Q~.~llOS~I1 .. seektO - .- -- . 
. fnveslment approach. effectively and efficieritly liquidate these distributiOns in a timely rnanne't 

Managing a fund of funds in this asset class is synergistic and sU:nilar in 

". in~ respecIs ID the apProach employed fo!: Absolute Reb.lm Strategies. 
~ile there Is beneficial overlap in sharing resources. there are key . 

dlsti!1ctions ~ th~'aHribules of the u~~i.ng illY~tmenls: 

Manager selection relies not on/y 011 Identifying a'~d thoroughly . 

evalUatlng pot~tial candidates. but also ~~~ ftiIt~portunity 
.to aclllalfy invest Quel/Qs' access \D toP-lier managers results frOm its 

deep and Iong-slaOding relationships with the underlying Investment 

professionals. 

Portfolio construction emphasizes the paramount imparlance of 

o:tiUgating risk by diversifying across mu[Upje continuums ';cluding 

under1ying managers. strategies, "time periods, industry sectors 

and geography. 

so that proceeds can beretumed to the inveSlDr_ 

Quellos offers commingleq investment fuods in a broadly diversified 
portIolio of Private Capital strategies. Additionally, speciarlZed funds 

can be dedicated ID specific strategies such as early-5tage companies. 

mature-stage cOmpanies and real assetS .. ReaI Assets Strategies combine 
inflationarY proteCtIon. associal2d with holdings such as real estate, limber 

~nd energy. with Itle op~nlty to particI~te in highly Ineffici~t sectolS 

of the capital markets. Separate account capabilities are available tor either 

broad or speciarlZed portIoIios. 
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_. __ . - - •.. - .. - . --_ .. - - - ._- - - -- - - -- - - ---. - .- . ---- - ._-_._--, - -_. - - - '--'- - ._- -- - - ----. -- -- . - -- ... - - -- - - -- -- ._- -- . . _-

Traditi~nal Fixed Income and Equity Management 

Fixed Income Management 

The global cash and fixed income markets generaUy represent the Ia~gest. 

most efficient ~tnr 01 the capifal markets. Portfolio allocations to fixed 

income are often divided among those meeting specific liquidity and 

income objectives and those acklressing longer-term $ategic asset 

. - ail6ca~objectiVes::'Fuiid~ 'earmarkedfOrliqukiii?ind inromeobiectives 
should be all?CBted to portfolios financially engineered and structured to 

larget a clienfs particular objectives. Whereas, funds earmarked to address 

long-term strategic asset allocation objectives shou)dbe allocated to either 

an Investment manager wilh the economies of scale and expertise to target 

il broad-based frxed income index or to Alpha Transport Strategies. 

Equity Management 

QueUos contends it is highly unlikely that active equity management can 

refrablyoutpeifOllll a broad-based domestic or international equity index, 

.especially after the consideration of fees and taxes. As a result, Quellos 

recommel\ds this component of an investor's assets be allocated to a 

passive index or to Alpha Transport Strategies. 

Alpha Transport Strategies 

QueUes believes that Alpha Transport Strategies represent the next 

paradigm for tladitional inveslm':llt management. Alpha is the additional 

value generated through active management The fundamental principle 

... _re.'.:~_~?haTr~~~~.~~~~~~-.!o expa!.'~ ~~ ~~~~J!1~~~~~_ .. _ . 
alpha. Instead· of being forced to select only the stocks II:nd bonds 

contained in the relevant Index, alpha can be generated by participating 

in less efficient sectors of the capital markets. Quellos seeks to sigoillcanUy 

increase the likefihood of outperforming traditional equity and fixed income 

managers by generating alpha through the use of Absolute R~tum 

.. Sllategies and transporting the alpha 10' a traditional benchmark. QueUes 

offers Alpha Transport Stmtegies on a broad range of domestic and 

. ~ international equity and fixed income indices for US taxable, US Iax

exempt and non-US invesIDrs. 
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QueUos believes providing financial advisory 

services requires an integrated, strategic process 

that encompasses issues relating to·the. 

management. utilization and distribution 

of a client's wealth . 

. .. .. - ---.- . ----.-~::f~I:~~;:~::~:~::~~I::es·~~~:::~ore--- (. i 

than leadlng-edge investment management An integrated. strategic 

approach lhatencompasses issues relating to managing, ~tmzing and 
ultimately distrtbuting a clienfs wealth must be considered. Issues Include: 

how 6quidity is to be ~enerated; how after-tax returns are maximiz,:d; 

. - --now -YiEiiiltllTs-illoCi:iwiJlO supporrcurrenlciiiil flifiire-UrestYl€ goalsToow --

wealth is efflCfently IJansferred to subsequent generations andtor 

philanthropic concerns; and how wealth is managed based on personal 

objectives.. Though each client's issues are different. there are cl~r 
"best practices" and economies of scale that are attributable to Quellos' 

narrowly defined clientele. 

While the scope of appropriate financial advisory services will vary . 

depending on a c1ienfs current situation. goals, expectations and desired 

level of involvement. Quellos draws on its intemal team of industry experts 

!D help clients navigate the intricacies and challenges associated with 

prudently and efficiently managing wealth_ To accommodate these various 

client situations. QueUos has structured financial advisory services Into 

three core areas: SlJategic 1Isset Allocation. Custom Strategies and Family 

Office Services. 

Strategic; Asset Allocation 

For a select group of clients, Queltos offers strategic assistance in 

developing, implementing and managing an Il'>'erall investment policy 

customized to meet each client's needs and objectives. Aller a thorough 

evaluation of a cr.enl's current and future financial goals, a tailored 
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slrategic pia!! is delleloped that irKxlI'porates return objectives, risk 

.Iolerance,liquidity.needs, lax"consequences and other special-factors. 

The key element of this plan is a slJategic asset allocation that identifies 

hoN each client's assets should be allocated across lradltional and 

altemal,ive·i~tstrateglesin · a·tax~emcient!f1Cll1ner.-Once·· 

implemented, !he strategic plan is tell!llarly monitored, rebalanced and 

modified to correspond with a cfienrs evolving circumstances and the 

dynamic ·nature of the capital markets. Asset allocation is the primary 

. driver to meeting·8 clienfs overnR financlal objectives and QueUes believes 

that meticulous attention and diligence should be spent on this proCeSs. 

Custom Strat~gies 

MeaningfUl ecilnomlc or investment decisions shouk!. not be made without 

first carefully analyzing the overall tax and regulaloly implications. 

Ach levlng Que/los' objec!ive of maximizing after-tax returns may entail a 

sophisticated and innovative solulioo customized to address a cfienl's tax, 

regulalory and economic situation. These solutions may employ structured 

financial instruments. resourceful legal structures and complex investment 

strategieS. The effective design, Implementation and management of these 

strategies le{Iuire the collaboration of a team experienced in tax law, capital 

market structuring. inveslment operations, regulatory issues and 

accounting. Que!los' role will vary depending on the needs of each client; 

however, considera ble time will be spent educatIng a dien! as to the risks 

and rewards of various alternatives and coUaborating with a client's tax. 
accounting and other professional advisors. 

13 

Family Office Services 

Effective and comprehensive financial advisory services require executing 

and coordinating a multitude of activities generally periomJed by a broad 

range of professionals. Quellos offers a complete range of financial advisory 

... -·semces-oe51gnEidspecliica:nyToi·pnviiteCilentstOsimpilfy;-·coordinaiii iliia---
enhance the wealth management process. Rarely is a standard pre-

packaged solution appropriate or effective. AI times, Quellos acts as a 

clienrs family office; · other times, it serves as a resource for an existing 
family office and Iong.standiRg advisPcs. Mer car.eful assessment of a 

dent's current intermediate and long-term personal and financial goals. 

a custom portfolio of services is proposed that may include: 

strategic asset aUocation 

Income and transfer tax-optirnizalion planning 

Consolidated financial and performance reporting 

Tax planning aed compliance 

Philanthropic planning 

General business cash How planning and budgeting 

Famiyoffice management 

S~al advisory services - non-recurring projects, 

many of which include asset acquisition and disposition 
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Acting solely as a cHem's agent, QueUos 

Brokerage Services is exclusively focused on 

executing ~ch request in the most respo.nsiye, 

proficient and coSt..,efficient manne~. 

BROKERAGE SERVICES 
- - _. ---!, -- .--- ._--' ,._._- --- - .-- - - --_ .. _. __ ._ ... . __ . -

firm, QueDos is unencumbered by serious conflicts orinte~ally~~~---{ - -

reslrictionsprevalent at many traditional brokemge firms and acts solely 

Successful ftnimcial management often requires executing a wide variety 

of transactions in the global securities markets. These transactions may 

include o!Versif'ying a core equity or option position; hedging complex 

Interest rate or foreign currency exposure; acquiring sizable positions in 

as an agent ID scour "the StTeet"and obtain the maximum executiOll ~evels .. 

The flexibility to use virtually' any trclding counterparty affords clienls the 

specific fixed income or equily securitieS; implementing an asset allocation benefit of multiple firms cornP.eting for their order. Acting as an agent, 

··· program; OfIXiriOWii'igagaiost afreXisunlfportfofia. -To'meetthese needs;-- -----Quelm-places-a-h1gh-priority oAconfidentialil)Lin.order ID.help.cI"tents_._. __ . 

QueUos pJlJl/ides clients with a customer-driven approach to executing 

seclJrilies and derivative transactions tNoughout the global capital 

markets. 10 a manner consistent Wllh its core philosophy regarding market 

efficiencies, Quellos rehains from recommemjjng specific securities'or 

engaging in market-timing actiVities. QueJlosis exclusively focused on 
executing each cl"1erIt request in the most responsive, proficient and 

cost-efficlent manner. 

In today's market. the difference between a well and a poorly el(ecuted 

transactioil can be material. A poorly executed transaction can be 

disastrous. While advanced technology is valuable, nothing is more critical 

than relying on experienced and knowledgeable market professionals 

acting exclusively In a client's best interest As an independent brokerage 

maintain anonymity in the marketplace. 

Quellos prides.itself in providing clients with set'lice5 and execution 

capabilities usually reserved for large, top-tier institutions. This capability 

promotes greater efficiency as costly and lirne-<:onsumlng steps can be 

eliminated from the execution process. QueUos offers superior service by 

eliminaling.the "middlemen" and providing clients Wl1h direct access to 

senior trading and operations specialists With decades of experience and 

strategiC relationships. CoUectively, QueUos' vast experience, advanced 

technologyinfra~tructure and customer-driven approach enable the 
thoughtful, efficient and discrete execution of large, and often sensitive, 

security transactions as part of a comprehensive financial strategy. 
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Uniform Application for Investment Adviser Regis~ation 

OMS Number. 3235~OO49 
Expires: November 30, 2005 
Estimated average burden 
hours p~r response ....... 9.402 

Name ofInvestmcnl Adviser. 

Quellos CUl$tom StrateQies, lLC 
Addtess: (Nurnlier and Street) (city) 

601 Unidn'Sbeel56th Floor Seattle 

(State) 

WA 

(Zip Code) 
98101~ 

Area Code: Telephone Number. 

(206)-613"-6700 

This part orF~hn AD" gives infontllitiOD about the iDvestment advl!!er and its business for. the ~e of clients. 
. The; inrq~a'tioil ~ils O:Qt be~ approved or verified by,anygovern-mental imtho·rlty • 
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FORlVI ADV 
_Part 11:-- P.age _~ 

Applicant: 

QueUos Custom Strategies. LLC 

Definitions for Pait II 

SEC File Nwnber: 

801- 56703 

Date: 
1211112003 

Related person - Any officer, director or partner of applicant or any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or 
uDder common control with the applicant, including any non-clerical, non-ministerial employee. 

Investment Supervisory Services - Giving continuous investment advice to a client (or making investments for the client) 'bas-ed 
on the.ind~J~I!1.f.I-~.eds of the clien.t. ~dividual·nee~ include, for example, the:itafnre of otl!~ client assets and the·~lients per-
sonal and ~i1y o~ligations. .' ':" _.:. . ,... . .' . " .. 

Fo~-:,;a~:~e..~f ~~1V.ic~ p~~d~J state'th~ iipp~old~~~ 
% ofto~ advIs6ry bllbngs ft'om l11at ServIce. 
(Sec insliuction below.) 

... :!':"." 

U;1- ·.H) PrDvides investme~t supewisory s~rVices ... :..._ ....... _ ..................................................... , .. _. __ ... ~ •................ : .• :. ':'~~': ~:. ~~ ~.~( .J~ .. 
SiC (2) ~ages in~estment advis!>ry a6coun& not il).vplv.iug investment supe~!sory servicc::s ,_ ...... :.~. __ .:: .....• _.:.,~.;. ~ .. '~" :tW·tc( fB. 
tJ (3)'~9riUshes investment ~v.i~· thlt!ugJi ~~uila~p~ pot included in either serviCe descn'bed abo~e ...... :_ ....... ,.:_ ... ,~:.::. '., ':;' -~ .. or 
Ii] (4) Issues periodicaIs'about secunijeS by-sub~ipifob' ::.r ... :.. ........... -~ .. ~.;~ .. :~ ... .:-.... : .. -... -..... .:-... :.-.. : ........... u.: .. : ;~ {:<:" ... ';:i$:, ill 
E;] (5) ISsueS .special-repol1$ ~t' seCuriti~. nQljn~IQd.ed in any service de.scril?ed above ._ .......... .:.;.:,..~ ... :_ ... _ ...... )~):;;> .;. <,' ~. [] 
f] (6) J~ues, ~ot _as 'part of any service .d.esinDed &?:v~ . .an~ .charts, graphs~ f~~~I·or ot.b-~ .devi~ ~ich - ; %:: .... " : ~', 121 

clients may USe to evaluat~ $~urttJes __ , ........ _., ••.•.•.•.• , ...•.. _ ... _ ..•.•...... __ •... __ ...... _ ........... _ ..... __ ................ , - . '. . ~ .. 

[] (7) Onnior~ than an occasion~ l;~is, furnishes advice to clien~ on matters not i1lvolYing s.ecurities .. _;.. ....... _ •.. :.:.;:~::.::. >Ioi~ III· 
o (8) Provides a timing setviee :._ ... ~ ..... __ ......... ,.. ...... : ..... : ....... _ ... _._ .. m .... _ .... __ ._._. __ ,-... _ ••••••• , ••• _ ...... , •• _ ........ ' • .-.'. ,:,:.,: :.~:. 0 
o (9) Furnishes advice.abo~t securities in a.ny manner not described above ._ .......• _ •....... _. ___ ....................... , • ..: ...... : . .' . '; . :':~. ['] 

(percentages should be based on !q,pUcartt's last fiscal year. If appliC<allt bas not COQl,l?ieted its first fiscal year, provide 
.- . . ---- .-. - .- ... · ·-estimates-of-advisol)l-l>illings·for-that.ycar.and-sClte-thafthe.pea:enfages are.estimates.) ____ . ___ . ____ . __ . 

. . 
'iis . .&~. r'

B. Does applicant call !illY of the services it.checked above financial planning or some simil~ tenn?" .. _ .... _ ...•... __ ..•. _ .. __ · . Oi~';~· 

C. Applicant offers investment advisory- services' for: (check all that apply) 

~ (I) A percentage of aSsets under management 0 (4) Subscription fees 
O ' (2) f'I6Ui1y ctiarges'- -.-. - . -.-- -- -"---::-E1-(5)Commissioos'-

~ (3) Fixed fees (DOt including subscription fees) @ (6) Other 

D. For each ch~ked' box in ~ ab?ve, describe on Sch~ule F: 

tbe services provided, including the Dame of any publication or report iSsued by the adviser on a 
subscription basis or for a.fce 

• applicant's basic fee schedule, bow fees are charged and whether its fees are negotiable 

• when compensation is payable, ~d if compe~oD is payable before service IS provided, bow a client 
may get a refund or may terminate an investment advisory contt:act before its expiration date 

.j 2. Types of Oients -.J\pplicant generally provides i1lVestment advice to : (check those that apply) 

gJ A. Individuals ~ E. Trusts, estates, or charitable organiZations 

[] B. Banks or thrift institutions ~ P. Corporatioo.s or business entities othj:r tlialdhose 
listed above . 

QI c. Investment oo!l1P3Ilies 
•. .,i-" 

o D. Pension and profit shari,ng pl$.-.. 
-.:,! :.--.j 

".'~: . 

" '~' . ... .,. .. . '- .. - . 
1 . . . -~ .. - .' 
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FORMADV 
Partll -.Page 3 

1 Applicant 

lQuello~ Custom Strategies, LLC I SEC File Number: 

801- 56703 

(-- Typ~ ofinvestroents. Applicant offers advice on the following (check those that apply) 

A. Equity Securities 21 H. Utiited States government securities 
I!lI (1) exchange-listed securities 
~ (2) securities trade~ over-the-counter 
~ (3) foreign issuers . 

&1 B. Wa:rrants 

!;!1 C. Corpornte debt s~ties 
. . (other tha:n:commercial paper) 

21 D. Conunercial pap'er 

IilI E. Certificates of depOsit 

!Sa F. Municipai sec"udtici' 

G. Investment cOmp~riy securities: 
~ (I) variable life insUrance 
~ (2) variable annuities 
21 (3) mutual fund shares 

L .options contracts oli: 
~ (I) securities 
~ (2) commodities 

I. Futures contracts nn; 

o (I) tlu'igtb les . 

21 (2) intangibles· 

K. Inte~sts in partnerships investing in: 
~ . (1) real estate 

If.l (2) oil and gas interests 
~ (3) other (explain on Schedu1e F) 

~ L. Other (explain on Schedule F) 

- - - 4. -Methods..o.fAnalysis,-S~airces..onnfonnat!!LD_,_3D(U.nvest~~I!.CS~tt:t!es.!. __ ~ _____ . _ . __ _ 

A. AppUcant's security analysis methods include: (check those that apply) 

(1) 0 Charting (4) ~ Cyclical 

(2) 21 Fundamental (5) 0 Other (e?tP1ain on Schedule F) 

.cn2LTechnicaL .. _ ..... _ .. ___ _ 

I Dale: 

J 12111(2003 

-._--_. __ ... _ . .. __ .. --... _- - -- . . --_ .. _- ... ... _-- ----_ . -_ .. - .. _. __ .. . -

B. The main sources ofinfonnatipn applicant uses include: (check those thai apply) 

(1) ~ Financial newspapers and magazines· 

(2)2] Inspections ofcorpo~te activities 

(3) b2I Research materials prepared by others 

(4) ~ Corporate rating scrvIces 

(5) 0 Timing services 

(6) &1 Annual reports, prospectuses, filings with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission 

(7) ~ o;~any press releases 

(8) 0 Other (explain on Schedule F) 

C. The investment strategies used to implement ~y investment advice given to clients include: (check those that apply) 

(1) ~ Long term purchases 
(securities held at least a year) 

(2) ~ Short tenn purchases 
. (securities sold wi~in a year) 

(3) ~ -Trading (securities sbld within 30 days) 

(5) ~ Margin transactions 

(6) ~ Option writing, including covered options, 
uncovered options or spread"mg strategies 

(7) 21 Othe~ (explain OR Schedule F) 

<:~w .. ~(_~~~_·'_S_h_o_rt_sa_les~~ __ ~ ______ ~ __________ ~ ____________________________________ ~~ 

.. - .. ' 
ADS",.,.:;.it i.(e.Di •. Cotnple~ !iiu~e1Ided·pIIg'~u f"iC ri~i. amended. ~edis a"lul lilt wi~ aecutiol(pag.Jpag~ 1). 

Page 1154 _ . 
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FORMADV 
Part \I - Page·4 

I Applicant 

Quellos Custom Strategies. LtC 

5. Education 'and Business Standards. 

t 
SEC File Number: 

801- 56703 I Date: 
12111/2003 

A:'e .there ~y. gen.eral standards. ~f educa~ion or business experience th~t applicant requires of those involved ill deter-
mining or gIVIng lIIvestment.advlce to clLents? ......... _ •.•..•..• _ ...•........•..... _ .......•... _ .•................. _ ....... , .......•......•... _ ......... . 

(If yes, describe·~elle !>tandllfds on Schedule F.) 

€i. Edut::atiOD and Business Background. 

For: 

.. • c!lch momber of the inves.tment committee or group that determines general investinent advice to be given to clients, or 

• if the applicant has no inv:estmcnt committee or group, each individual who de.temlines gCQeral inve!;qn.e~t adYi~. giv:~ 
to clients (if more than five, [.espond only for their ~~~MSQZ:S)' ~ .0:-': ... : -' ' . • . . • : 

• each principal executive officer of applicant or each -person.with similar status or performing similar functions. 

On S.ched~e F. give the: 
~. ' . , 

. ". .' '.,' ,,': fQrmJll education after high school - , -
.' .'. busiu.esS·background for the pre.ce<!io.g five y~ .. ':. ." .' : .. ' 

• name 
• year of birth 

7. Other Business Activities. ~~~~4~~~~l~\,~i. 
o A. Applicant is actively engaged iQ. a b.usiness otl;ter .t.han giving investment advice. 

~ B. Applicant sells products or sctvices other than inve$tment advice to clients . 

r-
Yes No -. 
~ .p 

. . :C5t c.. _:Ike. {nj.n~\>li .b~1!t~s _of~e~~t 'or its princip;U cx~uti~e' ~~c~ inyal~es somethi~g Qthyr than 
proVldmgmvcsbnenfadVlce. . .. - .- - .. -."-'- ...:. .... - '-"_'. _ ... . _ ",., ..... _ .... ___ .... __ . _" . . _ .. __ . __ 

(For each checked box describe the other activities: iricfuding the tinie spent ~n them, on S~edule F.) 

8. Other Financial Industry Activities or AffiliatioDs. (cheek those that apply) 

o A. Applicant is registered (or has an applU:ati.on pending) as a securities broker-dealer_ . 

0]3~Applicatins1:egisteyed·(or'basan·lIPplication-pending) .asa futures CQ!.ll!!I.l.~$.ion 1Ilc:~h3:nt, commodity 
pool ope~tor or commodity trading adviser. . .. _-.- ... . . ... -.. . 

C . . Applicant has arrangements that are mate.rial to its advisory business or its clients with a related person 
who is a: . 

~ (1) broker-dealer 0 (7) accounting finn 

.0 (2) investment coPlpany 0 (8) law firm . . 

~' (3) other investment adviser 0 (9) insurance company or agency 

21 (4) financial plannilig firm 0 (10) pension consultant 

~ (S) commodity pooi"operator, commodity trading 
advise( or futures commission mercbant 

0 (11) real estate broker or dealer 

0 (6) banking or thrift institution 0 (12) ~tity that crea~es or packages limite4 partnerships 

(For each cqecked box in C, on: 8.ehedule F ilJentify the related person and describe the relationship and th.e Bll1ijlgements.) . . . 

D. Is applicant or Ii reli!ied Person Ii gen!l[al patU1er in any parl:!tersP,ip in which 9lients are solici~ to 
inve.st? ..... _ ........... _ .......•..• ":, ... : .. : ... ~::.;: .•..• _ .•. :~ .•.. _:; ....... ; ..•... ~; .............. _.~ ..... ..: ........ ,._ ....•. ; __ ............. , ... _ ... , ............ . 

" i (If yes, descri~ ~n Sc.~eilu1e F. the pactnen;hips and -what they iI1~st in) 

--
1": 0:. , _. 

.' ';;". "." . -. . . ~.- ~ , . . 
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-FORMADV 
Part II - Page 5 

-I AppliC8Ilt: 
Quellos Custom StrategIes. LLC 

Participation or Interest in Client Transactions. 

Applicant or a related person: (check those that apply) 

I SEC File Number: 

llOI- 56703 -

o A. As principal, buys securities for itself from or sells securities it OWJlS to any client. 

@ B. As broker or agent effects securities transactions for compensation for any client. 

\ 
Date: 

12/1112003 

[) C. As broker or agent for any person_other than a client effects transactions in whicli client securitieS are sold to 
. or bought from a brokerage customer. 

I!lI n :' Recommends to clients tliat they buy or sell securities or investment products in which the applicant or a related 
'. person has some financial interest. 

. ~ B: B~s or sells for itself securities that it also recommends to clients. 

(For eacti-box checked, deSc~ibeQnSChCduld~ when the al>plicant or a related person engages in these ~aCtions arid what 
~trictions, int~mal PT?cedilres, or disclosures are used for conflicts Qf interest in Jliose W!nsactions.) 

10. Conditions for. Managing A!XOunts.~ ~e appl~qmt provide investment supervisory services, manage invcsl!nent advisoiy -
. 8.C(X>uli:t~ or hbld itself out as pro"vidUig. financial-planning or some.simi~y teimed services and impose a'minfmum dollar' :.ii:i "t'o' , 

vaLue of assets or other conditiotJs-fo-t starling·ot maintaitUng an acoount7 ............. :_-...... : .. ; .. , ................... - .••.• , .... ,-.::: .... ; ........ i~' --rJ ~ . . .~ . 
(If yes, describe on Schedu1~ P.) 

11. Review of A~cOlli1ts. If aPplicanfprovides investment supervis~rY'serviceS, manag~ investment advisory accounts or hold~
. itself out as providing financial planning or some similarly termed services: 

A. Describe below the reviews and revjewers of the accounts. Fot reviews. include their frequency, different levels, and 
triggering factors. For reviewers, include the. number of reviewers, their titles l)Ild functions, -i~structions they receive 
from applicant on performing reviews, and number of accOunts assigned each. . . '. 
See Schedule F 

B. Describe below the nature and frequency of regular reports to clients on their accounts. 

See 'Schedule F 

Page 1156 
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FORMADV 
Part II - Page:S 

Applicant: 

. Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 

12. IDvesbnent or Brokerage Discretion. 

SEC File Number: 
801- 56703 

Date: 

12111/2003 

A. Does applicant or any related person have authority to deteunine, without obtaining specific client consent. the: 

(1) securities to be bought or sold? ............... ~ ... _ .. _ ...... _~ ... ~ .. : .... : ........ .-... : ........ : .................. : ... ~ ......... : .................. _ .. :_._ ... ~.~ .. :.~~~<~ 
(2) amount of ~e. ~~ties.(() he bQu~t qr sQld? .. - ....••... , .. -., ••... , ........ , ...•.......... ~ ... _ ..............•...... , .. , ...... , .. _ ......... "., ...•. ,f:-.; :I~: -.. ..,'" . . ' .' -. '. -. . ',' .. ' ", ::,"\?' :~ ... \~ 

~ ..... ,:7":., .. ~~~.~~ .. ~~ .. !'i~'· .. : .. ~ ....... ~~~~~, ~. ~wt:.· 
B.· Does app'li~ffOt'a telal¢d.¢rso~ sii~est broke~'to cl'ie!ltS? .;.~ .• ::.;.:~ .. _ .................. ; ...... _:;:~ .... _ .. : .. ;:.~.:; . .-: ... ;_~:.~~; ........... : .. 

For'eaeh J:~.~tb. ~a~e!1l?e·Oi}·~~U~·F ~Y11~~ns ~~.t4e· at'lth09tt.· ~or ·eac~.Y:~;u.rA(Jh :~(4)~~!~~~ .::; '.::". . 
ij~~'b~ 9D-*Ji¢uk f-:th'=.(~~.r!:;.co~sl~~r:ethn ~cl~~~~~k~~d jJ.~t¢l,!~~ th~ r~«;ln~\~n~'~ftl!~W~-cq~!.S~·. ': .. . 
sio)lS. ,Xftl\e ~e;ot:ill'0ductS; ·~.earch and. !eIVlces gl~:to.~~ 'apid~'!ltor a rela~di'etsblf 1S',a fc!cWr; ~1:s6tibe, .. ~.~ . -:~ .' ... . 

'.' .. :. . 
the producflj, ~eal'!<h anc\ serv1ce$ ..... 

• .'!.. 

wh.etlter res~ ~. us.e4·to ~Cf.Yiu alJ .of applicant's ~0!lJl1$ Qr jus,t ~q9se a~unts paying for it; and 

• any pr~~~~ the appiiciint us~ d~ .tI1~tas~ fiscal ;ear to ifir~t qlienf tr:3nsactiells to a pllititWar'.orolCer'in 
Ieturn for products 8Il~ research services received. '.' .' . . . .:: 

,. __ ._ .. _ ... _._--_. - - - _ .. -- -.-- _._---_._--_.- ... -------- --- ---_. 
A~ditional Compensation. - - -- - . - -- -- - - - '- - -

Docs the applicant or a related person have any arrimgements. oral or in writing. where it 

A. is paid cash by or receives some economic benefit (including commissions, equipment or non-research service:!) from 
a non-client in connectionwith.giving advice to clients? •.. _ ... _ ..................................................... : ........ _ .. _ ...................... . 

y:es··. 'No· 
B. directly or indirectly compensates any person for client re(errals? .......................................... _ ................... _.-: ....... -...... . :I~r ""0 

14. Balance Sheet. Applicant must provide a balance sheet for the most recent fiscal year on Scbedule G if applicant 

• has custody of client funds or securities; or 

• requires prepaym"nt of lIlore than $500 in fees per client ap.d 6 or more months in advance .: . 
. :Yoes; No 

Has applicant provided a Schedule G balance sheet? .... __ .. _ .. - .. _ ............... _ .. - ........ _ ......... _ ....... _-..........•.. ., ...... :.~~r '0 . 

' . 
. Page·11 fj7.·. 
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Schedule F of . Applicant 
FormADV 

SEC File Number: 

80L- 56703 

Date: 

12111/2003 Continuation' Sheet for Fonn ADV Part II Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 

(Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Ponn ADV Part lor any other schedules.) 

Full name ofapplicanl exactly as stated in Item IA of Part I ofFonn ADV; EmpL No.: 

Quellos Custom Strategies, llC 91-1976232 

it~' 
··{fiiJ,iiel\)~~~~~tii;:ilJD~~.ttt~l~~i!iP.li~.~~tie'rtI~~!?n-iB~f 'WY:~i:~~y ~·ja~.: . .- :. : ... 
F.rof~~;i~.li:fS opinio1l.S:' w~'1f1BtA~·~1~j~~'tfu~'t:lfutl~}.1lli~t;ri:ciias!fi1~iru::e ~an ~ ghren . .. 

Chlll.~~~·1l1l..1.aw Ol'·l:I.'Iat·;ttle u-"~"'K .... l(.ev;lenlle::le.r·vfc:ewi1lnot · . 
~~11i!~:~ese:l!rtpi$ilff0h~.1ill1lt-e.i' pfu~.~e$V:i()r rE;~tt-dI~P¢l;!I.iVJ~;··cie«dejpt new . 
~'~I~~~with'~~~~e~~~;~i~~~e~~£~~~~~tfD~~e~~l~~~~ni~roih~~ 

. . '~.':7~ .:.. __ : i_ ~1 .~~[~~A~~~p'~f:s'.~'£;N.~~E~~t¢~~1~~;~f:~~e::~:e1ilHfj)[S;,.;.-il~ filacCtu;.-- ___ _ 
·~~~~t~~~·~~~~~?"~~~€~'d~~~~~~·?~~~;I~~~~~w·~. ~N& 
oot.~~~ly:J~lli~t:.-?;dittrltt0';1~-a::j}»~le.-nll"0f~~~taji:es;'ai1):mt*estC'hai:g.e;·Or 

.... ~ .. :.;: .. :: .~ 

,', :-".:!:;' 

.... : .. - . ' ~ .... 

Qre:;as~i6S!!IDjm.t; of ~tli~i. J?t!natti~. t{j·tHk servit:~;'described . . 
ab9v.~ the·Registrant· may alSo, 'hi. ceroim limfted drdunstances, adVise Funds ' 
(d.~re{fhel0Wr·.thafinvest in'6(fi~ F.~nd.s incm:ageq:'by its a~Qiiel:los Capital 
Mariagement, L:P~ an:d tliatpm-su~'Quiillo:f ARS{cMBrtei:Hje!o:.w).: .' 

---,-. _ ... _ ... _-_ .. ... -- . . . -. . - ' ". - " . . ;--.---.... .. . --~-.-

', ' . ".'. 

t"l:Q~le(t:.iii.il!de"dpi:g~·iO ·.[uJI;'dit:le liRie.ldtcf Iteini abd-tde \nib 6.tcuti6i1;plli~ (ps;-e I). . 
.. ," .: ....... . r· " , .-- ' . . . " ' . : . . ' , _ •.. " .. ',. ' . . . _ . • : .•••.. - .. . 
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Schedule F of Applicant 
ronnAOV 

SEC File Number: 

801- 56703 

Date: 

1211112003 Continuation Sheet for Form AOV Part II Quellos Custom Strategies, LlC 

(Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Form ADV Part I or any other schedules.) 

L exactly as stated in Item lA of Part AOV: IRS BmpL (dent. No.: 

Strategjes, LtC 91-1976232 

. Answer 

j" .... :.,.: . 

"I • 

'." 

}'.-

i: ....... 

··--- :I ·rutl.eR~i~~ iUad"are.~e!mpt.f;l"IfL~~~-I:i1~'!!:~~~l:1~~ !It;:i~;~;~!l~~~:~e: 
19-40, as a~ended, pw-s~tose~;1i9ii jJ 
:!;tunds andjnvesb:nent fUrtGs iri. wl:rlClyli¢Sle"cl1fm!l8"j~~ 
tllat are ex~pt-(i) frQnl cer:til,itl.CE:gol:"IW:g,-:terol'clJ!~~~dnf~,atla disdostll"1<e:'J:1e(f'If1i£I~EWLts 
pun:uantto l~UIe 4.7"uruier. the "E,?,~~" Ad (#lCBA"), - " " 
re8is:t:rati~ri"aIJ.d related requir~~ts "p:u.:rSilaIit tQ Rule 4..13(~)(3.} -or (4) utlx~er t;he"" 
CEA.." " " " " " """ " 

. " . .. ~. .,-

,, ' .. ,: 0'. ·.i:-, . ~ .. '. 

,,':- .. ~., ' ,- .-. 

-:-

-;," ;", ':.-,", 

" , . " 

.,~ :;:.:'~.;:\ .. ,-: ... 

. " -: : ' ., .,-: .... . ". .". ,. "... ~" 
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·ScHe-CiUJe·F of Applicant 
. FonnADV 

SEC File Number: 

80l- 56703 

Date: 
1211112003 Continuation S eet for Fonn ADV Part II Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 

(Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Form ADV Part I or any othet schedul':S.) 
~ ~F~u~ll-nwn--e-o~f~--~-'att--e-~-~~M--~--~~in-I~re-m-l~A-o~f~P~~[-of~F~onn--AD~V~:----------~------~ms~Em~~~.I~oo~n-t~N~Q.-:~----~ 

QueUes Custom Strategies,lLC 91-1976232 

lremofFonn 
(iderrti fy) ,Answer. 

':. 

What: :v:t"!tin~· Pl':t>xies-fPr- clioot'a5!tdUftfui ~~~s -wim.atr ·objectiv:e is·:tO:~e. ~. 
vciing. aeciSi6r.\s'-~1~y:in tI-ie ~t .irl~tS :d( cli~'fQr which it manages ~i:s.·Iii 
~ Ifs.;opM~tio~ to·dlexils;R .. ~~·~n:a~f;ojD··a'inantterJwmch is.inten:~ed to 
.~~ .the.~W'lmic valUe,i!Jf·th~ .Wi~e~ym.g:-fuv-eStritenf5·heI~ ip:.ol-i~t acco¢tS. 
Thusr:this pr-o.ees-s may incltit6a-c;~t-be~aaa1j.sis.1:iti.~:eJeimitte ~aether the vo~g . 

-: ... -of.:a~~nt~sproxy is~th~-client:sbest:interes.t..Jn_ad-difiim;~~t.~~~ s-~p-s ____ _ 

~ - : .-:; ::}~.-. : ••• ~:: : • h •• r· .· . 
C ."~::~~~.:~'::':':: 7~X:·;· :::'.~ ..... :.; ::: 

~ ... '-.:. . . .. " . 
.. ,'.' . . .' 

to avoid material confliC:ts of interests betw~en the interesis of Regi$trail.t and its 
affiliates on the one hand·and the inb;reg~ ofits clients· on .the oiller. 

Oioots. of Registrant can obtairi a copy of !he Pdlicies and Procedures or intonnation 
on how RegiStrant voted fueir proxies by conmcting:the Managing.Director of 
Investment Operati.o~ at (200) Ql~6700 or·pboil.de®q~ellos.com. . 

:- .:. ~ .. 

:0, •• : 

.,: .. . . . : ~ '.. . .' . .: .. ~. . .' .. : ,".- :':,', 

ColDpk~e aiul).dfil ~edll :ruJi,-circl<: .• m~g.di:d itCIIIS . .and.:fiIe:·ltiiri·~e.cil(jo'!i;page (pagel). , 
••• ' ••• '. • '. . ' , " ~. ,,' • • ••• :', • .: '..1 '. • •• . . ~ . 
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Schedule F of Applicant: 
FormADV . 
Continuation Sheet for Form ADV Part II QuellosCustom Strategies, LLC 

SEC File Number: 

801- 56703 
Date: 

1211112003 

(Do Dot use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Form ADV Part I or any other scnedules.) 

I. Full name of applicautexactly as stated in Item lA of Part I of Form ADV: 
Quellos Custom Strategies, LlG 

i·, . '0 

~. ,0' 

i····· "0.:" :(': " '~"~::":'~~'.::' 
: .... :~:?~;: ''::-''~;''~.::-''~ .. : . :.: :".; .. ' ....... 

;' .... 
::'1:: : .. ,:- ;---
~:, · f 

" 
,' . 

", 
;', ' . 

• .,::.,:._: ~', 'j.-:.. 
"'- '.- .. . -' -... .... 

:. ) . , 

. " ~ .. 

'. ..' 
~~ ..• " 

,~, ...• . :,.:, ' .. . 

.. ~ ':;' ;.,/ ';\t~'~~,(: ....•.. :(:.:;:;:.;:!~~i~~~W7:r::;{#<: ' 
J,i!rit~ehl:~e,net}te~d;irM~~ftm~ts·~t!i~"\i~Q\tti1~~a~~Qs,.ru:e 
iJnP.?tr~d;m~s~nu:i~~\iei's,ijftfie~p~~~~~Ii1ii!·?':· "~IDd~ees-or 
~~~J.l~~j~~~~; ~gw~ii~~~~~-,,: . ':', ..... "" .. !t{~~~~" : : 
~ca'6.d~~r.e-B'lwiip~dtt:ative,(i,f'.hlt~bm;~tit~Jl~~~ . 'm' ,~d::v.is()1'1~ 
~ffi¢S·~ . . .. :.' '.-" '. ..' . '0." '.' .... :~.:. :',' .: i" .!.:~.- 0--:' ':\:::'L:i~ .. :.~r:.: . ..... ~ :: ... -., '.' 

" -:. ": .!. -. .. .' .~':..': 
.. ' 

: : .. '. : .... 

. ..... 

.:'.' ..... 

.-:.~.:~ .. -.-

. :: . 

..... -: .. ~: 

::-- ...... . 

~ . ' .:' 

. . .. , '. :. ". ~;:-.- :':' ',,: 
........ :.. 

..... -' .. 

. ~I~1ii~~1~L.; ':'. 
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Schedule F of Applicant: 
FormADV _ 
Continuation Sheet for Fonn ADV Part \I' QtJeUos Custom StrategIes, LLC 

SEC File Number: 
801- 56703 

Date; 

12111/2003 

(Do. Dot use. this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Fonn ADV Part lor any other schedules.) 
r_~~~~~~~ ____ ~~~ __ ~ 
\_ Full name of applkant exactly as stated in Item IA of Part I ofF?nn ADV: IRS Empl ldent. No.: 

:: 

Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 91-1976232 . 

Item of Form 
(identify) . Answer . . 

Bruce M Dresner 
Ol/02-Present, Member - Investment Committee, RegiStrant 
10/9f;)-Ol/02, Vice President for Inv~tmenl:S and'Qrlef ~.'vestment Officer,. Columbia 
University '. 
BA" Econo~cs, 1%9, Uxrlversity of Mi.arni; MBA,.1-971, Amos Tuck Sello,?l, Dartmouth 
College . . ." 

Date ofBirfh: 1/'1f3/48 

: ' ' -

... .. .. .. ' 
. ~.,:, : . '.- ... -~ . . ' . 
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Schedule F of 
FormADV 
Continuation Sheet for Fonn ADV Part.ll 

Applicant 

Quellos CustQm Strategies, LLC 

SEC File Number. 

801- 56703' 

Date: 

12f11/2OQ3 

(Do not lise this Schedule as a continuation sheet for FOIlD ADV Part lor any other schedules.) 

L Full Dame of applicant exactly as stated in Item IA of Part [of Form ADV: No.: 

Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 

Answer 

: .f 

, . . 

. .... " 
j -: 

. '-; ",' :; ...... :: ._: ;0 •. 
'.i .. 

. -.r. • :"'-: • .& .', .:-: 

'0:' 

.;.:- .!. .... ~.~ ... :-
' .. _.0 

.... 

. '. . ','-... . : 

:' ...... 
. -... -.... 

'. 

,', -:-:.:. .,', ....•. :: .... ,. 
.. ' : . : . . ; .;' ~ 

:::- ::';' .!<;'.~ . 

'. 

.: ,,', 

', ..... 

" . 

. \ 
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Schedule.F of Applicant: 
FormADV . 
Continuation Sheet for Form ADV Part II' QueUos Custom Strategies, LLC 

SEC File Number. 

801- 56703 

Date; 

1211112003 

.. , (Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Fonn ADV Part I or any other schedules.) r -FO:-u"'-n-nam-e-o-r-ap-p-lican-l-,ex-a-ctf'-y-as-sta-1e-d-in-Ite-m-lA,-'-o-r-P-art-l-o-f-Fo-rm----.,-AD,-V-;-----------r-1RS---Em- p.,..1. ::-:Ide:-n-t-N=-o.-: ----~ 

.J 

-1 •• 
;, ' 

Quenos Custom StrategIes, LlC 91-1976232 

Item ofFonn 
(identifY) 

. ", . 
. ", ~ .... . -. 

.... 
• • r • 

',' ,0-: - '" -.- . ,: . -,,, . : . 

B1Ym K. White· ... . . '. ' . .. ,'- .". ' . ... . . . :::'_.::.;:. ' :'.:\' 
.~~:. ".' ',. :··~-.tMr:a~~:~Y~#U~~~~6(,~~d·~$ci,p~;~~os G~6iip;.L&; . : ... 
Q~r~~: _': ~~~~p~~;~.'~v.~~.~~o~e~,.;RegiStr~~.·· .' .' . . 
Qfrl_~~'·~fQiili1flQ,Ueli6.~.@rP.1W'~g~t,·LP; : 
~-.. ' .-~ <; ' ·!··.:·~~ ··:l~&~rl~'::T: ·~·· ·"lfus .1¥:;;",t,t';"';; ".:.; ~~riJ.~ :·i·tLG .' .. . 

• - ••. • ,'.," , .1-;_. ,. ,r.il! .. ~,.~·7.:7:::'W:~'*~: ... , "' ~~~~~'~'"'i ... '}}'~' . ., .. : , .......... ; 
'" ",' ··1'~;p..,oro.t}~~~",tJ.iil1ii\C'Et;a.<ActOlitifuf· ~: .... ; . 

;"':1·;.M • .' ., '1\ '::::!~:1!j..u..:' it.~·.!i~ .. : '.: 'i. ... " . '.:;'1''1. i . ' .... ; . ~ '~T1: it ·i • ' : ' • •• va· '70" " . ·.n=ldI:!l4_rIiU!l-v.npu<;""-:I'B.WQfS~i'''-'''''''·' ". . .... , .": . . 

~~iOl~~1W~~~ti~~~~.~.f~~~.~~~~.*~§,.,~Qt9!lal!l.U~~if:ySdiOOl.~f 
LaWi Lt¥"':r~Qn. l,"~:MewY.otk. ~v~~~o~t'of~w"" . ". 
Oa~.ofBitf;'hl:l~Z04/!?8:- '. ' . . .. .. . . . 

_. "-:-."~ .--.~ -- •.. . --- . ~'_a~fi~n:.fu.-iYt~rs~<biiije; CliityIt;·-DLi~;~Gr~:Mt:B6t1a1d;whl.e.~~ - - --. - .. ..,;, . - . 
. . wtlk, the-£0.tfu~-g are pt4tclpal executi.~e.officers ofRegis~t '. . 

Marie M. Bender 
08lIJO..Presen~ Principal and General Couns~ QueUos Group, LLC 
02/00-P..resent. ~~incipaI and Gen~ Counsel, Registrant· 

. __ ... __ __ _ . ___ J)UQ~l'e.s~t...:fri.ncipaland.Gen:eral_Counse1..Quellos-.Ca.pitalManageQ.1ent,.L.P_ --.--

.'. 

" .: -', 

i ', · '". :""':'~ ..: ,,~.: -: ',' . : .-: .: 

. .. .. ... ~. . 

.. : ' .' - -

OIl Ol-~sen~ Principal, '~ef Compliance Officer and General Counsel, Quellos 
Brokerag~ Services; LLC 
02/00-Preserit, Principa:l and General CounSel, QtieUos Fixed Income Advisors, LLC 
03 19~1/fJO -.Managing Directrir and Associate General Counsel, Trust Company af 
the'West anrl.,its affiliates. . . 
BA-~aIilica1 Science,. 1976, California State Univer~ty, San Jose; JDA979, GeorgetoWn 
Univers-iWLa~ Center ' . . 
Date of Birth: 11/'2Jj/54 

'- ' " . ..... - . , - : . ' , ' :' . 
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Schedule F of 
FonnADV 
Continuation Sheet for Fonn ADV Part II 

Applicant 

quellos Custom StrategieS, LLC 
SEC File Number. 

801- 56703· 

Date: 

1211112003 

(Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet fur Form ADV Part I or any other schedoles.) 

i:.::-.. 
:; .... : 

.:"" ," 

..... ~:~.~ .. • ':".~:: . 
. : ':" 

. ~ . . 

'; : ~ . ~ .. ",'~'.'. . . ; ",' 

. . . . - - ... -.- .... ----.- ......... _--_ .. -_ ._---.-- - -

./;\~. :;:::>:.::~.{,~;~~~.~;::: ... :::.:.j;; <.:~' .. : .:. ":~.'::;>~: . 

. . '. ·i 

- '~.- .. . _;- -~---

.~ ' .. 

. , 
.: . 

,,:', 

..... 

. ' :: ......... :' ... . 
" ' t,, , . .. '/ . '.' . 
~.: .. ; .. 
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~ .1 

Schedule F of . Applicant 
Form ADV . 

SEC File Number: 

801· 56703 

. Date; 

1211112003 Continuation Sheet for Form AOV Part II : Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC . 

(Do not use this Schedule as a CQntinuation sheet for Form AD V Part I or any other schedules.) r. ~--~ __ ~~~~~~~ __________ ~~~ ____ ~ 
t Full name of applicaJ:it.cxactly as stated in Ilcm lA of Pad I ofFonn AnV: IRS ErupL ldent. No,: 

QueUos Custom S1ralegies, LLC 91-1976232 

7.K 

Item ofForin 
(identifY) . Answer 

R~$.ff'fuullfs.;.ib.~es~~f..l~;~SQp'y'.activiiies'may ~elare tO~bl1ciacd~ .estii1:-e. pliintiiJtg or " '. 
, .. : .. : :,,:,: ;' .. li~~~~~i~~*~:.·:;-:' ·~;K,.~~~~~~·Regi&\l:~~~.~~~~~·~t·~d~~~.~d~~e 
. . ' .. : ...... ' .. :, ~P.1~~l~~~~~~!f ':' ;1¥~"l!il!.9~~.clives .. JIQ.w~el'r.ii1~b~~~~tmn~ ..... 

. '. . ~~:~~~taX'" . . ~~~i'i~4Qe$ n~t~speciff$8JlYi~-11n',~eta:l, .state, 
or .. i:nleti:llltioh~ taX.nj*~ ~d;jJ Q.i:kS."lclot prepate tilx:,r~~; ... Rl~d:ier} ~~tr~t.or· 
~.~ ~_<~:: ;, .. ', .':., ~ ..... acl:(}~~~~~:'\on'oth'etWiSe) to,:' ' . 

.... . ':'~::' ~~~~,:>/:;~:,:~~~::;' .•.. 
. ~. ".< ;,. . ". . 00:' :r".~ ./ .. :~ "'~ ':" •.. , .. ... ":"0.. • 0 ... "::::" .- •..• F:!.::·: ..... :;~ .. 'o(: .. 

. ,.' .' '.': i:~' '< ' :.'.: ' I .;,:.,-: ....... '~'~:;;;'<.'.-:-:,' •. ::;1;:-:._. :', . .. ' : ... . ", .: ' ~'''''.-;: .,. ';f:.s .• :,-, ... ,:: 

8 .. (:'(1,3;4,5,12) & Registrant isurtd& cQ~n'control wfth tw~:oth~r.~~g~;~~~:·~t~~~t ~a~r~ 
~·.D .,' ~~~.·0\.11if@.·¥~~mi~.J.?::JJ.--:{.jQq.f!}'6Et.File:Nq~;~149.'<?~~)'~q.:Qu~s 

. . t~e~~~~~*~~~~{~~~'H~c:.Fil1e ·N0.:801,"57~4-Y'):'Q~~ ~ore busiriess 
~·~O!i~.~~~~ilaIY..~$~~~~g~n~.aii4 8!i~so~#$~~ clients, . 
ii1dud~·F.u.nds,.thati:ri.~~~·thte~·a ·m1:iIfi.:..~anager '''£una df~' ~tru:c,ttJre, itt 
pri .. ~ate inv~tm~t·vehi~ ("itt;dg.#fffi"it?is")·m~g~ 'BY exfert'ial nu;estm¢nf~dvi.s~rs 

. .' e~temaz~~ ~~"-)'~~~!~:1:~~i,t.~~~etm:~~~~~-e~p§_~ - ._- -- - - -
'.-- - : - -_ . -- .. - -- ·JtRS"):-Ji\cer~~~JJ~ce.s,·l(.~may a~t~ ni.~gei"·tQ:f\mdS'.tlia:t41v~t 
. . . Suoobm:tialN all f.theii:~ \ts··:J~Fttri.dS,~t: . ulSfie Qii-eno'S:ARS~d.!·~t'are . . 
, . " •• ' . J' Q - .. ' ~., m .. , .P. . . .'. ,... . 

. ~~.bY ~ "t;~~~h:'ktliFciugh.if~;"Sl1bi;~; Q1:nlll~? 'Pri'Va:te-Qtpital-Markets, 
L.P., (rlQPCM") a:fso offa.rs,(i~.~·.""£un4·Gf funds:' ~tra~gy tl,iatfp00se8.on investing in 
closed-end private investment oompiUues that m<d<e venture CClpiial, .leveraged 
buyouts, eXpansion capitaL mezzaiUne, distressed, and special siruation investments, 

... .. _. !29Jhjn.th.J!_U.t)itedStare~.and:0:v:erse<\s.:(!fQuelWs··PC3~)·,.and(ii}a -"furld-of-funds'L -.-,~ .. 
Strategy. tha,t f0CIJSes. 9tl iliv.esfin,g·in d,GSed-end .Priv~ p;..vestmenhiempanies that 
~ake inves1:n).~ts in '~tl!al.8sl;ets"" sudt as·the timber, energy and re;:tlestate sectors, 
60th in the .. UriitedStates.6nd·'QYerseas-(,'QueIlos RA:'). QCM is registered with.the 
Commodity Futures Trading Coirunission as.a cotrunoUity'pool oper<Iter (NFA No. 
0263480). QFIA provides investment advice~ through a non-affiliated sub-adviser, 
with respect to a broad range of fixed incOme securities, either as separate acco~ts or 
to Funds. QCM, QFIA or Registrant may refer clients to, or solicit clients of, one 
another as a means of offeri.ng the specialized investment maniigement products of 
each adviser to one anofuer's -clients. With respect to any investments in Funds, 
clients will receive the applicable offering memorandum describing the Fund's 
investment strategy and terms of the offering. . 
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Schedule F of Applicant 
FormADV 

SEC File Number: Date: 
1211112003 Continuation Sheet for Fonn AOV Part II QueJlos Custom Strategies, lLC 801- 56703 

. (Do,oot use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Form ADY Part lor any other schedules.) 

1. 

WC!i~)i;§ili~~~;~ ··i: 
~~ .. _ .-:. :::,I{{\f. ~'~~;~.:;:;:~: 
COntinued: ! ~"'1'~.,-0:. 

l:;:»1];;~~~}~ .~fg~~~~i.ij~~~~~~(.~~~~~~~~~~~~~[;P'·i¢JreI,I~.'ri;(~ 
~' .. ; ~ ',; .. : ," " 

~ .. ':- . ~ ,'.' .... . 

1; •.. :.::.:._·.:.::·,·::::.::.~·:.·!:'-:.:;::.·-.·.·;.:'.; ....... _'.~"' .. ~.::: ... : .... ::::.-.~: ...... , .•. ~ .. ::.'_'!':'.'.:.~::._~,:~.:.:".'{..:~':::"'.~.::.'.~.; ... : •. ;~.:' . _~.,',~:~.:~.-":~::~"~.~.'.:.~:,~ .. -:.:.::.'.'.:\;; .. :: .:,'.~:.'.' . r. • '. (~w;: ", ,. " ""D/:a;:' 
, J~ :~"_~'" ~~~l~~~.j~_~~~~~s:.~~ri\j· :':~"~:::':·~j~i~~·~·. :·{" . 

~_~~~~~~~t~~~~~~~·~~~,~. . , ... ;f~;ar· .. 
: .. ,-";"".~). ~~&bm~~~Ilt~·, c' ,- ~'T-Gi~~~"··~ANQ. 

~~~'~:,~q~~.~~~0 -c:-

;;:n<!~';':';':""'·· ····"~1<~' . :b-m;.:..-~~"'~'.d13:'..;n''':~.ihrl·.,!rI':''~Fun· . (fi;~ . 'O~~";;t 
':'P-~~·~7.~1"i~~':0r . .- :;'9-·'.I.!'I.'V:~~~l!t":.~r,:,,,,:~o..:p~ .. '~<Ul'j:p':.: . . :t... ' .... J .L~~P."'H 

·0~11!s.:~\ed!pal\fi'~~ay~v~~~dat~®:~t-as··ii.:Ne.!fl\liieiti?iti~ger. · gertel'al 
~'Q~as. a-ro-in.v.~r: .. ., '. ;, 
.. :":" ..... :. '<;.: . 0' • : •• : '. ." 0','. ' . :~~','. : ' -: 

• 0°, . ' :~~ .. , • 

...... ~ , .. , ... , --·I·l~egisliP!ri11~La:y·eB:eet~,pln-e~se~:·(Hi.tl:S'ate~l;:tetween.,lOlienw (l)Peli"~js'.atilffi~tes 'or' ... -. 

-,; 

:'<:~ .. .'. 

.~. '. '':, 0, .;._ ~:: •• 

..... :: .~ 

t· .. ,: ',;:-: ... ~ .:. 
::: -. -.'- .. ::.;~'~:. 

':"- " .. 

. R;e1jentpf 

~~~~e~,avcuq'wllen·Re;~1r.md~ille~s·s~(ft~truromctfuris·~~~P.P.1'~p)iareb~d 
on.~party ~ iI1.Yeshn~ Objecti'V-~ll .. Related pm:sdIis of.Re,~~~f;-.:iliay 
~til~·irumdr~unt~in:t;l,~s. " ... -.: ..... .. 

. .. .. . . 
• " > 0' ,', .1';' 0' ~ '.: • ''' '' ' 

.' .:.: 
.. ~. :. : 

. :::. .::!.': .' 

• • : ;.'.~ ...... 0' • 

',. :' :": ~:::' -~ 

• 0' ... :-~~ .~.' 
· '0: • . ... 

"':' ..... 

0.: : 

.' 

.::: .. : ..... : 

. ..... :," 

. .... ", 

!' 0" 

. :. 
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ScHedule F of Applicant: 
FonnADV . 

SEC File Number: 

801- 56703 

Dllte: 

12111/2003 Continuation Sheet for Form ADV Part II Quellos Custom Str;:ltegies. LlC 

(Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Form ADY Part I or any other schedules.) 
~·~FU~ll~Mm--e-O~f~~-p7.(i-~-t~e-X~~ry-~--~--d~m~rre-m~IA~Of~P~8rt~lo~f~F~onn--A~D~V~:-------------------r.{~RS~E-mp~L~I~dro~L~N-o.-:--------, 

QueUos Custom Strategies. LLC 91-1976232 

Item of Form 
(identifY) 

0' ... ,..... ~ .' ... 

Answer 

~~~,t;~mJx~~e:~.t;v,i~".~¢ CQ~~'h~!~~~ of R~i,S~t,iill:re~b::I:~d.a~ '~':.: . . 
~k~r~td:e~~~',~ ,i;S.·~~~fi· ~~~.-~e,$,EC FlS,ijJ:,brQker:'deal~r,~(t!)w.1;f#j)he: .... 
~6~~di~ I!Il~TeS·fradjITKCo~~~onasa,n1.n~u:cingBroke~ .. '9ienti:9f .. ' 
~f,. F.ua~!in :.wwCh,mlth.diebtS'.m'v'~f..ot,~ or· accounts :m~gedWY: 
l~~i~ii!t~~eq~en.tA.dViSar.S,·~ay·~~~irte:Qro:ke~i'd;eriv.ative.ari:cliothei .,.:: . 
":';:. ': ... ~ , ·:~~i.l$i.:.fit.~~:~'s~~~lions;.~~~~y.~.Iye ......... . 
~t} •.. .. ::,,~~~~.~~<~~ ~~~w~tip:~~~;sil€~:J."tr-cUlsact~0nsthaf~\~1'J~~ 
$h.1lt~:.>:. ,:}'~~:~~~~~'e~~tl '. ,.' , !).: .. :, : '. , 

~';0i~n;~!>rl't may· aiSo'·ci~~n ·~rtikeriu.<·acr.iiw;tts· ~t!t ·0lt~ fu~JJn~ti~~~~':· ;:: .. 
. ,..-' .~ •. ,~ •. /.".fj~-~~~ •• , ••• :rJo;'" " . ~ _ .:.o- .. -... ~~ .~. ... . ' ... ":" . ., .;~. . 
a.s~et:~oii~i~~ts, {ot ex~:'t.o ~iJy a concentrated p'oiifcli~~r ", .. 

. . ~ .'~~ .. ~-tbt~·~~~~f:~·mtla ::end:ci\t~Goshi . witn.QBs.::Ql@'m.i:· ,iili-6:' . ~, , ':, .. ,~" ., .. . . , . .. ,. , .. F. , .... ... ,. ,f' , ' ... y , 
:-' :. ';' ",::,.', , . .. " ...... ;:...-... . _~ ...... t 'l'9! -: '. ~~ .. , •• ff!' • ',' .:~ • •• .. ", ..' . ... • • ~~~~':' . ~~;:b"'ix'R-eo:l'liti'pnt""l'.:itS:atl;i~w":~-m;·~ees:wftere lhe· crose'··· ,1' 

w~r, '::, .. )i~lfsh!-P:·~~:0~~fp~ttles<O?!id~t-ial~tY;'effideil.cy."in exeqi.uQfi: e'f a . .. : .. 

·~M~.~b.tm-qitty w~.th.e·cli.en([s:i~tionshiP.s-.wilh'Regisb:anb andJI,;<.; aff'i:lia:te8, No 
.usoft(lf6W· oohlmissiQnS are pcrid·Gr'l't~ehr.e.d.;k.cp~tiOl! with·suCh 
reco.~eridatioI'ls. 

-- - -- ---- _. -- - - -_. -- .-.-' --------- ---...----
_ .. -' .... -.- - - . ---. - . ~tiiob.or rticlieJ;l~.may.h~ve,~t:odl'l(i~e€l;'()wn~ship or other financtitl ' ..... . >' .. . 

'. :.:-: .. :.: .-: 

in~~{a ~Ff1l!lndal,ln~rest') in certain ~£..t:lty ~ mvesttneat Advisors·in wruch 
·at,hitt dietts,.of-.RegisbariteOther dients"1 inveS~ .'llie rerms of any Financial Inletest 
I{,I.ay:~o#4e wect Qr-mdirect recElY,to£ a porlian of a:rtY' managementar . . 
perf~~~d.tees.pald:~ Otiluir Clients to an~temal InveslmentAdvisor. 

. l:{~it~t or jts affiliates "WI'll ~adeavor tq negotia:re such Financial,lii.terest so as to 
... ... .,.p.erii.ril:.a:retum.l:o.O&mr,Cllents.ef-a.,shareof~a:nagementurperfo:tfi.\ance:.base(nees -_ .. .. -- ... 

paid by-otUer Clients, but no assw-ances can· be·giventhatit will be. able to·do so. . 

fuvestors in Funds :o:uu'taged by Regislxant or it!> affiliates may include Regis~ant, its 
afflJiates ~9 ·empJoyees. In a.ddition, Registrant ot. its affiliates' may hii~e and in the 
future may df?Y.elop business-relationShips that,<!1'e independent of Regislrants 
ser:v.ices,pr.C;>vicled tq cljents:These II?AY include, but are not Iimited tQ;~atding, 
depository; brokel'age~:rjsk management, investment advisory, security distribation 
or barddng relationships with. COUllterparties·to transactions with such clients Or other 
third parti.es that also provide inveslment management or other servicEs to clients <;>I 

R~gistrant Also ~xtemal·fuvesfn:lent A<;lviSors,-iIl; QueIlos ARS, QueUos PCS or ., . 
QueUes .RA pdi'tfolios, theii ~ployees or af£iUates may be clients of the Registi-ant or 

. . .i~ ~te$ or inveStors m.Funds,they,ritanage.. :: . 

--; ... ~ - .~" .. ~.~.~. 
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Schedule F of Applicant: 
FormADV 
Continuation Sheet for Fonn ADV Part II QueUos Custom Str<'ltegies. LLC 

SEC File Number: 

.801- 567~ 

Date: 

121111.2003 

(Do not use this Schedule as a continuation sheet for Ponn AnV Part I or any other schedules.) 

1. Full name ofapplicant exactly as stated in Item lA of Part [ of Form ADV: 

Quellos CUstom Strategies; LLC 

lQ .. : '.' .: . .'i:. '~~.~;.;:·~·. :;.:.!.:; ;'~ p~.¢ti~tJt'i#1~iw~~~I~~l:R):~~~dl~~i~Iily;a~!~~ 

. t~/' , ,;. :: .. ':' :'. ·.~~:t~~;· :::'. : 11Iili~~~~r~~l.t~:~~bf~f.:s;ii'ij~,~fiiltid;~~~~ 
,,",:. . ...... : ... ~ : •. ~~ .. :..:.:: ........ -. 
: -. , 

'Ior-- --- --

: .. " .. 

aV~~.B'~i!Wh~'l~eg{~:an~ n, ~(jI.iJ' , ,~:'Cli!ei:\t)tt.a:[:)Sacti~)rts,·~:",~p:<'ItEti(:Ulalt·br0~et 
in..return f.()rpr.oduc(s,.ot,.~ces Iecei~~. 

t:tB:, . -.... 
; , 

. ":.. ' .-: .. ' 
.... . . '. ! . 

' . ~b?an;t'.~t;ersmto·p'V~';'~~fei:'~quit}(s~,'jp:~()ntTacts, ~#¢.~ent a v.arieW 
~f~~'~ts(~~~¥.t'.Qbje~;ves·:i€o.~~ar~es ~7 ~l~~·~~~~;.a n.ilql~i;g£: 
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Schedule G of 
FormADV 
Balance Sheet 

Applicant 

QueUos Custom Strategies, LlC 
SEC File Number. 

801- 56703 

Date: 

12/11f2003 

, ( - (Answers in Response to Form ADV Part II Item 14.) 
Full name of applicant exactly as stated in Item lA of Pm r of Form ADY: IRS ErupL Ident No.: 

91-1976232 Quellos Custom Strategies, LLC 

Instru.ctions 
1. The balance sheet must be: 

A. Prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting p!"incip!J:S 
B. Audited by ail. independent public accountant 
C. Accom:panied by a note stating· the principles Used to prepare it, the basis ofincluded securities, and any other 

eXplanations required for clarity. . 

2 .. Securiti~. included at cost sboilld show their market or fair value paren~~icaUy. ." .. :"":--: ; ":"f-
.' .: 

3. QualifiCations and any accompanying independent accountant's report must confonn to Article 2 of Regulation S-X 
(17 CFR 210.2-01 et seq.). .. . 

4. Sole propnetor iIlvestment adviserl\: 

A.. Must sh()w investment advisory business assets 8lId liabilities sepaI1lte from other business and personal aSsets and liabilities 

B.. May aggregate other businc;ss and personal assets and liabilities uDless there is an asset deficiency in the total financial positiolL 

- .~ .. 

- ______ 0_----- - ____ _ - --- -_ . _ . - .. _--- -" . . - -_ .. -

( 
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QUELLOS CUS,!,OM STRATEGIES, LLC 

. BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002, AND 
-- -- - - ._- ~DEPEND-ENT-AUBrrORS'-REP0R-T-· 

Peloitte & Touche LLP 
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Oetoiite·& Tou~he l!:P' 
Suite {SOO. 
700 Alch A,·enu. 
Sea;ttle,Wa.shington 981.G4-SD44 

TeI:(2Il!ll. 2\)1-lll00 
Ea.e{206) 343-7009 
""'..w.I.!-'S.d~lojl:te.com 

INDEPENDENT AuDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Qu~~ CuSk,m Strategies, LLC 
seil.ti:1.e, Washington 

.' 

We· have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Quell~~ Custqm Strategies, LLC .cthe 
COfnpany) as of Decem1:;er 31, 2002. 1'hi:s balance sheet is' the responmblliti of the 'Cotitpany's 
~anagemen~ Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this balance sheet based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
sta~ Qf America. Those standards require that we p~ and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the balance sheet is free of material misstatement. :Ari audit 
includes examiniitg, on a test basis,.evidence suppo~ting lite ~OUi\ts.·and disclosUres in th~ balaItce 
sheet. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sigoificapt .. eStiIDates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall balance sheet presentation- We .'believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our OpiniOIL , 
In oUr opinion, such balance sheet presents fairly, in all material respects, the finandal position of 
the O;>mpany as of December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

As.discussed in Note 4, the financial position of the Company is affected by allocations ofexpeoses 
and other transactions with Quellos Group, LLC. Accordingly, the financial position is not 
necessarily the same as that which would have been achieved had the .Company oper~ted on- an 
i?depeodent basis_ 

May 12, 2003 
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QUELLOS CUSTOM STRATEGIES, LLC 

BALANG:E SHl.mt 
D.~¢J}¥.~N~~, ~9P~ 

..... . .... .... -.- ~ . - ....... t • ' 0" : - ~ ... 

ASSETS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . 

SHORt~TERMINvEsTMENTS 

INVESTMENTS IN INVESTMENT FUNDS 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE . 
" .' '.' ::;1 .-", ,; ', ., :', ,:--'. '-: " " .. .. ,: ::' " : " ~:; ,"" 

,~r.P!V~~ F~Q~Jmw..TEI?,pl).R,-X:J;E~ 

OTHERA:SSETS ' ~ , , 

. 'toTAL 

, : lIABILITIES AND MmviBER~S CAPiTAL . .-.' .," : -.. : ~ .: ~ ... ,': -; ... 

, "';UABILITIESt 
~,,:, " ACcoUntS Paya1)l1~-

Payable to Parent 
AcCrued expenses and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

MEMBER'S CAPITAL 

TOTAL 

See rtptes to bal~ce sheet 
. :.0 .. _', 

Page 1173 

: ' 0 .. 

" '76,09,Q' 
- . I j':"'~~; 

':, -4;j&S~$9'j' . 
.. ..~. >::~::... i?:: . 

, '982,489 

'" ;~J,~76: 

, ' :':'1i,:126 

3), 6,OO6,tiU 
• ~ • °0 .. : . ' 

, ' , 

'$ '4i62 
34,341 

578,542 

·617,745 

5,38,8,~66 . 

$' 6,006,611 ' 
; 

. " . ' . .... ...... : .. 
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(' QUELLOS CUSTOM STRATEGIES, LLC 

NOTEs TO BA~NCE SHEET 

( 

c, 

DECEMBER3~, 2002 

. NbTE1:StJMrviaRY 01: SiCN®CANT ACCOUNTING ·POLI.CIES . . . ' ' . . ... - ... . ~ '.' . 

Nature of 'busines~: -QrieUos 'CusU;m Strategies, LLC (the Comp~.xiY)..is ~.JiJ;ni~liability 
company formed under the Delaware Limited.Liability Company Act on March 24,.1999. The 
C~m~y ~. a re~t~ i{lv.esb:n~t advisor' ~th th~ securities and E~g~_:CommisSion and 
is registered a.;;: a ·~oII)IIl.~it.y .po~1.operator with the Commodity Fu~ Tra~~ -Co~ion. 

-:, ::"-'.' .· .. ~~~ . .99'fp:p~r: p~~Vlde~ }~ ~Ij~ts with specialized investment' ~olu~~~·.~a~.:~ ~-. 
. . 'effiClent stta:M~€!s cihd structures. It alSo serves as the general partner and/ o~ ip.yestment 

adViSor of certain trading' partnerships. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary 'of QueUos 
Gro\lp, J:.LC (the P~t), _ . 

~ .. 

. Ca$p arid~Gi.sh equivalents: The Company considers ~ hi!#y liquid investo;1.~ts· with an 
initiaJ).n"turity of tlU'ee lxtonths 0'1: less to be cash equiValents. . 

. Sli()xt-teiin nWe-stments: _ The Company maintains irivesbnents in certain.privci~~~ent 
"vehlcles '(funds), which ai-e inarui.ged by an' affiliate. These inves~ents a~ earri.,e4· lit fait value 
based upon tile funds~ net as~t valueS per share and provide al: least monthly ·liquidity. 

AccoUntS receivable: ACcounts receivable at December 31, 2002, consists of invesbnent 
advisory fee a1I\<?unts due from certain institutions. 

Investments in investment funds: The Company aq:ounts for iiN investments in investment 
. funds, for which it is the genera1'parbier, on the equity method (Note 2). . 

Depreciation: Shared assets and leasehold improvements are carried at the ParentJ , and 
depreciation is allocated based o~ the common paymaster agreement (Note 4) .. The only fixed 
assets caTried at the Company are specifically identified assets that are no~ shared. 
Management, using its best eSti.niates based on reasonable and sUpportable assumptions and 

, projections, reviews fixed assets for impainnent whenever events or chang~ in cUcuinstances 
have iildicated tha:t the carrying amount of its assets might not be recoverab~. DE!piec~afion of. 
equipment and facilities is provided on the straight-line methOd over five years, the eStimated 
useful lives of the asseU:. 

Revenue recognition: Management fees trom the Cpmpanis investment management 
business are calculated and accrued on a quarterly basis, as such fees -are eat;ned. Advisory fees, 
wI.Uch'relate to investment adVisor relationship:;, ate recognized over the tErm: of the advisory 
agreements. 

Income taxes: No provision for income taxes has been ma~e s~ce all i,nc;ome Qr loss is allocated 
to the Parent in its capacity as sole managing member of the Company for jnclusion in its tax 
returns. 

3 -
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Fair value of financial inStruments: The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and (' 
c::ash equivalents, short-term investments, and investments in investment funds, which are 

. ":,. 

carried at fair value, 

Use o( e~tim~t~s:' ' Th~ preparation of the balance sheet in c~nformity w;it4 accoimting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management'to ~a:ke" 
certain .estiinates and asSumptions that ~ffect 'ilie repb~d' amoUnts of assetS' arid 'liabiliijci 'and 

. disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the ,date of the balan~e . sheet. Act;u.al· ~e~ults 
, could'differ from those 'estitnates. " '. ! , ' . ..,' , • '; : .' " / . 

l . • " . . ~ .... . :") .' ~; .: '. 

Certain si~i~t :.;iSks: The €ompany's in~g~~ent:believ:es thatanY'of ~~fQ~~wfug cO,uld 
ha:ve'a n\fiteria1 aaverse' effect oil. the o>n..p~y-~;'fufu~:finan~arpositiori: maffiUlJitO attract 

,~~~;an~ :~d4i~o~,,~~~,to mar\~~e! ch~g~~ in. ~:,o~ll ~~an~J~L~~",~~p.anzed 
lli.v~enholutions; poor 1I1vestment' performance, pr irlcreflsed; com~titio)t,lIl.":~~ent . :~e~;:· "..:'. - . "., -. ' . -;~ -.. ' . ~ .. ... : ... '.!:: .... ~ .:: . ... ' . 

EqJIity-based c~mpensation: At December 31, 2002, the Company has 'equitY-~ed ~ployee 
compensation arrangements, which are des<:til~ed in No~ 3. In 4002, the,O?D?-pP.l¥ .a4.'?pted the 

, faii'valne'I'ecognitlon provisions ,ofStatement'i)i Financial Acco'Unl:ing Sl:andahi~ (SFAS) No. 
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Competzsiltion, uita.er the guidance of SF As No. 148, AccdunHng for 

, S~ock-Based qtmpensation-Transition and Disdomire-:-an amen~t of FASB S,f!Uem:ettf:.No. li3, 
"f6~ eqwty-ba$l employ'ee, c~mpe:u;aJion. ~N? No.)2:3 '$~teS that the adopiioii Qf.the fair 

" vaiu~~sed'inethod is a ~ge In a prefurab~e,m~~o~.of acc9unting_ 

Rec-enUy issued a<;counting px:ononru:ements not yet . a,dopted: ht NqveQlber 2002, the 
. Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) issued F ASB Interpretation No. 45 (rIN 45), 
Guarantor's' Accounting and Disclosure Requ~rements 1m- Guarantees, Including Indirect Gua!Wltees of 
Indebtedness oj O~hers, which expands on the accolUlting guidance of Sf AS N~. 5, SFAS No. 87, 
and SFAS No. 107 and incorporates, without crumge, the' provisions of FASB In,terprelation 
No. 34, which is being' superseded. This interpre1ation requires ~ guarantor to recognize, at the 
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the oPligation undertak~ inis,s.uing the' 
guarantee. ht addition, guarantors are required to make significant new disclo~es, ev~ if the 

'likclihood of the gu'a.r<mtor m~g p~yments under the guarantee, is remote. The 
ip,terpretation s diSclosure' requirements are effective for the Company as of OeceJPlier 31, 2002. 
~e i-ecognition req{ur~ents of fIN 45 are In ,~ applled· pros~tively to guar~tees issued or 

, modI£ied ~r December 31, 2002. The Company has deteIn\ined that $..ere are no guarantees 
, that ,need to be disclosed as of December 31, 2002. . 

In January 2003, the PASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation oj Variable Interest 
Entities. This interpretation will require a primary berteficiary, deAned· as an entity that 
partippares ,in ei~er ·a.inaj~rity of-the ,ris~ or rewards of a ,va,iabl~ 4tter~t ~tity (VIE), to 
,consolidate the VIE- The Company h~ not y~t c;:oPlpleted .its ~y~~ <if the impact q( ~e new 
iilterpretation on its balance sheet If the Company is deemed to be a primarY ~,eUp.ary, the 
impact to the balance sheet cOll,ld be material. ' . 

.. ' 
~ . 

( 

The Company is the general partner tq vari9us 'priVate i.nvestment hinds. TheSe iri~~s~~ts in ' (. 
investment funds are recorded at est:im~ted We value b~ed On the ~depeil~ently ~u,d.jted n~t a~1iet' 
values of the investee ·funds.' ' 

4 
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( NOTE 3: EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS 

( 

.j 
:1 

( 

The Parent and Quellos Holdings, LLC (Holdings), a I1lajority owner of the Parent. have certain 
equity compensation arrangements (the Arrangements) to provide additional financial incentives to 
their employees and employees of their subsidianes. The Company adopted the recognition 

' . . prQvisions of.SFAS No. 123 itt 2002, in accordance withSFAS No. 148, by applying this accounting 
. . . :ti1:ethbd retroactively·to all awards granted to employees on or after March 24, 1999 (the date of the 

fotn'lation of the Cdiupany) (Note 1) . . 

Applying the provisions of SFAs No. 123 to the Arrangements, the ~ompany records .contributed 
Olpi~ from the Parent over the same period that compensation expense is recoTded~ reSUlting in no 
impact to the CompClllY's members' capital at December 31, 2002. 

. Equity·incentive plans: Th~ Parent and Hol<;Iings each have ad~pted an equity incentive pIan' 
(the Plans), which provides for th~ granting of nonquaIified options to purchase membei!lhip 
interests. Op~ons granted under ihe Plans typically vest 25% in the first year' and ratably over 
the follol-ying 12 .quarters. The exercise prices of the awards are typically at fair value ' at ihe 
date of. g'nU.1.t and the awards are subject to 10-year coritractuallives. The .value of options 
granted under the Plans is measured based on·their intrinsic value ·at each reporting date. The 
effects of changes in the underlying price ~e recognized as compensation expense over the 
period until the awards are .~xercised orforfeited. . 

Me:in.bership·option actiVity under the PlailsJot employees of the Company~ as follows: 

Weighted- weighb:<J.lI~ 
wefg~ted- .... ""'ge NwDberol exe1'dse 

NantlKT average RlIngerif rem&ining ~clAble · pdteof 
ofoptlOl1$ exett:lse exetcise OJnttadlul opiiOD. oeJCis .. ble 

.P~t 01ltsfaD,diD.l!: ~ ~ '~ .lumI . optiOJlS 

butstandI.ng J'\Duary 1, 2002 . 43;160 $ 654 

Options~d. .91.000 . 791 
Options Cash settled (1,740) 6.54 
Qptions forfeited . (12.02JJ) 7:0. 

Outstanding December31, 2002 l2D,700 ~ $6.54 - $8.68 8.95 12,561 $ 6..54 

Holdings 

Outstanding January 1., 2002 192,500 $ 4.52 

Oplio ... cash settled (5,625) 4.00 
Options £orfeited . 004..375) '4,96 

Outslanding Oeceu.ber 31, 2002 62.500 ~ $ 4.00 7.97 74,.842 $ 4.00 

Equitjr Awards: Other equity compensation awards {E<Juity Awards) were granted in addition 
to the Plans to senior employees of the Company. During 2002, recipients of Equity Awards 
became members of the Parent and Holdings. The .Equity Awards generally provide for 
potential future allocations of operating profits and losses of the Parent which are immediately 
vested, and potential future allocations of nonoperating gains or losses of the Parent, which are 
subject to various vesting sche.dules and requirements. 

5 
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Membership interest activity related to the Equity Awards for employees of the Company is as (-
follows: 

. -,:=;. : •. 
Outstan~g January 1,2002 

. 'lJ~iis:u~~~ 
Outsta.nding Derember 31, 2D02 

Holdlp.gs 

6utsh;ndh.g Jan~ 1, io02 

Unils granted' 

., 

"! . " .•• 

: NIim~ 
of"p.tio~ 
o~~~ 

260,224 

160,224 

.': .• r • 

M~ership 

. . '. iW-C;cests 
Weigl.}tl!d,- .. v:~~. At 
av~' :~~~g 

faIr · . ~ (lo...s) 

val~e. ..' ~ec:atlop 

$ 2.-64'., 

100,000 . S 6.02 

Ou.tstanding December 31, 2002 ': 100;990 

At December 31, 2~02, a ~~m of 40;754.212 m~~shlp .in'teret!ts ~~ autho~d .to be 
utilized. pursuant to the. Arrangemerus. Of thls amo~t, 'ArraxigementS"governing M~232,l71 
membership.iI).terests and Opt:iQDS on mem'bersJll~ ~f:er~ts w~re:Sl'anted, ~<lpf':h~e/ 175;069 
have ~ cash settled, 1,232,997 have been forfeited, and 3/755,038 were available for gr~t. 

NOTE 4:. RELATED PARTY TRANSA~IONS . 

Parent: The Parent participates in 'the management of the Company's affairs and provides, at 
.all~ted cost, administrative support for the Comp¥1y's operationS, including facilities and 
. administrative activities. Accordingly, the expenses allocated to the 'Company and the resulting 
financial position of the Company are not necessarily the same as those which wOuld ha:ve been 
achieved if the Company had operated on an independent basis, 

The Parent and the Company have an agreement, whereby certain s~ared expenses are paid by 
the Parent The portion attributable to the Company is then allocated for reimbursement to the 
Parent At Decemb~ 31,2002, the payable to the Parent toi:a.lled $34,341. 

Other. As discussed in Note 1, the Company is the general partner in the invesbnent funds in 
which it invests. At December ~1, 2002. ~gement ~e receivables fro~the investment funds 
totaIIed$21,668. Other related party receivables tobille<1$308 at December 31, 2002. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

FILED 
11 NOV 22 PM 3:44 

THE HONORABLJ9tOOXNt~r'lUM 
SUPERIOR COURT CLERK 

E-FILED 
CASE NUMBER: 10-2-41637-4 SE 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON. 
IN AND FORKING COUNTY 

9 QUELLOS GROUP LLC, 

10 Plaintiff, 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

v. 

FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY; 
INDIAN HARBOR INSURANCE 
COMPANY; AND NU1MEG INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

Defendants. 

No.: 10-2-41637-4 SEA 

DECLARATION OF NORM 
BONTJE IN SUPPORT OF 
QUELLOS GROUP LLC'S 
OPPOSITION TO FEDERAL'S' 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT 

17 I, NOlTIl Bontje, declare: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

1. The information contained herein is based upon my personal knowledge or 

a reasonable inquiry gained from my review of relevant documents and information. If 

called as a witness, I could and would competently testify thereto. 

2. In 1994, I began my employment at what is now known as Quellos Group 

LLC (HQuellos"). Since that time, I have served as the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") 

for. QueUos, including its successor and subsidiary entities. 

3. Design of the POINT transaction occurred during the summer of 1999. 

Bonlje Declaration in Support of Quellos' Opposition to 
Federal's Motion for Summary Judgment 

US2<lOS 2J\91294.2 

f f21161vl 
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.2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

"1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

4. Most of the work on the POINT transactions was performed by Quellos 

Custom Strategies, LLC flkla Quadra Custom Strategies ("Quellos Custom"), with 

additional services provided by Quadra Financial Group, L.P. ("Quadra Financial") and 

Quellos Financial Advisors, LLC (-"QueUos Financial"). 

5. The POINT transaction was designed to allow clients to defer tax liabilities 

by offsetting their capital gains with losses that .could be realized from a portfolio of assets 

that had declined in value, while providing an opportunity for profit if those assets 

appreciated. 

6. In 2000 and 2001, Quellos Custom, Quadra Financial, and QueUos . 

'12 Financial assisted five clients in peffonning a total of six POINT transactions, with the 

13 first of such trans~tions occurring on April 28, 2000. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

7. In October 2007, Charles Wilk's employment at QueUos ended. As of 

March 26, 2Q09, Jeff Greenstein had resigned all of his positions at Quellos. 

I 

/ 

/ 

/ 

I 

/ 

I 

/ 

Bontje Declaration in Support of Quellos' Opposition to 
Federal's Motion for Summary Judgment 

USlOOI1693Z94.2 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

'16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

To the best of my knowledge and belie~ I declare under penalty of perjury that the 

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on this 22nd day of 

November, 2011, in Seattle, Washington. 

Bontje Declaration in Support of Quell os' Opposition to 
Federal's Motion for SUmnlruy Judgment 

.' 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned certifies that on this 3 rd day of August, 

2012, I caused the foregoing to be served on: 

PaulE. Fogarty 
Mary Przekop 
Dearmin Fogarty PLLC 
600 Stewart Street, Ste. 1200 
Seattle, WA 98101-1246 

Via Messenger 

Barry 1. Fleishman 
Helen K. Michael 
Eric M. Gold 
Kilpatrick Townsend, et al. 
607 14th St., NW, Suite 900 
Washington DC 20005 

Via U.S. Mail 

Matthew J. Sekits 
Janis C. Puracal 
Jerret E. Sale 
Bullivant Houser Bailey PC 
1700 Seventh Ave., Suite 1810 
Seattle, W A 98101 

Via Messenger 
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Leslie S. Ahari 
Troutman Sanders LLP 
16600 International Drive 
Suite 600 
McLean, VA 22102 

Via U.S. Mail 

SIGNED this 3rd day of August, 2012. 

Wqau1A~\~ 
Connie E s 1 ry 
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